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Trinity Washington University 
Middle States Self-Study 2016 

 Verification of Compliance with Accreditation-Relevant Federal Regulations 

The following report provides a review of institutional materials submitted by Trinity 

Washington University to document compliance with accreditation-relevant federal regulations. 

This report provides verification to the Commission of institutional compliance in the following 

areas: 

1. Student identity verification in distance and correspondence education

2. Transfer of credit policies and articulation agreements

3. Title IV program responsibilities

4. Institutional records of student complaints

5. Required information for students and the public

6. Standing with state and other accrediting agencies

7. Contractual relationships

8. Assignment of credit hours

Student Identity Verification in Distance and Correspondence Education  

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.17(g), the Commission must verify that institutions have 

effective procedures in place to ensure that the students who register in a distance or 

correspondence education course are the same students who participate in and complete the 

course, and receive the academic credit. 

Institutions must provide the following documentation: 

1. Written description of the method(s) used to ensure student identity verification in distance or

correspondence education courses. Include information related to the Learning Management

System (LMS) and integration with college-wide systems.

Trinity offers five online courses enrolling a total of fewer than 50 students.  These courses are part 

of academic programs for which most courses are on campus in regular classroom settings.  At the 

first point of enrollment, every student provides identifying information including full name, 

address, date of birth and social security number, transcripts and documents that verify the 

student’s participation in prior educational institutions.  Each student attests to the accuracy of the 

information provided. Trinity maintains this information throughout the student’s relationship with 

Trinity. 

Trinity employs Moodle as its learning management platform, and once a student is admitted to the 

University and is enrolled in a course, he or she is assigned a username and a randomly generated 

password with instructions as to how to change it to one unique to the student.  The student's 

username is the same for both accessing Moodle and for an institutional student email account.  

Trinity’s faculty and staff continuously monitor student performance for integrity, including 

honesty and integrity in the use of all digital platforms and participation in Moodle sessions, hybrid 

and online courses.  Trinity’s Policy on Academic Honesty specifically prohibits cyber fraud as one 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/academic-honesty/
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of numerous examples of cheating that may incur penalties of suspension or dismissal.  Trinity’s 

Technology and Telecommunications Policy also specifically prohibits fraudulent use of 

technology systems and the Office of Technology Services works in cooperation with the Provost 

and Director of Academic Technologies to ensure constant vigilance of system security. 

2. Written procedure(s) regarding the protection of student privacy in the implementation of such

methods. Include information related to the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA),

student record access, and process for resetting student passwords.

Trinity’s Policy on Protecting Student Privacy describes applicable law (FERPA) and the 

University's policies regarding the protection of student information.   

Faculty and staff receive regular training on the definitions of protected information and 

how it is to be handled both within the institution and in response to third-party requests. 

Students who need to re-set their passwords may contact the office of Information 

Technology Services for assistance.  At least two forms of identification must be 

presented, and must include some personally identifying information previously 

submitted to the University such as the student's date of birth, home address or last four 

digits of the social security number. 

3. Written procedure(s) for notifying students about any projected additional charges associated

with student identity verification, such as proctoring fees.

Trinity charges no additional fees for student identity verification. 

4. Written procedure(s) indicating the office(s) responsible for the consistent application of student

identity verification procedures.

The Office of the Provost, the Office of Enrollment Services, and the Office of Technology 

Services are responsible for implementation and oversight of the student identity verification 

procedures and related policies cited previously. 

Transfer of Credit Policies and Articulation Agreements 

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.24(e), the Commission must confirm that an “institution has 

transfer of credit policies that: (1) are publicly disclosed in accordance with section 

668.43(a)(11); and (2) include a statement of criteria established by the institution regarding the 

transfer of credit earned at another institution of higher education.”  

Section 668.43(a)(11) states: 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/technology-telecommunications/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/technology-telecommunications/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/protecting-student-privacy/
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(a) Institutional information that the institution must make readily available to enrolled

and prospective students under this subpart includes, but is not limited to-

(11) A description of the transfer of credit policies established by the institution

which must include a statement of the institution’s current transfer of credit

policies that includes, at a minimum—

(i) Any established criteria the institution uses regarding the transfer of

credit earned at another institution; and 

(ii) A list of institutions with which the institution has established an

articulation agreement. 

In addition, the Commission must confirm that any articulation agreements with other 

educational institutions are readily available to current and prospective students. 

Institutions must provide the following documentation: 

1. Written policies and procedures for making decisions about the transfer of credits earned

at other institutions, including all modes of delivery.

Trinity’s Provost oversees compliance with the institutional policies on the transfer of 

credit.  Advisors in the respective academic units work with the Provost’s Office to 

review transcripts and approve courses for transfer credit.  The Policy on Transfer of 

Credits is available on the website. 

2. Public disclosure of the policy for transfer of credit. Document the URL and the catalog

location of this information; include other publications, if available.

Transfer policy: http://www.trinitydc.edu/transfer-credits-satisfying-degree-requirements/ 

3. Procedures that indicate the office(s) responsible for the final determination of the

acceptance or denial of transfer credit.

Deans oversee the initial transcript evaluations in the respective academic units, and the 

ultimate authority for acceptance of transfer credit resides with the Provost. 

4. A published and accessible list of institutions with which the institution has established

an articulation agreement. Document the URL and publication location of this

information.

Trinity has articulation agreements for the RN-BSN program with Montgomery College 

and the College of Southern Maryland.  These agreements are posted in the Nursing 

section of the Policy on Transfer Credit on the website. 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/transfer-credits-satisfying-degree-requirements/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/transfer-credits-satisfying-degree-requirements/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/transfer-credits-satisfying-degree-requirements/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/transfer-credits-satisfying-degree-requirements/
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Title IV Program Responsibilities 

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.16(a)(1)(x), the Commission must review the institution’s record 

of compliance with its Title IV program responsibilities to determine if that record suggests the 

institution may not be in compliance with Commission standards and requirements. The 

Commission is particularly interested in reviewing significant deficiencies and material 

weaknesses that have been identified and any corrective action plans that have been developed to 

address those deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

Institutions must provide the following documentation: 

1. Formal documentation from the U.S. Department of Education regarding the institution’s

cohort default rate for the three most recent years. Provide the most recent three-year

rates supplied by the U.S. Department of Education.

See Appendix 1: Trinity USDE Cohort Default Rate Letters 

Cohort Default Rates: 

FY12 – 10.6% 

FY11 – 12.7% 

FY10 – 14.2% 

FY09 – 13.1% 

2. Reports on compliance from the U.S. Department of Education in regard to the cohort

default rate.

None. 

3. External audits of federal programs (A-133) for the past three years, if applicable to the

institution. Include the complete single audit report (A-133) for the most recent three

years as an appendix, even if included in other documentation.

See Appendix 2:  Trinity A-133 Audits for 2012, 2013 and 2014 
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4. Relevant correspondence from the U.S. Department of Education, such as program

reviews and any actions to limit, suspend, or terminate the institution’s eligibility to

participate in Title IV. Include institutional responses, if applicable.

None 

5. Financial Responsibility Requirements – documentation of the three most recent years of

composite ratios used by the U.S. Department of Education

These scores are available on the USDE website at 

https://studentaid.ed.gov/sa/about/data-center/school/composite-scores 

Additionally, Trinity’s audit firm Brown Edwards includes discussion of the Financial 

Responsibility ratios in its annual financial analyses for Trinity.   

Appendix 3 includes relevant USDE financial ratio pages excerpted from the Brown 

Edwards financial analyses for Fiscal 2013, 2014 and 2015.  Trinity’s scores were 3.0, 

3.0 and 2.9 respectively. 

Institutional Record of Student Complaints 

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.16(a)(1)(ix), the Commission must confirm that institutions have 

effective policies and procedures for tracking and resolving student complaints. 

Institutions must provide the following documentation: 

1. Written description of the policy and methods used in handling student complaints.

Trinity maintains a policy on Complaints and Grievances on the website.  Students are 

encouraged to try to resolve complaints directly through discussion with the person 

responsible for addressing the issue.  However, students may also complain formally to 

deans, vice presidents, provost and president.  All senior executives have a practice of 

asking students to put their complaints in writing via email in order to have clear records 

and a cogent description of the problem.  Trinity’s executive team makes every effort to 

respond immediately to student complaints, to determine what kind of resolution is 

possible, and to correct situations that give rise to complaints.  Not all complaints can be 

resolved in the student’s favor, but Trinity executives make every effort to explain the 

rationale for final decisions.   The senior executive staff also discusses student 

complaints and issues related to resolving them on an institution-wide basis. 

https://studentaid.ed.gov/sa/about/data-center/school/composite-scores
http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/complaints-and-grievances/
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2. Documentation regarding the record of student complaints over the last five years,

including the number, patterns in type of complaints, and their resolution.

3. 

From 2010 to 2015 Trinity administrators received 62 student complaints about notable 

issues in academics, services and discrimination.  (See Appendix 4:  Complaint 

Matrix)  25 of these complaints were from Nursing students, and most of those 

complaints centered upon requirements for clinical participation, plagiarism accusation, 

and the required use of ATI predictor materials as part of coursework.  16 of the 

complaints were from undergraduate students in the College of Arts & Sciences and the 

majority of these complaints involved disability accommodations and grades.  12 of the 

complaints were from adult students in the School of Professional Studies and these 

complaints largely focused on grades and faculty.   The remaining complaints were from 

graduate students in the School of Education and School of Business and Graduate 

Studies and these complaints centered upon grades, advising and claims of 

discrimination.  In all, 26 complaints were about discrimination, with 16 focused on 

disability accommodations and 10 concerning race, national origin or age.  7 of the 

discrimination complaints were also filed with the Office of Civil Rights and 1 was filed 

with the D.C. Human Rights Commission; none of the outside agencies found 

discrimination.  The balance of the cases involved student concerns about grades and 

grading policies; plagiarism accusations disputed; arguments about academic 

requirements or assignments; concerns about faculty dispositions toward students; or 

billing errors. 

4. Written procedures for making modifications and improvements to the institution as a

result of information obtained in handling student complaints.

The senior executives responsible for the various departments and programs review 

complaints routinely and make changes as necessary to ensure that problems are 

corrected, students receive fair treatment and policies and procedures meet standards for 

due process and integrity.  The senior executive staff together reviews complaints 

routinely and discusses solutions for any major complaints that require substantial 

revision.  The President and Provost review resolution of major complaints in academic 

programs, services, finances, safety and other major areas of concern. 

Required Information for Students and the Public 

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.16(a)(1)(iv), the Commission must confirm that institutions 

make available to students and the general public fair, accurate and complete information in 

catalogs, handbooks and other publications regarding the institution’s calendar, grading, 

admissions, academic program requirements, tuition and fees, and refund policies. 

In addition, the Commission must verify that institutions collect and post information on their 

websites concerning student performance in academic programs and their successful completion. 

Information should also be available regarding student employment after graduation and 

performance on licensing exams, as appropriate. 
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Finally, in accordance with 34 CFR 602.23(d), the Commission must verify that institutions 

provide clear and accurate information in their advertising and recruiting material about their 

accreditation status with the Middle States Commission on Higher Education. 

Institutions must provide the following information: 

1. URLs for course catalogs and student handbooks, or the location of any alternative

institutional website documenting required disclosures.

Trinity maintains a robust inventory of all policy statements and handbooks on the Trinity 

website at:  http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/ 

The Academic Catalog:  http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/ 

2. As required by Student Right to Know, the URL and supporting documentation for the

following items:

a. graduation and completion rate for the student body disaggregated by gender,

ethnicity, and receipt of Pell grants

b. overall cohort graduation rate

c. process for withdrawing as a student  (Carlota, Cathy and Juanita will create)

d. cost of attendance (i.e. net tuition calculator)

e. policies on the refund and return of Title IV funds

f. names of applicable accrediting agencies

g. description of facilities and accommodations available for the disabled

h. policy on enrollment in study abroad

i. as appropriate, licensure pass rates for the most recent three-years.

a. and b.:  Graduation rates:  http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/2015/09/08/trinity-

graduation-and-success-rates/

c. Withdrawing: http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-14-15/policies-cas/#I.E

d. Cost of Attendance:

Net price calculator: http://www.trinitydc.edu/enrollment/net-price-calculator/

        Tuition and fees: http://www.trinitydc.edu/enrollment/tuition-and-fees/ 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/2015/09/08/trinity-graduation-and-success-rates/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/2015/09/08/trinity-graduation-and-success-rates/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-14-15/policies-cas/#I.E
http://www.trinitydc.edu/enrollment/net-price-calculator/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/enrollment/tuition-and-fees/
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e.  Refunds:  http://www.trinitydc.edu/business/student-refunds\  

f.  Accreditation:  http://www.trinitydc.edu/accreditation/  

g.  Disabilities Services: http://www.trinitydc.edu/disability/  

h.  Study Abroad: http://www.trinitydc.edu/career/about-study-abroad/  

i.  Licensure pass rates:   

       Nursing/NCLEX: http://www.trinitydc.edu/nursing-health/nursing-accreditation/ 

       Teacher Education/Praxis: http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/education-

masters/#summary-PassRates-om-Praxis_Exams-Title_II_DATA 

        Occupational Therapy/NBCOT:  http://www.trinitydc.edu/nursing-health/ota-

accreditation/ 

 

3. Policies covering satisfactory academic progress (SAP), attendance, and leave of absence 

(URL and/or catalog location). 

Policy on Satisfactory Academic Progress:  http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/satisfactory-

academic-progress/ 

Attendance: 

Class attendance is of vital importance, and excessive absences will affect the student’s 

final grade at the discretion of the faculty. Faculty members are expected to take roll 

regularly. Students receiving financial aid are subject to a federal audit of attendance, and 

thus attendance-taking is a mandatory responsibility of a faculty member. Students bear 

the responsibility of properly notifying their instructors in advance of absences. Students 

are responsible for initiating a meeting with faculty to determine how all work will be 

completed, and for reviewing the attendance policy for each instructor as listed on the 

course syllabus. For undergraduates, absence in any course amounting to one-third or 

more of the class periods may result in a lower grade, including the grade of “F,” at the 

discretion of the faculty member. 

Leave of Absence: 

With the intention of returning to Trinity, undergraduate students may request a leave of 

absence from enrollment for up to two years. Graduate students may request to take a 

leave of absence from enrollment for up to one year. A student taking a leave of absence is 

not required to apply for readmission as long as she/he returns within this time frame. 

Requests for a leave should be initially made through the Academic Dean in which the 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/business/student-refunds/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/accreditation/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/disability/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/career/about-study-abroad/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/nursing-health/nursing-accreditation/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/education-masters/#summary-PassRates-om-Praxis_Exams-Title_II_DATA
http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/education-masters/#summary-PassRates-om-Praxis_Exams-Title_II_DATA
http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/satisfactory-academic-progress/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/satisfactory-academic-progress/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/policies-cas/#III.A
http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/policies-cas/#I.D
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student is enrolled. If the leave of absence begins in the middle of a semester in which a 

student is taking classes, the student must first withdraw from all classes in accordance 

with the policy for course withdrawals. Students on financial aid must have an exit 

interview with a representative of Enrollment Services before the leave of absence is 

approved. Students are responsible for all tuition associated with the course registrations 

and any other fees associated with the college. 

 

4. Written description of the methods used to collect and review information on student 

outcomes and licensure pass rates. 

Trinity collects and reviews student outcomes at the course and program levels in all 

academic units.  The faculty and deans of the units have primary responsibility to review 

student outcomes, and the CAP committees for the units and the university at-large 

oversee the formal processes for outcomes assessment.  The program reviews included 

with the Middle States Self-Study illustrate the ways in which programs collect and review 

information on student outcomes. 

Trinity has several processes in place for continuous review of student outcomes and 

licensure pass rates.  Trinity maintains a student record information system 

(POWERCAMPUS) to store collected student data which the Office of Academic Affairs, 

Office of Enrollment Services, Enrollment Development, and other relevant offices review 

and evaluate on a regular basis.  These offices analyze the data to assess student outcomes 

areas such as academic performance, progression toward degree completion, retention, 

graduation rates, and cohort trends, among others. 

In addition, through its University Committee on Academic Policy (UCAP), the Trinity 

faculty oversees its protocols for academic program review, which include multiple 

measures to assess student outcomes.  UCAP reviews all academic programs on a five-

year cycle; programs holding specialized accreditation may undergo even more stringent 

processes.  Trinity uses a variety of direct and indirect methods to collect and analyze 

information on student outcomes and licensure pass rates; Trinity employs surveys and 

other data sources to collect information about student and alumni outcomes, as well as 

demonstrated achievements of graduates.  

The programs in the School of Education (EDU) and the School of Nursing and Health 

Professions (NHP) monitor the state examination and licensure pass rates for all students 

enrolled in those units. EDU and NHP track student performance on the PRAXIS II and 

NCLEX and NBCOT report outcomes on the university website. 
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5. Documents and URLs for advertising and recruitment materials that are available to 

current and prospective students that show the accreditation status with the Commission 

and any other U.S. Department of Education approved agencies. 

See Trinity website generally at www.trinitydc.edu and the accreditation page 

www.trinitydc.edu/accreditation 

 

 

Standing with State and other Accrediting Agencies 

 

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.28, the Commission must verify that an institution is properly 

authorized or licensed to operate and is in good standing with each state in which it is authorized 

or licensed to operate.  In addition, if the institution has status with a specialized, programmatic, 

or institutional accrediting agency recognized by the U.S. Department of Education, the 

Commission must verify that the institution is in good standing with the agency or agencies. 

 

Institutions must provide the following documentation: 

 

1. Written documentation about the relationships with any specialized, programmatic, or 

institutional accrediting agencies recognized by the U.S. Department of Education and all 

governing or coordinating bodies in the state(s) and countries in which the institution has 

a presence. 

See list of accreditations and licensure relationships here: 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/accreditation/ 

 

2. Written documentation regarding any review resulting in a non-compliance action 

determined by the accrediting agency, state, or country within the past five years. 

 

Due to the NCLEX pass rate, Nursing has conditional approval from the D.C. Board of 

Nursing, see http://www.trinitydc.edu/nursing-health/nursing-accreditation/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/accreditation
http://www.trinitydc.edu/accreditation/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/nursing-health/nursing-accreditation/
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Contractual Relationships 

 

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.22(a)(2)(vii), the Commission is required to review any 

contractual arrangements an institution enters into with an organization that is not certified to 

participate in the Title IV, HEOA programs and offers more than 25 percent of one or more of 

the accredited institution’s educational programs. 

 

As institutions seek to improve the ways in which they provide education to their students, they 

may find it more practical or efficient to contract with other institutions or organizations to 

provide certain components of the educational experience. Any institution accredited by the 

Middle States Commission on Higher Education is held responsible for all activities carried out 

under the institution’s name.  Institutions must provide the following documentation: 

 

1. List of contractual arrangements for education services. 

Trinity has contractual relationships for School of Education programs with: 

New Leaders for New Schools 

Center for Inspired Teaching 

Barrie School 

Trinity also has clinical affiliation relationships with a number of institutions for Nursing, 

Occupational Therapy and Education programs.  The complete list of clinical affiliations is 

available in the Middle States Document Room Compliance Documents (password = 

trinityweb) 

 

2. Written documentation such as policies and procedures or excerpts from contracts 

specifying that the institution is responsible for all required segments of the educational 

service. 

All Trinity contracts for partnership services and clinical affiliation agreements spell out 

Trinity’s responsibility to maintain academic control over the academic components of the 

program.  See the contracts at: http://www.trinitydc.edu/2014-2016-ss-compliance-

documents/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/2014-2016-ss-compliance-documents/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/2014-2016-ss-compliance-documents/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/2014-2016-ss-compliance-documents/
http://www.trinitydc.edu/2014-2016-ss-compliance-documents/
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Assignment of Credit Hours 

 

In accordance with 34 CFR 602.24(f), the Commission “must conduct an effective review and 

evaluation of the reliability and accuracy of the institution’s assignment of credit hours.”  

Specifically, the Commission must review the institution’s policies and procedures for 

determining the credit hours awarded as well as the application of the institution’s policies and 

procedures to its programs and coursework, and make a “reasonable determination of whether 

the institution’s assignment of credit hours conforms to commonly accepted practice in higher 

education.”  

 

The U.S. Department of Education defines “credit hour” as: 

 

“. . .an amount of work represented in intended learning outcomes and verified by evidence of 

student achievement that is an institutionally established equivalency that reasonably 

approximates not less than:  

(1) One hour of classroom or direct faculty instruction and a minimum of two 

hours out-of-class student work for approximately 15 weeks for one 

semester or trimester hour of credit, or 10 to 12 weeks for one quarter 

hour of credit, or the equivalent amount of work over a different amount of 

time; or,  

(2) At least an equivalent amount of work as required in paragraph (1) of this 

definition for other academic activities as established by the institution, 

including laboratory work, internships, practica, studio work, and other 

academic work leading to the award of credit hours.” 

 

Institutions must provide the follow documentation: 

 

1. Written policies and procedures for credit hour assignment covering all types of courses, 

disciplines, programs, degree levels, formats, and modalities of instruction. Include each 

policy that documents the assignment of credit hours specific to the types noted above. 

Specify the location of the policy in the catalog and website. The following should be 

clearly indicated: 

o Academic period ( e.g.,15 weeks plus one week exam over two semesters) 

o Recommended instructional time (e.g., three 50-minute sessions or two 75-minute 

session per week) 

o Recommended out-of-class time requirements (e.g., twice in-class time) 

Trinity’s Credit Hour Policy is available on the website.  This policy statement covers 

all forms of instruction in all academic units and all degree levels. 

 

2. Evidence that the institution’s credit hour policies and procedures are applied consistently 

across the full range of institutional offerings. If the institution is required to obtain 

http://www.trinitydc.edu/policies/credit-hour-policy/
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approval from the relevant State Department of Education, compliance with this 

requirement should be documented. Other evidence  must  include: 

o documentation from recent academic program reviews 

o new course or program approvals  

o documentation for registration software/systems that ensure a consistent schedule 

of courses based on the credit hour assignment  

o academic calendars and/or schedules, and course matrices 

o documentation of adherence to credit hour requirements, consistent with federal 

regulations, from a system, or disciplinary organization; etc. 

Assignment of credit hours to courses and degree programs are available for public view in the 

Academic Catalog: http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/ and in Self-Service:   

https://selfservice.trinitydc.edu/SelfService/Home.aspx 

Assignment of credit hours:  At Trinity, the Office of the Provost, the University-Wide 

Curriculum and Academic Policy Committee (UCAP), the local Curriculum and Academic 

Policy Committees in each academic unit, and disciplinary program chairs oversee assignment 

of credit hours to degree programs and individual courses.  The local CAP committees, in 

collaboration with faculty and deans, review and approve course proposals and syllabi in the 

general education and specialized accreditation curricula; UCAP reviews all cross-unit 

programmatic course offerings; disciplinary program chairs review proposals and syllabi for 

major courses.  All courses and programs are subject to final review in the Provost’s office, 

where the ultimate responsibility for assuring integrity of credit hour assignment resides.   

 

At each level of review, academic representatives ascertain that credit hour requirements 

conform to industry standards and are being met in a particular course or degree program. 

Trinity requires that all syllabi note the number of credit hours required for the course and that 

all degree programs clearly state the number of credit hours required for degree conferral.  

Trinity further mandates that all syllabi are posted in Moodle, the university’s learning 

management system portal (Moodle).   

 

Course descriptions, including credit-hour assignments, are tracked, stored and retrieved using 

PowerCampus, Trinity’s student and academic information system.  Credit hour assignment 

information can be accessed directly in PowerCampus or through Self-Service, Trinity’s student 

portal.  In Self-Service, students may view academic plans for each major and minor in order to 

monitor their progress toward graduation, including credit accumulation. The academic plan 

tracks major requirements, core requirements, and electives, all of which meet Trinity’s credit 

hour requirements. One hundred and twenty-eight semester credit hours are required to achieve 

an undergraduate baccalaureate degree (B.A., B.S., or B.S.N.).  Associate’s degrees vary in 

requirements from 61 to 70 credits, based on discipline, and Master’s degree programs also 

vary, from 36 to 69 credits.   

http://www.trinitydc.edu/catalog-15-16/
https://selfservice.trinitydc.edu/SelfService/Home.aspx
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3. A description and evidence of the processes used by the institution to review periodically 

the application of its policies and procedures for credit hour assignment. Indicate the 

individual(s) and/or entities responsible for the final review and approval. 

In the semester prior to a given sequential academic term, the provost receives draft 

course schedules from the academic units and meets with each dean review courses 

and assure that credit hour requirements are met  (evidence includes the draft review 

schedule produced on a semesterly basis in the Provost’s office). UCAP and the local 

CAP committees each meet monthly to review curricular proposals and academic 

program reviews (evidence includes the collected agenda, meeting minutes and 

approved proposal statements generated by the committee chairs).  The registrar and 

enrollment services enter all credit hour assignments into PowerCampus and are 

responsible for the integrity of Powercampus data, including maintaining updates for 

all academic changes (evidence includes the electronic new course, catalog change, 

and course schedule change forms processes by enrollment services personnel).  In 

all cases, the registrar and provost are responsible for final review and approval of 

credit hours in the course schedule. 

 

4. A list of the courses and programs that do not adhere to the federal definition of credit 

hour or its equivalent as specified in the MSCHE Credit Hour Policy (e.g., online or 

hybrid, laboratory, studio, clinical, internship, independent study, and accelerated format) 

and evidence that such variations in credit hour assignment conform to commonly 

accepted practice in higher education.   

o Each course or program that does not adhere to the federal definition should be 

specified and supporting evidence that it conforms to commonly accepted practice 

should be provided using the criteria described above in Item 2. 

In all undergraduate disciplines, students may complete directed research or 

independent study courses (typically utilizing the numbering system XXX 498 in the 

discipline, with some variances) for 1-4 credits.  Each course proposal is created at 

the program level, and must be reviewed by the Dean, with ultimate review in the 

Provost’s office via the Course Schedule Change Form.  Faculty administering the 

independent study experiences produce syllabi that justify the credit assignment as a 

function of meeting schedules and independent work or projects completed by the 

student over the course of a semester.  Please see attached list for additional courses 

in this category.  
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                   UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION                        
                          WASHINGTON, D.C. 20202                                
                              February 2015                                     
                                                                                
                                                                                
TRINITY COLLEGE                     OPE ID:                          001460     
125 MICHIGAN AVENUE, NORTHEAST      FY 2012 Draft 3 Year Cohort        10.6     
WASHINGTON, DC 20017-1004                    Default Rate:                      
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
SUBJECT:  FISCAL YEAR 2012 DRAFT 3 YEAR COHORT DEFAULT RATE                     
                                                                                
Dear President:                                                                 
                                                                                
I am writing to provide you with your school's fiscal year (FY) 2012 draft      
3-year Cohort Default Rate (CDR) data.  For schools that have one or more       
borrowers that entered into repayment during the FY 2012 period, the            
accompanying loan record detail report (LRDR) includes information on the       
loans made to students for attendance at your school under the Federal          
Family Education Loan (FFEL) Program and/or William D. Ford Federal Direct      
Loan (Direct Loan) Program.  The U.S. Department of Education's                 
(Department) records indicate that all of the loans included in the report      
entered into repayment during the FY 2012 period that includes October 1,       
2011 through September 30, 2012.                                                
                                                                                
If you have questions about accessing or printing files accompanying this       
letter, please contact the Operations Performance Division at (202)             
377-4259 or via email at: fsa.schools.default.management@ed.gov.                
                                                                                
The Default Management website                                                  
(http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/DefaultManagement.html) links to      
the Cohort Default Rate Guide.  This Guide is a primary reference source        
for schools to understand the cohort default rates and processes. You may       
download the Guide in its entirety or by specific chapters as needed.           
                                                                                
After reviewing your draft Loan Record Detail Report, schools have an           
opportunity to challenge the data included in their CDR.   Schools must         
submit their Incorrect Data Challenge, Loan Servicing Appeal, Uncorrected       
Data Adjustment and New Data Adjustment requests using eCDR Appeals. The        
system allows schools to electronically submit these challenges and             
adjustments requests during the cohort default rate cycle, and allows data      
managers and Federal Student Aid (FSA) to electronically view and respond       
to these challenges and adjustments requests.                                   
                                                                                
The system tracks the entire life cycle of each challenge/adjustment/appeal     
request from the time it is submitted until the time a decision is made and     
it is finalized. This process replaces the paper process of challenging and     
appealing CDRs for all Title IV schools.                                        
                                                                                
It is important that schools implement data corrections prior to the            
calculation of FY 2012 3-year official cohort default rates scheduled for       
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later this year.  Chapter 4.1 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide explains the     
Incorrect Data Challenge process timeline that a school should use to           
identify and correct any inaccuracies reflected in the enclosed LRDR.           
                                                                                
Your school has 45 calendar days to challenge the accuracy of the FY 2012       
draft 3-year LRDR.  If your school does not submit the challenge(s) within      
the required timeframes, your school will forfeit its right to submit such      
challenge(s).   School's timeframe to submit challenges begins with the         
sixth business day following the announced transmission date for eCDR           
packages posted to http://www.ifap.ed.gov.                                      
                                                                                
In addition to implementing data corrections, your school may also wish to      
utilize the Department's default prevention support for schools. For            
questions related to default prevention, contact                                
defaultpreventionassistance@ed.gov. For delinquency and default prevention      
resources, refer to the Default Prevention Resource Information Web page        
(http://ifap.ed.gov/DefaultPreventionResourceInfo/).                            
                                                                                
The Department will not release your school's FY 2012 draft 3-year cohort       
default rate to the public.  It is important to note that your school may       
not use its FY 2012 draft 3-year cohort default rate to determine if it is      
eligible for any disbursement exemptions.  Corrected data received through      
the Incorrect Data Challenge process and from other sources will be used by     
the Department to calculate the FY 2012 official 3-year cohort default          
rates in the fall.  At that time, the Department will notify your school of     
its official rate, and additional adjustment/appeal rights that may be          
available to your school.                                                       
                                                                                
If you have any questions about the FY 2012 draft 3-year school cohort          
default rate review process that are not addressed in the Cohort Default        
Rate Guide, please contact the Operations Performance Division at (202)         
377-4259 or via email at fsa.schools.default.management@ed.gov.                 
                                                                                
                                                                                
Sincerely,                                                                      
                                                                                
                                                                                
Katrina Turner                                                                  
Director                                                                        
Operations Performance Management Services                                      
                                                                                
Special note for schools with 29 or fewer borrowers entering repayment for      
the FY 2012 period: Please refer to page 2 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide     
for information regarding the average rate formula and calculation.             
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                   UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION                        
                          WASHINGTON, D.C. 20202                                
                              September 2014                                    
                                                                                
                                                                                
TRINITY COLLEGE                     OPE ID:                          001460     
125 MICHIGAN AVENUE, NORTHEAST      FY 2011 Official 3 Year Cohort     12.7     
WASHINGTON, DC 20017-1004                    Default Rate:                      
                                    Eligible For Benefits                       
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
RE:  FY 2011 3-Year Official Cohort Default Rate Notification Letter            
                                                                                
Dear President:                                                                 
                                                                                
On October 28, 2009, the U.S. Department of Education (Department)              
published in the Federal Register the regulations enacted by the Higher         
Education Opportunity Act of 2009 that will govern the calculation of           
cohort default rates. Under the new provisions, an institution's Cohort         
Default Rate is calculated as the percentage of borrowers in the cohort         
who default before the end of the second fiscal year following the              
fiscal year in which the borrowers entered repayment. This extended the         
length of time in which a student can default from two to three years.          
                                                                                
This year, the fiscal year (FY) 2011 3-Year cohort default rate will be         
the only cohort default rate released.  Schools will be subject to loss         
of eligibility as a result of cohort default rates that exceed sanction         
levels.  Cohort default rates based on the 2-year cohort period ended           
with the FY 2011 2-Year cohort which released in 2013.                          
                                                                                
This letter officially notifies you of your school's FY 2011 3-Year             
cohort default rate based on Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL)               
Program and/or William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan (Direct Loan) Program        
loans made to students for attendance at your school.  Your school's FY         
2011 3-Year cohort default rate is shown above.  Please note that even          
if your school is no longer participating in the student loan                   
program(s), federal law requires the Department to notify your school of        
its cohort default rate.                                                        
                                                                                
Since the Department is no longer mailing hardcopies of the cohort              
default rate notification letters to any schools, please refer to               
http://www.ed.gov/offices/OSFAP/defaultmanagement/ecdr.html for a               
description of the other files that the Department transmitted to you           
along with this letter.                                                         
                                                                                
WHAT FORMULA DID THE DEPARTMENT USE TO CALCULATE MY SCHOOL'S RATE?              
                                                                                
The Department uses one of three methods for calculation of cohort              
default rates:                                                                  
                                                                                
1. Official non-averaged rate for schools with 30 or more borrowers             
   entering repayment,                                                          
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2. Official averaged rate for schools with 29 or fewer borrowers                
   entering repayment,                                                          
3. Unofficial rate for schools with 29 or fewer borrowers entering              
   repayment with less than three years of data.                                
                                                                                
For a complete explanation of the types of rates, please see                    
Chapter 2.1 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide, How the Rates are                 
Calculated, available at                                                        
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart2.html.              
                                                                                
WHAT TYPES OF LOANS DID THE DEPARTMENT INCLUDE IN MY SCHOOL'S RATE              
CALCULATION?                                                                    
                                                                                
The Department included three types of loans in your school's cohort            
default rate calculation:                                                       
                                                                                
1)  Federal Stafford Subsidized and Federal Stafford Unsubsidized Loans         
                                                                                
2)  Federal Direct Subsidized and Federal Direct Unsubsidized Loans             
                                                                                
3)  Federal Supplemental Loans for Students (Federal SLS Loans).                
    Although rare, it is possible for Federal SLS loans to be included          
    in your school's cohort default rate calculation.                           
                                                                                
WHAT LOAN RECORD DETAIL REPORT (LRDR) ACCOMPANIES THIS NOTIFICATION             
LETTER?                                                                         
                                                                                
Your school's FY 2011 3-Year official cohort default rate may be a              
non-averaged rate, an averaged rate, or an Unofficial rate (less than 30        
borrowers entering repayment and not two years of previous data needed          
to calculate an averaged rate). Accordingly, the LRDR that accompanies          
this letter reflects all loans that went into repayment during FY 2011          
and defaulted by September 30, 2013                                             
                                                                                
Please note that if a technical problem caused by the Department results        
in an inability to access the data, schools have five business days from        
the receipt of the eCDR notification package to notify Operations               
Performance Division at the email address given below.  All schools must        
meet the established submission timeframes for cohort default rate              
adjustments and appeals.  The Department will not review adjustments and        
appeals that any school submits outside of the established timeframes.          
                                                                                
For more information on how to read the loan record detail report,              
please refer to Chapter 2.3 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide, Reviewing         
the Loan Record Detail Report, available at                                     
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart2.html               
                                                                                
ARE THERE ANY SANCTIONS OR BENEFITS ASSOCIATED WITH MY RATE?                    
                                                                                
According to the Higher Education Act of 1965 (HEA), as amended, the            
Higher Education Reconciliation Act of 2005 (HERA), Pub.L.109-171 and the       
Department's regulations, your school is not subject to any sanctions           
based on your school's FY 2011 3-Year cohort default rate.  However, if         
your school's official FY 2011 cohort default rate is 30.0 percent or           
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greater, the Department may provisionally certify your school when your         
school applies for recertification to participate in the Federal Student        
Aid Programs.  For more information about provisional certification,            
please refer to 34 C.F.R. Section 668.16(m)(1) and (2)(i) or contact the        
School Participation Management Division at 202-377-3173.                       
                                                                                
WHAT BENEFITS ARE ASSOCIATED WITH MY RATES                                      
                                                                                
Institutions with a cohort default rate of less than 15.0 percent for           
each of the three most recent fiscal years for which data are available,        
including eligible foreign institutions, may disburse, in a single              
installment, loans that are made for one semester, one trimester, one           
quarter, or a four-month period.  Such an institution is also no longer         
required to delay the delivery or disbursement of the first disbursement        
of a loan for 30 days for first-time, first-year undergraduate borrowers.       
Once your school receives notice from the Department that your school's         
official cohort default rate is 15.0 percent or greater, this benefit           
will end within 30 calendar days of the notification.                           
                                                                                
Additionally, if your school's recent official cohort default rate is less      
than 5.0 percent and if your school is an eligible home institution that        
certifies/originates a loan to cover the cost of attendance in a study          
abroad program, your school may disburse/deliver loan proceeds in a             
single installment and may choose to release loan proceeds to first-year,       
first-time borrowers prior to 30 calendar days after the first day of the       
borrower's program of study.  Once your school receives notice from the         
Department that your school's official cohort default rate is 5.0 percent       
or greater, this benefit will end within 30 calendar days of the                
notification.                                                                   
                                                                                
For more information on the sanctions and the benefits associated with          
official cohort default rates, please refer to Chapter 2.4 of the Cohort        
Default Rate Guide, Cohort Default Rate Effects, available at                   
http://ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/04CDRGuidePart2.html.                
                                                                                
WILL MY RATE BE CALCULATED THE SAME IF MY SCHOOL HAS MERGED WITH                
ANOTHER?                                                                        
                                                                                
The FY 2011 3-Year cohort default rate for institutions involved in a           
merger or change of affiliation will be based on all borrowers from the         
parent and the underlying institutions which have borrowers that entered        
repayment during or after 2011.                                                 
                                                                                
WHAT RIGHTS DOES MY SCHOOL HAVE TO APPEAL THIS RATE                             
INFORMATION?                                                                    
                                                                                
Based on your school's FY 2011 3- year cohort default rate, your school         
may be eligible to submit the following adjustments/appeals:                    
                                                                                
Uncorrected Data Adjustment                                                     
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
Loan Servicing Appeal                                                           
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
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New Data Adjustment                                                             
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
All Uncorrected Data Adjustments, New Data Adjustments and Loan Servicing       
Appeal must be made through the eCDR Appeals application.  The eCDR             
Appeals application, as it is known, allows schools to electronically           
submit certain challenge/ adjustment requests during the specified              
timeframes and allows data managers (guaranty agency or Federal Loan            
Servicer) and Federal Student Aid (FSA) personnel to electronically view        
and respond to these challenge/adjustment requests.  The application            
tracks the entire life cycle of each request from the time the case is          
submitted until the time a decision is made and the case is closed.             
                                                                                
It has come to FSA's attention that a number of schools are challenging         
data in the school's cohort default rate based on an incorrect                  
understanding of the cohort default rate calculation.  This results in an       
unnecessary increase in the workload for the schools, data managers, and        
FSA.  The following are some scenarios that have been noted, along with         
an explanation of why these allegations are considered invalid based on         
the current logic for the cohort default rate calculation.                      
                                                                                
-   School requests that borrower be removed from numerator as                  
    borrower defaulted, then paid the loan in full (either through              
    consolidation or another method).  Borrower will continue to be             
    counted as a defaulted borrower for cohort default rate purposes.           
    Current regulations only allow for a defaulted loan to be removed           
    from default for cohort default rate purposes if the borrower               
    successfully rehabilitated the loan within the cohort period, or,           
    for FFELs held by a guaranty agency, if the lender repurchased the          
    loan due to the claim being submitted or paid in error.  See 34             
    CFR Section 668.202(c)(2).                                                  
                                                                                
-   School alleges that borrower be removed from numerator due to an            
    incorrect date entered repayment that is resulting in the default           
    date for the borrower being less than 360 days from the corrected           
    date entered repayment.  This allegation type applies to Direct             
    Loans or loans that were PUT to the Department only, since FFELs            
    held by a guaranty agency use the claim paid date as the default            
    date, not the 360th day of delinquency.  If a data manager agrees           
    to correct the date entered repayment, they will update the                 
    default date to the 360th day of delinquency based on the new date          
    entered repayment.  However, if the updated date entered repayment          
    and default date still fall within the cohort period, the borrower          
    will continue to be counted in both the numerator/denominator.              
    If the updated date entered repayment causes the updated default            
    date to fall outside of the cohort period, borrower will be                 
    removed from the numerator only.  If the updated date entered               
    repayment falls outside of the cohort period, borrower will be              
    removed from both the numerator/denominator.                                
                                                                                
-   Borrower is included in more than one cohort year.  This may be             
    correct, based upon the situation.  If the borrower had a break in          
    enrollment of greater than six months, then the borrower will               
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    enter repayment on the loans from the first period of enrollment            
    six months and one day after the borrower's last date of                    
    attendance (LDA) or less than half-time date (LTHT), then will              
    receive another six month grace period based on the LDA or LTHT             
    date of the second period of enrollment.  This may result in the            
    borrower being included in more than one cohort year.  If the               
    borrower's break in enrollment was less than six months, this is            
    considered continuous enrollment and the borrower should be in              
    only one cohort year.                                                       
                                                                                
-   School was involved in a change of affiliation/merger and has               
    borrowers counted more than once in the cohort default rate.  A             
    borrower may be counted more than once in the school's cohort               
    default rate if the borrower had loans certified under two or more          
    of the OPE-IDs that were involved in the change of                          
    affiliation/merger.  Please see page 2.5-2 of the CDR Guide.                
                                                                                
If a school has any questions regarding the cohort default rate                 
calculation, Chapter 2.1 of the CDR Guide includes a thorough explanation       
of how the rates are calculated.  Additionally, a school involved in a          
change of affiliation/merger should read Chapter 2.5 of the CDR Guide for       
an explanation of how the change of affiliation/merger will affect the          
cohort default rates of all of the schools involved.                            
                                                                                
WHAT TOOLS AND INFORMATION ARE AVAILABLE TO HELP MONITOR AND MANAGE MY          
SCHOOL'S COHORT DEFAULT RATE?                                                   
|------------|-------------------------------------------|--------------|       
|   Tools    |            Description                    |  Contact     |       
| Information|                                           |Information   |       
|------------|-------------------------------------------|--------------|       
|Cohort      |http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/  |May be printed|       
|Default     |finalcdrg.html. Reference tool designed by |from CDR Guide|       
|Rate Guide  |U.S. Dept. of Education to help schools    |link          |       
|            |understand cohort default rates and various|              |       
|            |challenge/appeal/adjustment processes.     |              |       
|            |The electronic version was revised         |              |       
|            |September 2014 and may be found online.    |              |       
|------------|-------------------------------------------|--------------|       
|Default     |http://ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement       |Operations    |       
|Prevention  |/DefaultManagement.html. Contains valuable |Performance   |       
|and Mgmt    |information for schools, guaranty agencies |Division      |       
|Website     |and borrowers.  Contains link for eCDR     |202-377-4259  |       
|            |process, including enrollment procedures   |              |       
|            |and downloading instructions.              |              |       
|------------|-------------------------------------------|--------------|       
|eCDR        |Electronic Cohort Default Rate Appeals     |Operations    |       
|Appeals     |Process                                    |Performance   |       
|            |                                           |Division      |       
|            |eCDR Appeals facilitates the exchange of   |202-377-4259  |       
|            |information between parties for four of the|              |       
|            |challenge/adjustment processes:  Incorrect |              |       
|            |Data Challenge (IDC), Loan Servicing       |              |       
|            |Appeals (LSA), Uncorrected Data            |              |       
|            |Adjustments(UDA), and New Data Adjustments |              |       
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|            |(NDA). The application allows schools to   |              |       
|            |electronically submit these challenges and |              |       
|            |adjustment requests during a cohort default|              |       
|            |rate cycle, and allows data managers       |              |       
|            |(guaranty agency or Direct Loan Servicer)  |              |       
|            |and Federal Student Aid (FSA) personnel to |              |       
|            |electronically view and respond to         |              |       
|            |challenges and adjustment requests. The    |              |       
|            |application tracks the entire life cycle of|              |       
|            |each challenge/adjustment/appeal request   |              |       
|            |from the time the case is submitted until  |              |       
|            |the time a decision is made and the case is|              |       
|            |closed.                                    |              |       
|            |                                           |              |       
|            |All users must complete the registration   |              |       
|            |process to gain access to eCDR Appeals. The|              |       
|            |eCDR Appeals homepage contains a link to   |              |       
|            |the Registration and User Account Guide,   |              |       
|            |which gives step-by-step instructions for  |              |       
|            |registration. Links to  the User Guides for|              |       
|            |the four processes can also be found here, |              |       
|            |as well as a link to the Cohort Default    |              |       
|            |Rate Guide.                                |              |       
|------------|-------------------------------------------|--------------|       
|Late Stage  |Process whereby schools work in            |Direct Loan   |       
|Delinquency |collaboration with servicers or guarantors |Servicer      |       
|Assistance  |to identify and provide counseling to      |888-877-7658  |       
|(LSDA)      |borrowers more than 240 days late on loan  |(can guide you|       
|            |repayment. For Direct loan schools, the    |through the   |       
|            |website https://www.myedaccount.com/       |process)      |       
|            |identifies borrowers whose impending       |              |       
|            |default will impact the school's cohort    |              |       
|            |default rate.                              |              |       
|------------|-------------------------------------------|--------------|       
|National    |https://www.nsldsfap.ed.gov. Offers schools|NSLDS         |       
|Student     |the opportunity to request reports in      |Customer      |       
|Loan Data   |extract or preformatted formats that can be|Service at    |       
|System      |retrieved through the Student Aid Internet |(800) 999-    |       
|(NSLDS)     |Gateway(SAIG) account associated with the  |8219          |       
|            |NSLDS UserID that requested the report.    |              |       
|            |Listed below are some of the reports that  |              |       
|            |NSLDS offers.                              |              |       
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------|       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
| |Report|     Brief Description of the NLSDS Reports                || |       
| |Name  |                                                           || |       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
| |      |School CDR Rate History Report provides school with a copy || |       
| |DRC035|of the Loan Record Detail Report that lists students in    || |       
| |      |default/repayment during the cohort period indicated.      || |       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
| |      | Enrollment Reporting Summary Report provides school users || |       
| |SCHER1| with the chronology of enrollment reporting events.       || |       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
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| |      |Date Entered Repayment Report provides school users with a || |       
| |DER001|list of student borrowers with loan history who are        || |       
| |      |scheduled to go into repayment during a specified date     || |       
| |      |range.                                                     || |       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
| |      |School Repayment Information Loan Detail provides school   || |       
| |DRC015|users with the current repayment status of certain         || |       
| |DRC016|borrowers in FFEL/DL loan programs who attended a school   || |       
| |      |during a specific period.                                  || |       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
| |      |Exit Counseling Report provides school users with exit     || |       
| |SCH01B|counseling information on students who attended the        || |       
| |      |requesting schools and whose anticipated completion dates  || |       
| |      |fall within a specified date range.                        || |       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
| |      |The Delinquent Borrower Report (DELQ01) provides School    || |       
| |DELQ01|users a report of borrowers who have been reported as      || |       
| |      |delinquent in making loan payments to one of the federal   || |       
| |      |loan servicers.                                            || |       
| |------|-----------------------------------------------------------|| |       
| |      |The School Portfolio Report (SCHPR1) provides ED users with|| |       
| |SCHPR1|information about all Direct Loan and/or FFEL program loans|| |       
| |      |for a specified school.                                    || |       
|-|------|-----------------------------------------------------------||-|       
                                                                                
Additional tools and information may be found in Chapter 3.2 of the             
Cohort Default Rate Guide, Monitoring Loan Repayment Status Year-Round,         
available at                                                                    
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart3.html               
                                                                                
If you have any questions about this letter that are not answered in the        
Cohort Default Rate Guide, please contact Operations Performance                
Division, formerly Default Prevention and Management via email at               
FSA.Schools.Default.Management@ed.gov or via phone at (202) 377-4259.           
                                                                                
Please be sure to include your Office of Postsecondary Education                
Identification Number (OPE ID) on all correspondence, as shown on page          
one of this letter.                                                             
                                                                                
Sincerely,                                                                      
                                                                                
Katrina Turner                                                                  
Director                                                                        
Operations Performance Management Services                                      
Business Operations                                                             
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                   UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION                        
                         WASHINGTON, D.C. 20202                                 
                              September 2013                                    
                                                                                
                                                                                
Trinity College                       OPE ID:                        001460     
125 Michigan Avenue, Northeast        FY 2010 3-Year Cohort            14.2     
Washington, DC 20017-1004                     Default Rate:                     
NL01                                                                            
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
RE:  FY 2010 3-Year Official Cohort Default Rate Notification Letter            
                                                                                
Dear President:                                                                 
                                                                                
On October 28, 2009, the U.S. Department of Education (Department)              
published in the Federal Register the regulations enacted by the Higher         
Education Opportunity Act of 2009 that will govern the calculation of           
cohort default rates. Under the new provisions, an institution's Cohort         
Default Rate is calculated as the percentage of borrowers in the cohort who     
default before the end of the second fiscal year following the fiscal year      
in which the borrowers entered repayment. This extends the length of time       
in which a student can default from two to three years.                         
                                                                                
Beginning with the fiscal year (FY) 2009 cohort year, schools received both     
a two and three year cohort default rate. Schools will also receive a two       
and three year cohort default rate this year. It is important to note that      
this year is the last year that two year cohort default rates will be           
released. Next year in 2014, the FY 2011 3-Year cohort default rate will be     
the only cohort default rate released.                                          
                                                                                
This letter officially notifies you of your school's fiscal year (FY) 2010      
3-Year cohort default rate based on Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL)        
Program and/or William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan (Direct Loan) Program        
loans made to students for attendance at your school. Your school's FY 2010     
3-Year cohort default rate is shown above. Please note that even if your        
school is no longer participating in the student loan program(s), federal       
law requires the Department to notify your school of its cohort default         
rate.                                                                           
                                                                                
Since the Department is no longer mailing hardcopies of the cohort default      
rate notification letters to any schools, please refer to                       
http://www.ed.gov/offices/OSFAP/defaultmanagement/ecdr.html for a               
description of the other files that the Department transmitted to you along     
with this letter.                                                               
                                                                                
WHAT FORMULA DID THE DEPARTMENT USE TO CALCULATE MY SCHOOL'S RATE?              
                                                                                
The Department uses one of two methods for calculation of cohort default        
rates:                                                                          
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1.Official non-average rate for schools with 30 or more borrowers entering      
repayment,                                                                      
2.Unofficial rate for schools with 29 or fewer borrowers entering repayment     
with less than three years of data.                                             
                                                                                
For a complete explanation of the types of rates, please see                    
Chapter 2.1 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide, How the Rates are Calculated,     
available at                                                                    
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart2.html.              
                                                                                
WHAT TYPES OF LOANS DID THE DEPARTMENT INCLUDE IN MY SCHOOL'S RATE              
CALCULATION?                                                                    
The Department included three types of loans in your school's cohort            
default rate calculation:                                                       
                                                                                
1)  Federal Stafford Subsidized and Federal Stafford Unsubsidized Loans         
                                                                                
2)  Federal Direct Subsidized and Federal Direct Unsubsidized Loans             
                                                                                
3)  Federal Supplemental Loans for Students (Federal SLS Loans). Although       
rare, it is possible for Federal SLS loans to be included in your school's      
cohort default rate calculation.                                                
                                                                                
WHAT LOAN RECORD DETAIL REPORT (LRDR) ACCOMPANIES THIS NOTIFICATION LETTER?     
                                                                                
Your school's FY 2010 3-Year official cohort default rate may be a non-         
averaged rate, or an Unofficial rate (less than 30 borrowers entering           
repayment). Accordingly, the LRDR that accompanies this letter reflects all     
loans that went into repayment during FY 2010 and defaulted by September        
30, 2012.                                                                       
                                                                                
Please note that if a technical problem caused by the Department results in     
an inability to access the data, schools have five business days from the       
receipt of the eCDR notification package to notify Operations Performance       
Division at the email address given below. All schools must meet the            
established submission timeframes for cohort default rate adjustments and       
appeals. The Department will not review adjustments and appeals that any        
school submits outside of the established timeframes.                           
                                                                                
For more information on how to read the loan record detail report, please       
refer to Chapter 2.3 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide, Reviewing the Loan       
Record Detail Report, available at                                              
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart2.html               
                                                                                
ARE THERE ANY SANCTIONS OR BENEFITS ASSOCIATED WITH MY RATE?                    
                                                                                
There will be no sanctions associated with your school's 3-year cohort          
default rate until three years of 3-Year cohort default rates have been         
collected. This means that the first year that a school will be subject to      
loss of eligibility is fiscal year 2011 which will be released in 2014.         
                                                                                
However, if your school's FY 2010 3-Year cohort default rate is equal to or     
greater than 30 percent you must establish a default prevention task force      
that prepares a plan to identify the factors causing your cohort default        
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rate to exceed 30 percent and submit to the Department for review.              
                                                                                
WILL MY RATE BE CALCULATED THE SAME IF MY SCHOOL HAS MERGED WITH ANOTHER?       
                                                                                
The FY 2010 3-Year cohort default rate for institutions involved in a           
merger or change of affiliation will be based on all borrowers from the         
parent and the underlying institutions which have borrowers that entered        
repayment in FY 2010 (October 1,2009 - September 30,2010).                      
                                                                                
WHAT RIGHTS DOES MY SCHOOL HAVE TO APPEAL THIS RATE                             
INFORMATION?                                                                    
                                                                                
Based on your school's FY 2010 three year cohort default rate, your school      
may be eligible to submit the following adjustments/appeals:                    
                                                                                
Uncorrected Data Adjustment                                                     
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
Loan Servicing Appeal                                                           
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
New Data Adjustment                                                             
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
All Uncorrected Data Adjustments and New Data Adjustments must be made          
through the eCDR Appeals application.  Unless other instructions have been      
provided via an IFAP announcement,the Loan Servicing Appeal will continue       
to be submitted via hard copy. The eCDR Appeals application, as it is           
known, allows schools to electronically submit certain challenge/               
adjustment requests during the specified timeframes and allows data             
managers (guaranty agency or Federal Loan Servicer) and Federal Student Aid     
(FSA) personnel to electronically view and respond to these                     
challenge/adjustment requests.  The application tracks the entire life          
cycle of each request from the time the case is submitted until the time a      
decision is made and the case is closed.                                        
                                                                                
It has come to FSA's attention that a number of schools are challenging         
data in the school's cohort default rate based on an incorrect                  
understanding of the cohort default rate calculation. This results in an        
unnecessary increase in the workload for the schools, data managers, and        
FSA. The following are some scenarios that have been noted, along with an       
explanation of why these allegations are considered invalid based on the        
current logic for the cohort default rate calculation.                          
                                                                                
1.School requests that borrower be removed from numerator as borrower           
defaulted, then paid the loan in full (either through consolidation or          
another method). Borrower will continue to be counted as a defaulted            
borrower for cohort default rate purposes. Current regulations only allow       
for a defaulted loan to be removed from default for cohort default rate         
purposes if the borrower successfully rehabilitated the loan within the         
cohort period, or, for FFELs held by a guaranty agency, if the lender           
repurchased the loan due to the claim being submitted or paid in error. See     
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34 CFR Sections 668.183(c)(2) and 668.202(c)(2).                                
                                                                                
2.School alleges that borrower be removed from numerator due to an              
incorrect date entered repayment that is resulting in the default date for      
the borrower being less than 360 days from the corrected date entered           
repayment. This allegation type applies to Direct Loans or loans that were      
PUT to the Department only, since FFELs held by a guaranty agency use the       
claim paid date as the default date, not the 360th day of delinquency. If a     
data manager agrees to correct the date entered repayment, they will update     
the default date to the 360th day of delinquency based on the new date          
entered repayment. However, if the updated date entered repayment and           
default date still fall within the cohort period, the borrower will             
continue to be counted in both the numerator/denominator. If the updated        
date entered repayment causes the updated default date to fall outside of       
the cohort period, borrower will be removed from the numerator only. If the     
updated date entered repayment falls outside of the cohort period, borrower     
will be removed from both the numerator/denominator.                            
                                                                                
3.Borrower is included in more than one cohort year. This may be correct,       
based upon the situation. If the borrower had a break in enrollment of          
greater than six months, then the borrower will enter repayment on the          
loans from the first period of enrollment six months and one day after the      
borrower's last date of attendance (LDA) or less than half-time date            
(LTHT), then will receive another six month grace period based on the LDA       
or LTHT date of the second period of enrollment. This may result in the         
borrower being included in more than one cohort year. If the borrower's         
break in enrollment was less than six months, this is considered continuous     
enrollment and the borrower should be in only one cohort year.                  
                                                                                
4.School was involved in a change of affiliation/merger and has borrowers       
counted more than once in the cohort default rate. A borrower may be            
counted more than once in the school's cohort default rate if the borrower      
had loans certified under two or more of the OPE-IDs that were involved in      
the change of affiliation/merger. Please see page 2.5-2 of the CDR Guide.       
                                                                                
                                                                                
If a school has any questions regarding the cohort default rate                 
calculation, Chapter 2.1 of the CDR Guide includes a thorough explanation       
of how the rates are calculated. Additionally, a school involved in a           
change of affiliation/merger should read Chapter 2.5 of the CDR Guide for       
an explanation of how the change of affiliation/merger will affect the          
cohort default rates of all of the schools involved.                            
                                                                                
WHAT TOOLS AND INFORMATION ARE AVAILABLE TO HELP MONITOR AND MANAGE MY          
SCHOOL'S COHORT DEFAULT RATE?                                                   
                                                                                
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|   Tools    |                    Description                |Contact    |      
| Information|                                               |Information|      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|Cohort      |http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/      |May be     |      
|Default     |finalcdrg.html. Reference tool designed by U.S.|printed    |      
|Rate Guide  |Dept of Education to help schools understand   |from CDR   |      
|            |cohort default rates and various challenge/    |Guide Link |      
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|            |appeal/adjustment processes. The electronic    |           |      
|            |version was revised September 2013 and may be  |           |      
|            |found online.                                  |           |      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|Default     |http://ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/          |Operations |      
|Prevention  |DefaultManagement.html. Contains valuable      |Performance|      
|and Mgmt    |information for schools, guaranty agencies and |Division   |      
|Website     |borrowers. Contains link for eCDR process,     |202-377-   |      
|            |including enrollment procedures and downloading|4259       |      
|            |instructions.                                  |           |      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
| eCDR       |Electronic Cohort Default Rate Appeals Process |Operations |      
| Appeals    |                                               |Performance|      
|            |eCDR Appeals facilitates the exchange of       |Division   |      
|            |information between parties for three of the   |202-377-   |      
|            |challenge/adjustment processes:Incorrect Data  |4259       |      
|            |Challenge (IDC), Uncorrected Data Adjustments  |           |      
|            |(UDA), and New Data Adjustments (NDA). The     |           |      
|            |application allows schools to electronically   |           |      
|            |submit these challenges and adjustment requests|           |      
|            |during a cohort default rate cycle, and allows |           |      
|            |data managers (guaranty agency or Direct Loan  |           |      
|            |Servicer) and Federal Student Aid (FSA)        |           |      
|            |personnel to electronically view and respond to|           |      
|            |challenges and adjustment requests. The        |           |      
|            |application tracks the entire life cycle of    |           |      
|            |each challenge/adjustment request from the time|           |      
|            |the case is submitted until the time a decision|           |      
|            |is made and the case is closed.                |           |      
|            |                                               |           |      
|            |All users must complete the registration       |           |      
|            |process to gain access to eCDR Appeals. The    |           |      
|            |eCDR Appeals homepage contains a link to the   |           |      
|            |Registration and User Account Guide, which     |           |      
|            |gives step-by-step instructions for            |           |      
|            |registration. Links to the User Guides for the |           |      
|            |three processes can also be found here, as well|           |      
|            |as a link to the Cohort Default Rate Guide.    |           |      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|Late Stage  |Process whereby schools work in collaboration  |Direct Loan|      
|Delinquency |with servicers or guarantors to identify and   |Servicer   |      
|Assistance  |provide counseling to borrowers more than 240  |888-877-   |      
|(LSDA)      |days late on loan repayment. For Direct Loan   |7658 (can  |      
|            |schools, the website https://www.myedaccount.  |guide you  |      
|            |com/ identifies borrowers whose impending      |through the|      
|            |default will impact the school's cohort default|process)   |      
|            |rate.                                          |           |      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|National    |https://www.nlsdsfap.ed.gov. Offers schools the|NLSDS      |      
|Student Loan|opportunity to request reports in extract or   |Customer   |      
|Data System |preformatted formats that can be retrieved     |Service at |      
|(NLSDS)     |through the Students Aid Internet Gateway(SAIG)|(800) 999- |      
|            |account associated with the NLSDS User Id that |8219       |      
|            |requested the report. Listed below are some    |           |      
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|            |reports NLSDS offers.                          |           |      
||----------------------------------------------------------------------||      
||Report  |  Brief Description of the NLSDS Reports                     ||      
||name    |                                                             ||      
||--------|-------------------------------------------------------------||      
||        |School CDR Rate History Report provides school with a copy   ||      
|| DRC035 |of the Loan Record Detail Report that lists students in      ||      
||        |default/repayment during the cohort period indicated.        ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |Enrollment Reporting Summary Report provides school users    ||      
|| SCHER1 |with the chronology of enrollment reporting events.          ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |Date Entered Repayment Report provides school users with a   ||      
|| DER001 |list of student borrowers with loan history who are          ||      
||        |scheduled to go into repayment during a specified date range.||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |School Repayment Information Loan Detail provides school     ||      
|| DRC015 |users with the current repayment status of certain borrowers ||      
|| DRC016 |in FFEL/DL loan programs who attended a school during a      ||      
||        |specific period.                                             ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |Exit Counseling Report provides school users with exit       ||      
|| SCH01B |counseling information on students who attended the          ||      
||        |requesting school and whose anticipated completion dates fall||      
||        |within a specified date range.                               ||      
||--------|-------------------------------------------------------------||      
||        |The Delinquent Borrower Report (DELQ01) provides School users||      
|| DELQ01 |a report of borrowers who have been reported as delinquent in||      
||        |making loan payments to one of the federal loan servicers.   ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |The School Portfolio Report (SCHPR1) provides ED users with  ||      
|| SCHPR1 |with information about all Direct Loan and/or FFEL program   ||      
||        |loans for a specified school.                                ||      
|---------|--------------------------------------------------------------|      
                                                                                
Additional tools and information may be found in Chapter 3.2 of the Cohort      
Default Rate Guide, Monitoring Loan Repayment Status Year-Round, available      
at http://ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart3.html.               
                                                                                
If you have any questions about this letter that are not answered in the        
Cohort Default Rate Guide, please contact Operations Performance Division       
via email at FSA.Schools.Default.Management@ed.gov or via phone at (202)        
377-4259.                                                                       
                                                                                
Please be sure to include your Office of Postsecondary Education                
Identification Number (OPE ID) on all correspondence, as shown on page one      
of this letter.                                                                 
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
Sincerely,                                                                      
                                                                                
                                                                                
Katrina Turner                                                                  
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Director                                                                        
Operations Performance Management Services                                      
Business Operations                                                             
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                   UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION                        
                         WASHINGTON, D.C. 20202                                 
                              September 2012                                    
                                                                                
                                                                                
Trinity College                       OPE ID:                        001460     
125 Michigan Avenue, Northeast        FY 2009 3-Year Cohort            13.1     
Washington, DC 20017-1004                     Default Rate:                     
NL01                                                                            
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
RE:  FY 2009 3-Year Official Cohort Default Rate Notification Letter            
                                                                                
Dear President:                                                                 
                                                                                
On October 28, 2009, the U.S. Department of Education (Department)              
published in the Federal Register the regulations enacted by the Higher         
Education Opportunity Act of 2009 that will govern the calculation of           
cohort default rates. Under the new provisions, an institution's Cohort         
Default Rate is calculated as the percentage of borrowers in the cohort who     
default before the end of the second fiscal year following the fiscal year      
in which the borrowers entered repayment. This extends the length of time       
in which a student can default from two to three years. Beginning with the      
fiscal year (FY) 2009 cohort year, schools will receive both a two and          
three year cohort default rate. Schools will continue to receive two rates      
until 2014 when the FY 2011 3-Year cohort default rates are released.           
                                                                                
This letter officially notifies you of your school's fiscal year (FY) 2009      
3-Year cohort default rate based on Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL)        
Program and/or William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan (Direct Loan) Program        
loans made to students for attendance at your school. Your school's FY 2009     
3-Year cohort default rate is shown above. Please note that even if your        
school is no longer participating in the student loan program(s), federal       
law requires the Department to notify your school of its cohort default         
rate.                                                                           
                                                                                
Since the Department is no longer mailing hardcopies of the cohort default      
rate notification letters to any schools, please refer to                       
http://www.ed.gov/offices/OSFAP/defaultmanagement/ecdr.html for a               
description of the other files that the Department transmitted to you along     
with this letter.                                                               
                                                                                
WHAT FORMULA DID THE DEPARTMENT USE TO CALCULATE MY SCHOOL'S RATE?              
                                                                                
The Department uses one of two methods for calculation of cohort default        
rates:                                                                          
                                                                                
1.Official non-average rate for schools with 30 or more borrowers entering      
repayment,                                                                      
2.Unofficial rate for schools with 29 or fewer borrowers entering repayment     
with less than three years of data.                                             
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For a complete explanation of the types of rates, please see                    
Chapter 2.1 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide, How the Rates are Calculated,     
available at                                                                    
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart2.html.              
                                                                                
WHAT TYPES OF LOANS DID THE DEPARTMENT INCLUDE IN MY SCHOOL'S RATE              
CALCULATION?                                                                    
                                                                                
The Department included three types of loans in your school's cohort            
default rate calculation:                                                       
                                                                                
1)  Federal Stafford Subsidized and Federal Stafford Unsubsidized Loans         
                                                                                
2)  Federal Direct Subsidized and Federal Direct Unsubsidized Loans             
                                                                                
3)  Federal Supplemental Loans for Students (Federal SLS Loans). Although       
rare, it is possible for Federal SLS loans to be included in your school's      
cohort default rate calculation.                                                
                                                                                
WHAT LOAN RECORD DETAIL REPORT (LRDR) ACCOMPANIES THIS NOTIFICATION LETTER?     
                                                                                
Your school's FY 2009 3-Year official cohort default rate may be a non-         
averaged rate, or an Unofficial rate (less than 30 borrowers entering           
repayment). Accordingly, the LRDR that accompanies this letter reflects all     
loans that went into repayment during FY 2009 and defaulted by September        
30, 2011.                                                                       
                                                                                
Please note that if a technical problem caused by the Department results in     
an inability to access the data, schools have five business days from the       
receipt of the eCDR notification package to notify Operations Performance       
Division at the email address given below. All schools must meet the            
established submission timeframes for cohort default rate adjustments and       
appeals. The Department will not review adjustments and appeals that any        
school submits outside of the established timeframes.                           
                                                                                
For more information on how to read the loan record detail report, please       
refer to Chapter 2.3 of the Cohort Default Rate Guide, Reviewing the Loan       
Record Detail Report, available at                                              
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart2.html               
                                                                                
ARE THERE ANY SANCTIONS OR BENEFITS ASSOCIATED WITH MY RATE?                    
                                                                                
There will be no sanctions associated with your school's 3-year cohort          
default rate until three years of 3-Year cohort default rates have been         
collected. This means that the first year that a school will be subject to      
loss of eligibility is fiscal year 2011 which will be released in 2014.         
                                                                                
However, if your school's FY 2009 3-Year cohort default rate is equal to or     
greater than 30 percent you must establish a default prevention task force      
that prepares a plan to identify the factors causing your cohort default        
rate to exceed 30 percent and submit to the Department for review.              
                                                                                
WILL MY RATE BE CALCULATED THE SAME IF MY SCHOOL HAS MERGED WITH ANOTHER?       
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The FY 2009 3-Year cohort default rate for institutions involved in a           
merger or change of affiliation will be based on all borrowers from the         
parent and the underlying institutions which have borrowers that entered        
repayment during or after 2009.                                                 
                                                                                
WHAT RIGHTS DOES MY SCHOOL HAVE TO APPEAL THIS RATE                             
INFORMATION?                                                                    
                                                                                
Based on your school's FY 2009 three year cohort default rate, your school      
may be eligible to submit the following adjustments/appeals:                    
                                                                                
Uncorrected Data Adjustment                                                     
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
Loan Servicing Appeal                                                           
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
New Data Adjustment                                                             
http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart4.html               
                                                                                
                                                                                
All Uncorrected Data Adjustments and New Data Adjustments must be made          
through the eCDR Appeals application.  Unless other instructions have been      
provided via an IFAP announcement,the Loan Servicing Appeal will continue       
to be submitted via hard copy. The eCDR Appeals application, as it is           
known, allows schools to electronically submit certain challenge/               
adjustment requests during the specified timeframes and allows data             
managers (guaranty agency or Federal Loan Servicer) and Federal Student Aid     
(FSA) personnel to electronically view and respond to these                     
challenge/adjustment requests.  The application tracks the entire life          
cycle of each request from the time the case is submitted until the time a      
decision is made and the case is closed.                                        
                                                                                
It has come to FSA's attention that a number of schools are challenging         
data in the school's cohort default rate based on an incorrect                  
understanding of the cohort default rate calculation. This results in an        
unnecessary increase in the workload for the schools, data managers, and        
FSA. The following are some scenarios that have been noted, along with an       
explanation of why these allegations are considered invalid based on the        
current logic for the cohort default rate calculation.                          
                                                                                
1.School requests that borrower be removed from numerator as borrower           
defaulted, then paid the loan in full (either through consolidation or          
another method). Borrower will continue to be counted as a defaulted            
borrower for cohort default rate purposes. Current regulations only allow       
for a defaulted loan to be removed from default for cohort default rate         
purposes if the borrower successfully rehabilitated the loan within the         
cohort period, or, for FFELs held by a guaranty agency, if the lender           
repurchased the loan due to the claim being submitted or paid in error. See     
34 CFR Sections 668.183(c)(2) and 668.202(c)(2).                                
                                                                                
2.School alleges that borrower be removed from numerator due to an              
incorrect date entered repayment that is resulting in the default date for      
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the borrower being less than 360 days from the corrected date entered           
repayment. This allegation type applies to Direct Loans or loans that were      
PUT to the Department only, since FFELs held by a guaranty agency use the       
claim paid date as the default date, not the 360th day of delinquency. If a     
data manager agrees to correct the date entered repayment, they will update     
the default date to the 360th day of delinquency based on the new date          
entered repayment. However, if the updated date entered repayment and           
default date still fall within the cohort period, the borrower will             
continue to be counted in both the numerator/denominator. If the updated        
date entered repayment causes the updated default date to fall outside of       
the cohort period, borrower will be removed from the numerator only. If the     
updated date entered repayment falls outside of the cohort period, borrower     
will be removed from both the numerator/denominator.                            
                                                                                
3.Borrower is included in more than one cohort year. This may be correct,       
based upon the situation. If the borrower had a break in enrollment of          
greater than six months, then the borrower will enter repayment on the          
loans from the first period of enrollment six months and one day after the      
borrower's last date of attendance (LDA) or less than half-time date            
(LTHT), then will receive another six month grace period based on the LDA       
or LTHT date of the second period of enrollment. This may result in the         
borrower being included in more than one cohort year. If the borrower's         
break in enrollment was less than six months, this is considered continuous     
enrollment and the borrower should be in only one cohort year.                  
                                                                                
4.School was involved in a change of affiliation/merger and has borrowers       
counted more than once in the cohort default rate. A borrower may be            
counted more than once in the school's cohort default rate if the borrower      
had loans certified under two or more of the OPE-IDs that were involved in      
the change of affiliation/merger. Please see page 2.5-2 of the CDR Guide.       
                                                                                
                                                                                
If a school has any questions regarding the cohort default rate                 
calculation, Chapter 2.1 of the CDR Guide includes a thorough explanation       
of how the rates are calculated. Additionally, a school involved in a           
change of affiliation/merger should read Chapter 2.5 of the CDR Guide for       
an explanation of how the change of affiliation/merger will affect the          
cohort default rates of all of the schools involved.                            
                                                                                
WHAT TOOLS AND INFORMATION ARE AVAILABLE TO HELP MONITOR AND MANAGE MY          
SCHOOL'S COHORT DEFAULT RATE?                                                   
                                                                                
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|   Tools    |                    Description                |Contact    |      
| Information|                                               |Information|      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|Cohort      |http://www.ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/      |May be     |      
|Default     |finalcdrg.html. Reference tool designed by U.S.|printed    |      
|Rate Guide  |Dept of Education to help schools understand   |from CDR   |      
|            |cohort default rates and various challenge/    |Guide Link |      
|            |appeal/adjustment processes. Original hardcopy |           |      
|            |mailed with FY 1999 notification letter. The   |           |      
|            |electronic version was revised January 2012 and|           |      
|            |may be found online.                           |           |      
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|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|Default     |http://ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/          |Operations |      
|Prevention  |DefaultManagement.html. Contains valuable      |Performance|      
|and Mgmt    |information for schools, guaranty agencies and |Division   |      
|Website     |borrowers. Contains link for eCDR process,     |202-377-   |      
|            |including enrollment procedures and downloading|4259       |      
|            |instructions.                                  |           |      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
| eCDR       |Electronic Cohort Default Rate Appeals Process |Operations |      
| Appeals    |                                               |Performance|      
|            |eCDR Appeals facilitates the exchange of       |Division   |      
|            |information between parties for three of the   |202-377-   |      
|            |challenge/adjustment processes:Incorrect Data  |4259       |      
|            |Challenge (IDC), Uncorrected Data Adjustments  |           |      
|            |(UDA), and New Data Adjustments (NDA). The     |           |      
|            |application allows schools to electronically   |           |      
|            |submit these challenges and adjustment requests|           |      
|            |during a cohort default rate cycle, and allows |           |      
|            |data managers (guaranty agency or Direct Loan  |           |      
|            |Servicer) and Federal Student Aid (FSA)        |           |      
|            |personnel to electronically view and respond to|           |      
|            |challenges and adjustment requests. The        |           |      
|            |application tracks the entire life cycle of    |           |      
|            |each challenge/adjustment request from the time|           |      
|            |the case is submitted until the time a decision|           |      
|            |is made and the case is closed.                |           |      
|            |                                               |           |      
|            |All users must complete the registration       |           |      
|            |process to gain access to eCDR Appeals. The    |           |      
|            |eCDR Appeals homepage contains a link to the   |           |      
|            |Registration and User Account Guide, which     |           |      
|            |gives step-by-step instructions for            |           |      
|            |registration. Links to the User Guides for the |           |      
|            |three processes can also be found here, as well|           |      
|            |as a link to the Cohort Default Rate Guide.    |           |      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|Late Stage  |Process whereby schools work in collaboration  |Direct Loan|      
|Delinquency |with servicers or guarantors to identify and   |Servicer   |      
|Assistance  |provide counseling to borrowers more than 240  |888-877-   |      
|(LSDA)      |days late on loan repayment. For Direct Loan   |7658 (can  |      
|            |schools, the website https://www.myedaccount.  |guide you  |      
|            |com/ identifies borrowers whose impending      |through the|      
|            |default will impact the school's cohort default|process)   |      
|            |rate.                                          |           |      
|------------|-----------------------------------------------|-----------|      
|National    |https://www.nlsdsfap.ed.gov. Offers schools the|NLSDS      |      
|Student Loan|opportunity to request reports in extract or   |Customer   |      
|Data System |preformatted formats that can be retrieved     |Service at |      
|(NLSDS)     |through the Students Aid Internet Gateway(SAIG)|(800) 999- |      
|            |account associated with the NLSDS User Id that |8219       |      
|            |requested the report. Listed below are some    |           |      
|            |reports NLSDS offers.                          |           |      
||----------------------------------------------------------------------||      
||Report  |  Brief Description of the NLSDS Reports                     ||      
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||name    |                                                             ||      
||--------|-------------------------------------------------------------||      
||        |School CDR Rate History Report provides school with a copy   ||      
|| DRC035 |of the Loan Record Detail Report that lists students in      ||      
||        |default/repayment during the cohort period indicated.        ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |Enrollment Reporting Summary Report provides school users    ||      
|| SCHER1 |with the chronology of enrollment reporting events.          ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |Date Entered Repayment Report provides school users with a   ||      
|| DER001 |list of student borrowers with loan history who are          ||      
||        |scheduled to go into repayment during a specified date range.||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |School Repayment Information Loan Detail provides school     ||      
|| DRC015 |users with the current repayment status of certain borrowers ||      
|| DRC016 |in FFEL/DL loan programs who attended a school during a      ||      
||        |specific period.                                             ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |Exit Counseling Report provides school users with exit       ||      
|| SCH01B |counseling information on students who attended the          ||      
||        |requesting school and whose anticipated completion dates fall||      
||        |within a specified date range.                               ||      
||--------|-------------------------------------------------------------||      
||        |The Delinquent Borrower Report (DELQ01) provides School users||      
|| DELQ01 |a report of borrowers who have been reported as delinquent in||      
||        |making loan payments to one of the federal loan servicers.   ||      
||--------|------------------------------------------------------------ ||      
||        |The School Portfolio Report (SCHPR1) provides ED users with  ||      
|| SCHPR1 |with information about all Direct Loan and/or FFEL program   ||      
||        |loans for a specified school.                                ||      
|---------|--------------------------------------------------------------|      
                                                                                
Additional tools and information may be found in Chapter 3.2 of the Cohort      
Default Rate Guide, Monitoring Loan Repayment Status Year-Round, available      
at http://ifap.ed.gov/DefaultManagement/guide/CDRGuidePart3.html.               
                                                                                
If you have any questions about this letter that are not answered in the        
Cohort Default Rate Guide, please contact Operations Performance Division       
via email at FSA.Schools.Default.Management@ed.gov or via phone at (202)        
377-4259.                                                                       
                                                                                
Please be sure to include your Office of Postsecondary Education                
Identification Number (OPE ID) on all correspondence, as shown on page one      
of this letter.                                                                 
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                             Sincerely,                                         
                                                                                
                             Katrina Turner                                     
                             Director                                           
                             Operations Performance Management Services         
                             Business Operations                                
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Your Success is Our Focus


319 McClanahan Street, S.W. • P.O. Box 12388 • Roanoke, VA 24025-2388 • 540-345-0936 • Fax: 540-342-6181 • www.BEcpas.com


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College
Washington, D.C.


Report on the Financial Statements


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Trinity College, which comprise the 
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of activities
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions.


Opinion


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Trinity College as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.
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Other Matters


Other Information


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates 
directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 26, 2015, on our consideration of Trinity College’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements,
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Trinity College’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
January 26, 2015







2014 2013


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 14,011,244$   6,776,030$     


Receivables and other assets, net of allowance for doubtful accounts


2014 $403,500; 2013 $506,000 (Note 2) 1,924,820       2,173,940       


Notes receivable, government student loans, net of allowance for 


doubtful accounts 1,488,355       1,476,467       


Contributions receivable (Note 3) 7,720,297       6,662,276       


Investments (Note 4) 43,029,357     37,599,461     


Land, buildings, and equipment, net of accumulated


depreciation (Notes 5 and 7) 21,522,255     20,503,162     


Funds held in trust by others (Note 6) 11,783,116     10,979,536     


Total assets 101,479,444$ 86,170,872$   


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Accounts payable and accrued expenses 930,882$        781,346$        


Accrued wages and benefits 527,144          573,733          


Deferred revenues and deposits 1,748,880       1,728,890       


U.S. government grants refundable 1,380,985       1,349,523       


Asset retirement obligations 1,155,014       1,101,062       


Interest rate swap (Note 7) 328,941          1,420,610       


Debt (Note 7) 17,544,466     16,199,795     


Total liabilities 23,616,312     23,154,959     


Net assets (Note 8)


Unrestricted 35,165,309     31,384,478     


Temporarily restricted 22,295,212     12,175,596     


Permanently restricted 20,402,611     19,455,839     


Total net assets 77,863,132     63,015,913     


Total liabilities and net assets 101,479,444$ 86,170,872$   


STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013


TRINITY COLLEGE


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.
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Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees 37,313,312$  -$              -$              37,313,312$  
Less financial aid (9,334,978)    -                -                (9,334,978)    


Net tuition and fees (Note 9) 27,978,334    -                -                27,978,334    
Gifts 700,197         518,567         -                1,218,764      
Investment income, endowment, and


other (Note 4) -               552,609         -                552,609         
Interest income – temporary investments 128,095         56,142           -                184,237         
Government and private grants 288,388         -                -                288,388         
Auxiliary services 3,568,436      -                -                3,568,436      
Other revenues 222,401         -                -                222,401         
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 1,397,564      (1,397,564)    -                -                


Total operating revenues 34,283,415    (270,246)       -                34,013,169    


OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and general:


Instruction 10,541,498    -                -                10,541,498    
Public service 28,263           -                -                28,263           
Academic support 3,942,768      -                -                3,942,768      
Student services 4,569,805      -                -                4,569,805      
Institutional support 8,717,366      -                -                8,717,366      


Auxiliary services 3,585,183      -                -                3,585,183      


Total operating expenses (Note 11) 31,384,883    -                -                31,384,883    


Change in net assets, operating 2,898,532      (270,246)       -                2,628,286      


NON-OPERATING INCOME
Gifts and private grants 873,730         9,000,117      86,890           9,960,737      
Interest income 3,823             4,699             -                8,522             
Investment return, net of amount available


to support current operations (Note 4) 369,993         1,385,046      -                1,755,039      
Change in fair value of swap agreement (134,331)       -                -                (134,331)       
Change in value of funds held in trust by others -                -                803,580         803,580         
Change in value of charitable remainder trust -                -                56,302           56,302           
Other 24,419           -                -                24,419           
Loss on extinguishment of bond (255,335)       -                -                (255,335)       
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) -                -                -                -                


Change in net assets, non-operating 882,299         10,389,862    946,772         12,218,933    


Change in net assets 3,780,831      10,119,616    946,772         14,847,219    


NET ASSETS
Beginning 31,384,478    12,175,596    19,455,839    63,015,913    


Ending 35,165,309$  22,295,212$  20,402,611$  77,863,132$  


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2014


2014


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.
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Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees 38,733,825$  -$              -$              38,733,825$  
Less financial aid (8,593,208)    -                -                (8,593,208)    


Net tuition and fees (Note 9) 30,140,617    -                -                30,140,617    
Gifts 886,512         540,649         -                1,427,161      
Investment income, endowment, and


other (Note 4) -               521,368         -                521,368         
Interest income – temporary investments 131,622         57,035           -                188,657         
Government and private grants 329,698         -                -                329,698         
Auxiliary services 3,420,687      -                -                3,420,687      
Other revenues 283,005         -                -                283,005         
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 881,281         (881,281)       -                -                


Total operating revenues 36,073,422    237,771         -                36,311,193    


OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and general:


Instruction 10,412,026    -                -                10,412,026    
Public service 32,867           -                -                32,867           
Academic support 3,666,091      -                -                3,666,091      
Student services 4,711,135      -                -                4,711,135      
Institutional support 8,539,901      -                -                8,539,901      


Auxiliary services 3,425,772      -                -                3,425,772      


Total operating expenses (Note 11) 30,787,792    -                -                30,787,792    


Change in net assets, operating 5,285,630      237,771         -                5,523,401      


NON-OPERATING INCOME
Gifts and private grants 268,577         6,627,902      160,330         7,056,809      
Interest income 217                1,870             -                2,087             
Investment return, net of amount available


to support current operations (Note 4) (30,773)         469,249         5,223             443,699         
Change in fair value of swap agreement 512,401         -                -                512,401         
Change in value of funds held in trust by others -                -                767,353         767,353         
Change in value of charitable remainder trust -                -                23,653           23,653           
Other (1,444)           -                -                (1,444)           
Loss on extinguishment of bond -                -                -                -                
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 291,348         (291,348)       -                -                


Change in net assets, non-operating 1,040,326      6,807,673      956,559         8,804,558      


Change in net assets 6,325,956      7,045,444      956,559         14,327,959    


NET ASSETS
Beginning 25,058,522    5,130,152      18,499,280    48,687,954    


Ending 31,384,478$  12,175,596$  19,455,839$  63,015,913$  


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2013


2013


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.
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2014 2013


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 14,847,219$ 14,327,959$
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by


operating activities:
Non-operating and noncash items:


Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (962,853)      (203,912)      
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement 134,331       (512,401)      
Contributions restricted for plant expansion and endowment (8,060,287)   (665,511)      
Change in funds held by others (803,580)      (767,353)      
Loss on disposal of fixed assets -               1,444           
Depreciation and amortization 1,084,257    1,022,686    


Change in certain operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:


Receivables and other assets 249,120       154,830       
Contributions receivable (1,058,021)   (6,146,374)   


(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 237,732       (9,647)          
Accrued wages and benefits (46,589)        10,338         
Deferred revenues and deposits 19,990         (76,860)        
Asset retirement obligations 53,952         51,432         
U.S. government grants refundable 31,462         19,829         


Net cash provided by operating activities 5,726,733    7,206,460    


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Student loans advanced (262,370)      (239,920)      
Student loans collected 250,482       132,644       
Purchases of land, buildings, and equipment, net of accounts payable


and debt incurred (567,791)      (986,444)      
Change in investments, net of proceeds from sales (4,467,044)   (7,145,633)   


Net cash used in investing activities (5,046,723)   (8,239,353)   


CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from contributions restricted for plant expansion and endowment 8,060,287    665,511       
Extinguishment of swap agreement (1,226,000)   -               
Proceeds from issuance of new debt 17,082,610  -               


Less payoff of debt with proceeds (15,072,367) -               
Less new debt incurred to finance construction in progress (1,597,305)   -               
Less new capital lease obligation (21,523)        -               


Payments of debt (670,498)      (650,708)      


Net cash provided by financing activities 6,555,204    14,803         


Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,235,214    (1,018,090)   


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning 6,776,030    7,794,120    


Ending 14,011,244$ 6,776,030$  


(Continued)


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013


 The Notes to Financial Statements are


   an integral part of these statements.
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2014 2013


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013


SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest, net of amounts capitalized 2014 $17,217; 2013 $-0- 594,968$     758,893$     


SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON CASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Early termination of capital lease due to the return of fixed assets -$             21,440$       


Fixed assets purchases included in accounts payable -$             88,196$       


Debt incurred to finance construction in progress 1,597,305$  -$             


Assets acquired under capital lease 21,523$       -$             


Debt refinanced through issuance of new debt 15,072,367$ -$             


 The Notes to Financial Statements are


   an integral part of these statements.
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TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014


(Continued) 10


Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies


Trinity College (the “College”) is an independent, comprehensive College located in Washington, D.C.  
The College was founded in 1897 by the Sisters of Notre Dame De Namur and in accordance with the 
Act of Congress under which the College is chartered.  The College includes the historic undergraduate 
women’s college (the College of Arts and Sciences) and the coeducational schools of Education, 
Professional Studies, and Nursing and Health Professions. The Board of Trustees governs the College
and is responsible for all management and policy making of the College.


The Board approved the adoption of the name “Trinity University (Washington, D.C.)” as an enterprise 
name and under which it conducts operations.  The Board adopted this change in recognition of the fact 
that Trinity’s operations are characteristic of institutions recognized as universities.  To further 
distinguish Trinity in print material, Trinity refers to itself as Trinity Washington University.  The Board 
decided that “Trinity College” would continue as the official legal name of the institution.  Notice was 
provided to the Education Licensing Commission in accordance with D.C. Code.


The College is accredited by the Commission on Higher Education of the Middle States Association of 
Colleges and Schools.  The School of Education is accredited by the National Council for Accreditation 
of Teacher Education. Trinity’s nursing program is accredited by the Commission on Collegiate 
Nursing Education.


The significant accounting policies followed by the College are described below:


Basis of financial statement presentation and accounting:


The financial statements of the College have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates.


The accompanying financial statements present information regarding the College’s financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and 
permanently restricted.  The three classes are differentiated based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions, as described below:


Unrestricted net assets are free of donor-imposed restrictions.  Unrestricted net assets may be 
designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited 
by contractual agreements with outside parties. Revenues, gains, and losses that are not 
temporarily or permanently restricted by donors are included in this classification.  Expenses are 
reported as decreases in this classification.


Temporarily restricted net assets are limited in use by donor-imposed stipulations that expire 
either by the passage of time or that can be fulfilled by action of the College pursuant to those 
stipulations.


Permanently restricted net assets are amounts required by donors to be held in perpetuity; 
however, generally the income on these assets is available to meet various restricted and other 
operating needs.  These net assets primarily include permanent endowment funds.







TRINITY COLLEGE
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Cash and cash equivalents:


The College considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.  Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates 
market value.  Cash held for long-term investment is classified as investments or funds designated for 
investment in land, buildings, and equipment.


Cash and cash equivalents include bond project funds and funds related to the federal student loan 
program totaling approximately $377,000 and $745,000 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.


Checks written on the College’s zero balance accounts of approximately $489,000 and $259,000 are 
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.


The College follows the common cash management practice of consolidating certain of its operating 
cash and cash equivalent accounts, which includes various designated and restricted current operating 
and plant accounts.  As a result of this practice, cash and cash equivalents specifically associated with 
the original gift of certain designated and restricted monies can be spent from the consolidated 
account.  When this occurs, the activity is accounted for by maintaining receivables and payables 
between the net asset classes. The College has sufficient unrestricted funds included in the 
consolidated account to cover the designated or restricted monies spent. 


Accounts receivable:


Accounts receivable consist of student accounts receivable, consortium receivables, grants receivable, 
and other receivables and are reflected at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts based on 
historical collection experience of the College, as applicable.  Receivables outstanding at the end of a 
semester are considered past due.  The College does not charge interest on outstanding balances and 
receivables over two years old are written off.  As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the College has student 
receivables, net of allowance, from non-current semesters of approximately $683,000 and $728,000, 
respectively.


Investments:


Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt 
securities are reported at their fair values.  The fair value of investments in equities, bonds, U.S. 
government securities, and short-term assets is determined by reference to quoted market prices and 
other relevant information generated by market transactions.  Net unrealized and realized gains or losses 
are reflected in the statements of activities.  


Gifts of investments are recorded at their fair value (based upon quotations or appraisals) at the date of 
gift.  Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the trade date.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Investments:  (Continued)


Income, and realized and unrealized net gains, on investments of endowment and similar net asset 
classes are reported as follows:


 As increases in permanently restricted net assets if the terms of the gift require that they be 
added to the principal of a permanent endowment fund;


 As increases in temporarily restricted net assets if the terms of the gift impose restrictions on the 
use of the income, including income earned on donor-restricted endowment funds;


 As increases in unrestricted net assets in all other cases.


The College has various investment vehicles that the carrying value fluctuates with the financial 
markets.  As a result, the value of such investments as of the date of this report may be materially 
different than year end values.


Land, buildings, and equipment:


Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of 
gift, less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets.


Equipment is removed from the records and any gain or loss is recognized at the time of disposal. 
Expenditures for new construction, major renewals and replacements, and equipment exceeding $5,000 
are capitalized.


Construction in progress is carried at cost incurred to date and, when completed, is transferred to the 
appropriate land, buildings, or equipment category and is depreciated in accordance with the College’s 
policies.


The College recognizes costs related to major maintenance activities as costs are incurred.


The College capitalizes interest costs as part of the construction costs of buildings where it relates to the 
financing of major projects under development.


Accrued compensation:


The College accrues for salaries and all other compensation earned but not paid.


Student and other deposits:


Deposits and student fees applicable to academic sessions subsequent to the current year are deferred 
and recognized as revenues in subsequent periods.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Notes receivable and U.S. government grants refundable:


The College participates in the Federal Perkins Loan Program sponsored by the United States 
Government.  Under this program, funds are loaned to qualified students and may be re-loaned after 
collection.  Student loan receivables related to this program are recorded as notes receivable.  The 
portion of those funds contributed by the U.S. government (that is, exclusive of the College’s match 
funds) is ultimately refundable to the government and, accordingly, are recorded as a liability, U.S. 
government grants refundable.


The College accounts for its notes receivable at cost and recognizes interest income as it is earned.  An 
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on prior collection history and individual circumstances of the 
borrower.  Notes are considered past due after 30-45 days and accrue interest until written off when 
considered uncollectible.


Bond discount:


Bond discount, for Series 2001, was amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related 
financing agreement, until it was extinguished on June 2, 2014.  There is no bond discount on the newly 
issued debt.


Split-interest agreements:


The College participates in various split-interest agreements that are unconditional and irrevocable. 
These arrangements are established when a donor makes a gift to the College or a trust in which the 
College shares benefits with other beneficiaries.  Generally, the College accounts for these agreements 
by recording its share of the related assets at fair market value (which approximates the present value of 
the estimated future cash receipts).  Liabilities are recorded for any portion of the assets held for donors 
or other beneficiaries equal to the present value of the expected future payments to be made.  The 
liabilities are adjusted annually for changes in the value of the assets, accretion of the discount, and 
other changes in the estimates of future benefits.  Contribution revenues are recognized at the dates the 
agreements are established for the difference between the assets and the liabilities.


If a third party is the trustee until the termination of the trust and then the remaining assets are 
transferred to the beneficiaries, the assets less related liabilities are included in funds held in trust by 
others.  If the donor establishes a perpetual trust with a third party as trustee (the College will never 
receive the principal of the trust), the assets less related liabilities are also included in funds held in trust 
by others.  The fair value of funds held in trust by others is determined by the present value of estimated 
future cash flows.


Asset retirement obligations (AROs):


An asset retirement obligation is a legal liability of the College for the cost of retiring a tangible 
long-lived asset (e.g., a building containing asbestos) that results from the acquisition, construction, or 
development and/or the normal operation of the long-lived asset.  A conditional ARO is a legal 
obligation in which the timing and/or method of retirement are conditional on a future event that may or 
may not be within the control of the College.  The College has conditional asset retirement obligations 
primarily associated with fully depreciated buildings which are recorded at their estimated fair value.  
The liabilities are accreted each year using a risk-adjusted interest rate.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Net asset classifications of institutional funds:


The College holds institutional funds, principally endowment funds, subject to the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).  “Endowment” is a commonly used term to refer to 
the resources, including trusts and annuities that have been restricted by the donor or designated by the 
Board that will be invested to provide future revenue to support the College’s activities.  The College’s 
endowment consists of approximately 40 individual funds established for a variety of purposes.  As 
titled, UPMIFA provides guidance and applicable regulations relative to the management of applicable 
funds.


In response to UPMIFA, the College adopted the provisions of accounting guidance for the net asset 
classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for an organization that is subject to UPMIFA and 
also required related financial statement disclosures.


Interpretation of UPMIFA


The Board of Trustees of the College has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the 
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  Accordingly, the College classifies as permanently 
restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the 
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations of 
investment returns to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument, when applicable, at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.


The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as permanently 
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are 
appropriated for expenditure by the College in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence 
prescribed by UPMIFA.  In accordance with UPMIFA, the College considers the following factors 
in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the 
duration and preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the College and the donor-restricted 
endowment fund, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, 
(5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of 
the College, and (7) the investment policy of the College.


Return Objectives and Risk Parameters


The College has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to 
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to 
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.  Endowment assets include those of 
donor-restricted funds that organizations must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period as 
well as board-designated funds.  Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the 
endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to provide an average annual rate of 
return of approximately 2.0% plus inflation (measured as the consumer price index), net of 
management fees, over a rolling three-year period.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from 
this amount.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Net asset classifications of institutional funds:  (Continued)


Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives


To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the College relies on a total return strategy in 
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) 
and current yield (interest and dividends).  The College targets a diversified asset allocation that 
places emphasis on investments in equities and fixed income securities in the following percent
target ratios to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints:


Minimum
Target 


Average Maximum


Domestic Large Capitalization Stocks:
Large Growth 15 20 25
Large Value 15 20 25


Small/Medium Capitalization Stocks 10 15 20


International Equity 5 10 15


Total equity 45 65 85


Domestic Investment Grade Fixed Income 25 35 45


Total fixed income 25 35 45


Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Related to Spending Policy


The College employs a total return endowment spending policy that establishes the amount of 
endowment investment return that is available to support current needs and restricted purposes.  
This policy is designed to insulate program spending from capital market fluctuations and to 
increase the amount of return that is reinvested in the corpus of the fund in order to enhance its 
long-term value.  For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Board-approved spending 
formula for the endowment provided for an annual spending rate of not more than 5.0% of a 
trailing twelve quarter moving average of the investment pool fair value.  If cash yield (interest and 
dividends) is less than the spending rate, realized gains can be used to make up the deficiency.  Any 
income in excess of the spending rate is to be reinvested in the endowment.


Funds with Deficiencies (“Underwater” funds)


From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment 
funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the College to retain as a fund of 
perpetual duration.  Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets and there were 
none as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.  
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Contributions:


Contributions, including unconditional promises to give or contributions receivable, are recognized as 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or 
nature of any donor restrictions, in the period the donor’s commitment is received.  Unrestricted, 
unconditional promises to give are recognized as temporarily restricted operating revenues unless the 
donor explicitly stipulates its use to support current period activities.


Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional – that is, when the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  Contributions of assets other than cash are 
recorded at their estimated fair value.  Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an 
appropriate discount rate commensurate with the risks involved.  Amortization of the discount is 
recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on 
the contributions.  An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is provided based upon 
management’s judgment, including such factors as prior collection history, type of contribution and 
nature of the fundraising activity.


Contributions of land, buildings, and equipment without donor stipulations concerning the use of such 
long-lived assets are reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class.  Contributions of cash or 
other assets, to be used to acquire land, buildings, and equipment, with such donor stipulations are 
reported as revenues of the temporarily restricted net asset class; the restrictions are considered to be 
released at the time of acquisition of such long-lived assets.


Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same year as received are 
reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class.


Operating results:


Operating activities in the statements of activities illustrate a measure of how the College is maintaining 
the resources available for its “current operations.”  Operations reflect all transactions increasing or 
decreasing unrestricted net assets except those of a capital nature – that is, capitalized for long-term 
investment or as land, buildings, and equipment.  Temporarily restricted net assets released from 
restrictions which satisfy an operating purpose are also classified as operating.


In accordance with the College’s total return policy, as described previously, only the portion of total 
investment return available under this policy to meet operating needs is included in operating revenues.


Additionally, the portion of total investment return available to support current operations under the 
College’s total return policy is excluded from cash flows from operating activities; only the actual cash 
yield is included in cash flows from operating activities.


Costs related to the operation and maintenance of physical plant, including depreciation of plant 
assets, are allocated to operating programs and supporting activities based upon periodic inventories 
of facilities.  Interest expense on external debt is allocated to the activities that have most directly 
benefited from the proceeds of the external debt.  Employee and staff benefits are allocated to 
operating programs and supporting activities based upon salary expenses of these programs and 
activities.







TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014


(Continued) 17


Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Derivative instruments:


The College utilizes a derivative financial instrument to reduce its exposure to market risks from 
changes in interest rates.  By entering into a pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap, the College 
limits its exposure to changes in variable interest rates.  The College is exposed to credit related losses 
in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to the interest rate swap; however, the counterparty 
is a major financial institution and the risk of loss due to nonperformance is considered remote.  Interest 
rate differentials paid or received on the swap are recognized as adjustments to interest expense in the 
period earned or incurred.


The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements is the estimated amount the College would receive or 
pay to terminate the agreement based on reference to market rate inputs and the net present value of 
future cash flows as determined by the lender.  


Advertising costs:


The College follows the policy of charging advertising costs to expenses as incurred.


Fair value measurements:


The College carries various assets and liabilities at fair value.  Fair value is defined as the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.  In determining fair value, a market-based approach is 
used which establishes that fair value is based on the “highest and best use”.  Additionally, in 
accordance with accounting guidance, the College categorizes its financial instruments, based on the 
priority of the inputs to the valuation technique, into a three-level fair value hierarchy as reflected 
below.  The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).


Level 1 – Fair values are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that management has the ability to access at the measurement date.


Level 2 – Fair values are based on inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are either 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets 
or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that were 
observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated
by observable market data by correlation or other means.


Level 3 – Fair values are based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability where there is 
little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Fair value measurements:  (Continued)


The estimated fair value for specific groups of financial instruments is presented within the notes 
applicable to such items.  If not specifically presented, fair value is estimated to approximate the 
related carrying value.  It was not considered practical to determine fair value of notes receivable 
from students under the U.S. government loan programs and related government advances because 
the notes receivable are non-marketable and can only be assigned to the U.S. government or its 
designees.  These installment notes are due over terms of ten years, with interest at 5% per month per 
annum, and are carried at face value.  


Credit risk concentrations:


Financial instruments which potentially subject the College to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash, marketable securities, and student accounts receivable and loans receivable.  The 
College places its cash with high-credit, quality financial institutions.  A portion of the College’s bank 
deposits are in excess of federally insured limits.  Concentration of credit risk for marketable securities 
is limited by the College’s policy of diversification of investments.  Concentration of credit risk for 
student accounts receivable and loans receivable are limited, due to a large base and geographic 
dispersion.


Art collection:


The College’s art collection, which was acquired through purchases and contributions, is not recognized 
as an asset in the accompanying statements of financial position since the art is held purely for 
educational purposes.  Purchased collection items are recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets in 
the year in which the items are acquired, or in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if the 
assets used to purchase the items are restricted by donors.


Income taxes:


The College is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.


The federal Form 990s of the College are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service, 
generally for three years after they are filed.


Reclassifications:


Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts in order to conform to the current year 
presentation.


Subsequent events:


The College has evaluated subsequent events through October 10, 2014, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued.
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Note 2. Receivables and other assets


Receivables and other assets, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, consist of the following as of 
June 30:


2014 2013


Student receivables, net $ 1,310,954 $ 1,290,480
Other receivables 125,539 482,784
Bond issuance costs 348,833 166,179
Prepaid expenses 93,688 179,174
Accrued investment income 45,806 55,323 


$ 1,924,820 $ 2,173,940


Note 3. Contributions Receivable


Contributions receivable consist of the following as of June 30:


2014 2013


Unconditional promises to give cash $ 7,124,442 $ 6,122,722
Charitable trusts held by others 595,855 539,554


$ 7,720,297 $ 6,662,276


Expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $ 4,527,899 $ 2,227,666
One to five years 2,647,541 3,410,667
More than five years 1,080,062 1,569,443


8,255,502 7,207,776


Less:
Actuarial present value of future payments (484,206) (463,222)
Discount to net present value at 0.85% – 2.4% (50,999) (82,278)


$ 7,720,297 $ 6,662,276


The breakdown by net asset class for contributions receivable as of June 30 is as follows:


2014 2013


Temporarily restricted $ 7,124,442 $ 6,097,722
Permanently restricted 595,855 564,554


$ 7,720,297 $ 6,662,276
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Note 3. Contributions Receivable (Continued)


As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the College has also received bequest intentions and certain other 
conditional promises to give.  These intentions and certain other conditional promises to give are not 
recognized as assets; and, if they are received, will generally be restricted for a specific purpose 
stipulated by the donors, primarily, either endowments for scholarships, faculty support, or general 
operating support of a particular department of the College.  


For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the College recorded contributions from seven and 
fourteen donors that totaled approximately 78.9% and 88.3% of contributions, respectively.


Note 4. Investments


Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30:


2014


Endowment Other Total


Equities:
Domestic:


Large cap growth $ 2,045,249 14.7% $ -    - % $ 2,045,249 4.8%
Large cap value 1,459,845 10.5 -    - 1,459,845 3.4
Midcap 958,776 6.9 -    - 958,776 2.2
Small cap growth 285,750 2.0 -    - 285,750 0.7
Small cap value 275,484 2.0 -    - 275,484 0.6
All cap 2,036,037 14.6 -    - 2,036,037 4.7
Mutual funds and other -    - 16,635 0.1 16,635 -


Total domestic
equities 7,061,141 50.7 16,635 0.1 7,077,776 16.4


International and
emerging markets:


International 1,290,379 9.2 -    - 1,290,379 3.0
Emerging markets 612,085 4.4 -    - 612,085 1.4


Total international
and emerging


markets 1,902,464 13.6 -    - 1,902,464 4.4


Total equities 8,963,605 64.3 16,635 0.1 8,980,240 20.8


Fixed income:
International -    - 591,142    2.0 591,142 1.4
Cash and cash equivalents -    - 6,436,287 22.1 6,436,287 15.0
All other 1,550,481 11.2 22,046,,966 75.8 23,597,447 54.8


Total fixed income 1,550,481 11.2 29,074,395 99.9 30,624,876 71.2


Alternative income:
Absolute return 2,614,605 18.7 -    - 2,614,605 6.1
Real assets 809,636 5.8 -    - 809,636 1.9


Total alternative
income 3,424,241 24.5 -    - 3,424,876 8.0


Total investments $ 13,938,327 100.0% $ 29,091,030 100.0% $ 43,029,357 100.0%
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Note 4. Investments (Continued)


Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30:  (Continued)


2013


Endowment Other Total


Equities:
Domestic:


Large cap growth $ 1,617,599 13.4% $ -    - % $ 1,617,599 4.4%
Large cap value 1,181,726 9.8 -    - 1,181,726 3.1
Midcap 765,024 6.3 -    - 765,024 2.0
Small cap growth 235,673 2.0 -    - 235,673 0.6
Small cap value 223,862 1.9 -    - 223,862 0.6
All cap 1,775,805 14.7 -    - 1,775,805 4.7
Mutual funds and other -    - 34,078    0.1 34,078 0.1


Total domestic
equities 5,799,689 48.1 34,078 0.1 5,833,767 15.5


International and
emerging markets:


International 1,056,266 8.8 -    - 1,056,266 2.9
Emerging markets 427,096 3.5 -    - 427,096 1.1


Total international
and emerging


markets 1,483,362 12.3 -    - 1,483,362 4.0


Total equities 7,283,362 60.4 34,078 8.7 7,317,129 19.5


Fixed income:
International -    - 2,233,338 8.7 2,233,338 5.9
Cash and cash equivalents -    - 1,221,840 4.4 1,221,840 3.2
All other 2,545,436 21.0 22,046,961 86.4 24,592,397 65.5


Total fixed income 2,545,436 21.0 25,502,139 99.9 28,047,575 74.6


Alternative income:
Absolute return 1,514,721 12.6 -    - 1,514,721 4.0
Real assets 720,036 6.0 -    - 720,036 1.9


Total alternative
income 2,234,757 18.6 -    - 2,234,757 5.9


Total investments $ 12,063,244 100.0% $ 25,536,217 100.0% $ 37,599,461 100.0%
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Note 4. Investments (Continued)


The College has various investment vehicles that have carrying values that fluctuate with the financial 
markets.  As a result, the value of such investments may have changed from year end values and that 
change may or may not be material.


The ownership of investments for each class of net assets as of June 30 is as follows:


2014 2013


Unrestricted $ 19,754,399 $ 23,331,012
Temporarily restricted 15,251,318 6,356,700
Permanently restricted 8,023,640 7,911,749


$ 43,029,357 $ 37,599,461


The market value of investment asset classifications is as follows as of June 30:


2014 2013


Endowment – held by College $ 13,938,327 $ 12,063,244
Trusts and annuities 1,619,723 1,806,373
Unrestricted current funds 27,471,307 23,729,844


$ 43,029,357 $ 37,599,461


Investment activity for the years ended June 30 is reflected in the table below:


2014 2013


Investments, beginning $ 37,599,461 $ 30,249,916
Gifts and pledge payments available for investment


and investment income reinvestment 8,560,287 856,163


46,159,748 31,106,079


Investment returns (net of expenses; 2014 $75,704;
2013 $69,548):


Dividends, and interest 1,405,636 820,061


Investment return, net of amount available to 
support current operations per statements of


activities 1,755,039 443,699
Add spending in excess of cash yield (792,186) (239,787)


Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) 962,853 203,912


Total return on investments 2,368,489 1,023,973


Amounts appropriated for operations, net transfers to
operational accounts, debt payments, and other


activity (5,498,880) 5,469,409


Investments, ending $ 43,029,357 $ 37,599,461
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Note 4. Investments (Continued) 


 
The following schedule summarizes total investment return and its classification in the statements of 
activities for the years ended June 30: 
 


 2014  2013 
 


      Investment income $ 1,405,636  $ 820,061 
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments  962,853   203,912 
           Total return on investments $ 2,368,489  $ 1,023,973 
      Included in the statement of activities as follows:      
       Operating revenues – investment income, endowment,      
  and other – amount distributed to support current      
   operations pursuant to the endowment spending      
    policy $ 552,609  $ 521,368 
 Investment return, net of amount available to support      
  current operations  1,755,039   443,699 
 Investment income, included in interest      
  income – temporary investments  60,841   58,906 
       $ 2,368,489  $ 1,023,973 


 
Note 5. Land, Buildings, and Equipment 


 
Land, buildings, and equipment consists of the following at June 30: 
 


 Estimated     
 Useful Life  2014  2013 


 


        Buildings 50 years  $ 28,625,213  $ 28,625,213 
Building improvements 10-20 years   7,295,721   7,087,994 
Land improvements 50 years   1,449,447   1,449,447 
Equipment 5 years   5,592,895   5,391,889 
Computer equipment 5 years   2,857,154   2,783,680 
            45,820,430   45,338,223 
Less accumulated depreciation    (25,978,698)   (24,918,279) 
            19,841,732   20,419,944 
Land    83,218   83,218 
Construction in progress    1,597,305   -     
           $ 21,522,255  $ 20,503,162 


 
At June 30, 2014, construction in progress was for the new academic center with a total estimated 
cost of up to $40 million to be paid with $15 million of debt and the remaining cost expected to be 
paid with contributions.  The College is currently under contract for $35.5 million of construction 
costs. 
 
Included in equipment are assets under capital leases of $264,152 and $202,991 at June 30, 2014 and 
2013 with related accumulated depreciation of $186,858 and $111,614 for 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
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Note 6. Funds Held in Trust by Others


The College is the beneficiary of various trusts created by donors, the assets of which are not in the 
possession of the College.  The College has legally enforceable rights and claims to income therefrom.  
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) related to these interests are reported as changes in 
permanently restricted net assets based on explicit donor stipulations.  The market value of these 
interests as of June 30 are as follows:


Income
Restriction 2014 2013


Claire Boothe Luce Fund * $ 7,389,000 $ 6,791,000


Helen Rotterman Trust Unrestricted 766,216 722,809


M. Rotterman Trust Unrestricted 2,256,852 2,197,988


Russell T. Finn Trust Scholarships 1,086,170 1,012,300


Dougherty Scholarship
Irrevocable Trust Educational purposes 284,878 255,439


$ 11,783,116 $ 10,979,536


*Scholarships, fellowships, and professorships for women in science and technology.  The annual 
income distribution totaled $300,000 and $282,000 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.


Note 7. Debt


The College’s debt consists of the following as of June 30:


2014 2013


District of Columbia Series 2001, revenue bonds.  The 
bonds are secured by a standby letter of credit, and bear 
interest at variable rates determined by the marketing 
agent (0.06% at June 30, 2013).  Interest is due monthly. 
The final principal payment before extinguishment was 
made on July 1, 2013 in the amount of $550,000. Bond 
discount was approximately 2014 $0; 2013 $102,000.  
Proceeds were used for the sole purpose of the 
development, design, equipping, renovation and 
construction of the Trinity Center for Women and Girls 
in Sports and related field and ground renovations. On 
June 2, 2014, these bonds were paid back in full using 
the proceeds of the newly issued Series 2014 A bonds. $ -    $ 15,577,901
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Note 7. Debt (Continued)


The College’s debt consists of the following as of June 30:  (Continued)


2014 2013


District of Columbia Series 2014A Bonds.  The bonds 
bear interest at variable rates determined by the 
marketing agent (1.67% at June 30, 2014).  Interest is 
due monthly. The first principal payment will be made 
on July 1, 2014 in the amount of $580,000. Payments 
after that will range from $680,000 to the final payment 
amount of $1,080,000 due on July 1, 2031. As described 
below, this debt is subject to an interest rate swap 
agreement. Proceeds were used for the sole purpose of 
refinancing the current existing debt on the 2001 Series 
Bonds, which were the funding used to complete 
construction of the Trinity Center for Women and Girls 
in Sports. 15,300,000 -    


District of Columbia Series 2014B Bonds.  The bonds 
bear interest at variable rates determined by the 
marketing agent.  Interest is due monthly. Payments on 
this bond will not be due until two years from the 
funding, as the bond operates as a drawdown instrument 
and is funded as expenses relating to the University 
Academic Center are incurred. The first payment due is 
the principal payment of $535,000 on July 1, 2016. 
After that principal payments will range from 
$170,000 to the final amount of $1,765,000 due on 
July 1, 2038. The total bond issuance is for $15,000,000. 
As described below, this debt is subject to an interest 
rate swap agreement. Proceeds are being drawn down 
and used to facilitate construction of Trinity’s University 
Academic Center, along with the funds raised by 
Trinity’s Capital Campaign Contributions. Ground is set 
to break in September 2014. 1,752,460 -    


Obligations under capital leases, payable in monthly 
installments of $6,478 including imputed interest 
ranging from 22.25% to 28.80% through April 2016.  
Secured by equipment. 56,277 130,148


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Sodexo, Inc. 
for purchase of equipment for food service operations, 
payable on a straight-line basis through December 2016. 62,499 87,499


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Aramark 
Management Services for capital improvements, payable 
on a straight-line basis through July 2021. 354,247 404,247
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Note 7. Debt (Continued)


The College’s debt consists of the following as of June 30:  (Continued)


2014 2013


In January 2014, Trinity entered into an agreement with 
a leasing agreement for seven fitness machines for the 
Trinity Center.  Obligations under this capital lease are 
payable in monthly installments of $502 including 
imported interest at 5.00% through December 2017.  
Secured by equipment. 18,983 -    


$ 17,544,466 $ 16,199,795


Debt matures as follows:


Year ending June 30,
2015 $ 688,697
2016 783,875
2017 1,304,969
2018 944,682
2019 1,069,783
2020 and thereafter 12,752,460


$ 17,544,466


The College is party to the following interest rate swap agreements designed to manage the College’s 
interest costs and risks associated with variable rate debt.


Pay Received Notional Amount
Expiration Fixed Variable (In Millions) Fair Value


Related Debt Date Rate Rate 2014 2013 2014 2013


DC Series 2001
January


2018 3.060%
IM 


LIBOR $ - $ 15.1 $ -    $ (1,420,610)


DC Series 2014A
June
2028 2.836%


IM 
LIBOR $ 15.3 $ - (154,651) -    


DC Series 2014B
June
2028 3.275%


IM 
LIBOR $ 15.0 $ - (174,290) -    


$ (328,941) $ (1,420,610)


The College has exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the 
interest rate swap agreement.  However, the College does not anticipate nonperformance.


The difference between the floating rate and the fixed rate interest is recognized as an adjustment to 
interest expense in the period incurred. The fair value of the swap agreement is estimated based on 
current settlement prices and is included in the statements of financial position.  The change in value 
of the interest rate swap of approximately $(134,000) and $512,000 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively, has been reflected in change of fair value of swap agreement in the non-operating 
section of the statement of activities.
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Note 7. Debt (Continued)


Interest expense for the years ended June 30 is as follows:


2014 2013


Expensed $ 604,608 $ 717,910
Capitalized, excluding interest income netted 17,217 -    


$ 621,825 $ 717,910


Pursuant to the District of Columbia, Series 2014 revenue bond agreement, the College is subject to 
certain debt covenants; the most restrictive of which is the requirement to maintain a minimum debt 
service coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0 through the end of Fiscal Year 2016, and a 1.25 to 1.0 ratio 
thereafter.  As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the College has met those requirements. The other major 
covenant requires the College to maintain Unencumbered Unrestricted Liquidity (UUL) on hand of 
$11,000,000 for each year end through the close of 2016, with that number rising to $15,000,000 
from 2017 on. For the years ended 2014 and 2013, the College has met these requirements. 


Note 8. Net Assets


Net assets as of June 30 consisted of the following:


2014 2013


Unrestricted
Investment in land, buildings, and equipment, net


of debt $ 2,493,834 $ 2,331,706
Other 32,671,475 29,052,772


35,165,309 31,384,478


Temporarily restricted
Accumulated endowment investment return, net


of amounts spent 5,658,199 4,555,550
Amounts held for trust and annuity payments 46,152 88,958
Restricted for future operations 816,887 815,422
Restricted for public service expenses 98,055 64,881
Restricted for buildings and equipment 8,551,477 553,063
Contributions receivable 7,124,442 6,097,722


22,295,212 12,175,596


Permanently restricted
Restricted in perpetuity; only the income is expendable:


Endowment principal 8,023,641 7,911,749
Contributions receivable 595,855 564,554
Funds held in trust by others 11,783,116 10,979,536


20,402,611 19,455,839


Total net assets $ 77,863,132 $ 63,015,913
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Note 8. Net Assets (Continued)


Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to both purpose and time restrictions.  Temporarily 
restricted accumulated endowment investment return, net of amounts spent, is restricted for future 
operations, financial aid and maintenance, and acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment. 
Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to investment in perpetuity, the income from which is 
expendable to support future operations, financial aid, and maintenance and acquisition of land, 
buildings, and equipment.


Note 9. Tuition and Fees, Net of Financial Aid


Tuition and fees include regular session tuition for the College’s undergraduate and graduate regular 
and summer sessions as well as miscellaneous fees, such as application, graduation, lab, and late fees.


Undergraduate tuition and fees totaled 77.6% and 75.2% of total tuition and fees for 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.  Financial aid for undergraduates totaled $8,852,454 and $8,357,053, respectively, with 
the unfunded portion of these amounts totaling 29.6% and 27.4%, respectively, of undergraduate 
tuition and fees.


Note 10. Net Assets Released from Restrictions and Reclassifications


Net assets were released from donor restrictions when expenses were incurred to satisfy the restricted 
purposes, or by occurrence of other events as specified by donors.  Restrictions were satisfied as follows 
for the years ended June 30:


2014 2013


Operating:
Financial aid $ 598,234 $ 324,657
Instructional expenses 600,400 392,060
Student Services 15,079 12,424
Academic support 177,101 136,960
Public service expenses 6,750 15,180


Total operating $ 1,397,564 $ 881,281


Non-operating:
Plant expenses $ -    $ 291,348


Total non-operating $ -    $ 291,348
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Note 11. Operating Expenses


Functional expenses, as reported on the statement of activities, include expenses in natural 
classification.  The most significant expense under a natural classification is compensation and 
employee benefits (including payroll taxes) which totals 56.0% and 8.6%, respectively for 2014 and 
54.6% and 8.5%, respectively for 2013.  A more extensive breakdown of expenses in natural 
classification can be found in the College’s annual federal tax exempt Form 990 return.  Program 
service expenses totaled 72.22% and 72.3% in 2014 and 2013, respectively.


Costs related to the operations and maintenance of the physical plant, including depreciation and interest 
expense, are allocated to operating programs and supporting activities for June 30, as follows:


2014 2013


Expenses Total Final Expenses Total Final
Before Expense Allocated Before Expense Allocated


Allocation Allocation Expenses Allocation Allocation Expenses


Education and general:
Instruction $ 9,216,487 $ 1,325,011 $ 10,541,498 $ 9,123,101 $ 1,288,925 $ 10,412,026
Public service 28,263 -    28,263 32,867 -    32,867
Academic support 3,677,766 265,002 3,942,768 3,408,306 257,785 3,666,091
Student services 3,312,597 1,257,208 4,569,805 3,482,088 1,229,047 4,711,135
Institutional support 7,657,358 1,060,008 8,717,366 7,508,760 1,031,141 8,539,901


Auxiliary services 1,797,971 1,787,212 3,585,183 1,681,155 1,744,617 3,425,772
Operations and maintenance


of physical plant 4,005,576 (4,005,576) -    3,810,919 (3,810,919) -    
Depreciation and amortization 1,084,257 (1,084,257) -    1,022,686 (1,022,686) -    
Interest expense 604,608 (604,608) -    717,910 (717,910) -    


$ 31,384,883 $ -    $ 31,384,883 $ 30,787,792 $ -    $ 30,787,792


Note 12. Employee Benefits


Retirement benefits are provided for eligible faculty and staff employees by a contributory pension plan 
for annuity contracts with Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and College Retirement Equities 
Fund.  Employees are eligible after one year of full-time employment and attaining the age of 
twenty-one.  All participants have a fully vested interest in the total contributions made on their behalf.  
The College automatically contributes 2% of all eligible employees’ base salary, and matches an 
additional voluntary contribution of up to 6%.  Under the plan, the College contributed approximately 
$495,000 and $446,000 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, which was charged to operating expenses.
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Note 13. Operating Leases


The College leases several copiers and a mailing system under non-cancelable leases expiring through 
October 2016.  Rent expense under these operating leases was $43,118 and $35,809 for 2014 and 
2013, respectively.


Future minimum lease payments under all operating leases for years ending June 30 are as follows:


2015 $ 43,118
2016 41,794
2017 31,252
2018 13,340
2019 -    


$ 129,504


Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies


The College has conditional asset retirement obligations that can be reasonably estimated primarily 
associated with encapsulated asbestos in its fully depreciated buildings.  Liabilities totaling $1,155,014
and $1,101,062 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are reflected in the statements of financial 
position.


Final expenditure reports of grants and contracts submitted to certain granting agencies in current and 
prior years are subject to audit by such agencies.  As a result, the reimbursed expenditures are subject to 
adjustment.  The effect of such adjustments, if any, is not determinable at this time.  Management is of 
the opinion that the liability, if any, would not have a material effect on the College’s financial position.


The College’s students receive a substantial amount of support from state and federal student 
financial assistance programs.  A significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to 
occur, may have an adverse effect on the College’s programs and activities.


The College is under a long-term contract with Sodexo, Inc. to provide food service.  The initial term 
of the agreement ends January 1, 2017 and the agreement will renew automatically for consecutive 
terms of one year each.  Upon expiration, termination, or cancellation of the contract, the College 
shall reimburse the provider the remaining balance of unamortized capital expenditures.  The 
remaining unamortized capital expenditures at June 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled $62,499 and $87,499,
respectively, and is included in debt in the statement of financial position.


The College is under a long-term contract with Aramark Management Services to provide facilities 
management.  The initial term of the agreement ended January 5, 2013 and the agreement shall 
continue thereafter, until terminated by either party.  The contract can be cancelled at any time before 
the agreement expires with payment of the remaining balance of unamortized capital expenditures.  
This contract was amended and restated as of July 29, 2011, with a term ending July 31, 2021.  As 
part of this contract, Aramark assumed the existing unamortized capital expenditures and gave Trinity 
an additional $500,000 to be used for capital improvements. The remaining unamortized capital 
expenditures at June 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled $354,247 and $404,247, respectively, and is included 
in debt in the statement of financial position.  The capital expenditure agreement also provides that if 
the agreement is terminated by the College then all accrued but unbilled interest at prime plus 2% is 
to be paid.







TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014


(Continued) 31


Note 15. Endowment


Endowment net assets as of June 30 consist of the following:


2014 2013


Temporarily Permanently Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Funds held by the College:
Donor-restricted $ -    $ 5,658,199 $ 8,023,641 $ 13,681,840 $ -    $ 4,555,550 $ 7,911,749 $ 12,467,299
Donor-restricted funds held 


in trust by others -    -    12,378,970 12,378,970 -    -    11,544,090 11,544,090


Total $ -    $ 5,658,199 $ 20,402,611 $ 26,060,810 $ -    $ 4,555,550 $ 19,455,839 $ 24,011,389


Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30 are as follows:


2014 2013


Temporarily Permanently Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Endowment net assets,
July 1, 2013 $ -    $ 4,555,550 $ 19,455,839 $ 24,011,389 $ -    $ 3,456,208 $ 18,499,280 $ 21,955,488


Investment return:
Investment income -    296,239 -    296,239 -    292,427 5,223 297,650
Realized and 


unrealized gains -    1,641,416 -    1,641,416 -    703,413 -    703,413


Total investment
return -    1,937,655 -    1,937,655 -    995,840 5,223 1,001,063


Contributions -    -    86,890 86,890 -    238,833 160,330 399,163


Appropriation for
expenditure and


other expenses -    (835,006) -    (835,006) -    (135,331) -    (135,331)


Change in value of 
funds held in trust


by others -    -    859,882 859,882 -    -    791,006 791,006


Endowment net assets,
June 30, 2014 $ -    $ 5,658,199 $ 20,402,611 $ 26,060,810 $ -    $ 4,555,550 $ 19,455,839 $ 24,011,389
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurements


The following is a summary of the inputs used in determining the fair values of financial assets and 
liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of June 30:


2014 2013


Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Financial assets:
Investments:


Domestic equities $ 7,077,776 $ 7,077,776 $ -    $ -    $ 5,833,767 $ 5,833,767 $ -    $ -    
International equities 1,290,379 1,290,379 -    -    1,056,266 1,056,266 -    -    
Emerging markets 612,085 612,085 -    -    427,096 427,096 -    -    
Global bonds 591,142 591,142 -    -    2,233,338 2,233,338 -    -    
Cash and equivalents


and temporary
investments 6,436,287 6,436,287 -    -    1,221,840 1,221,840 -    -    


Fixed income, all
other 23,597,447 23,597,447 -    -    24,592,397 24,592,397 -    -    


Absolute return 2,614,605 2,614,605 -    -    1,514,721 1,514,721 -    -    
Real assets 809,636 809,636 -    -    720,036 720,036 -    -    


Total investments 43,029,357 43,029,357 -    -    37,599,461 37,599,461 -    -    


Charitable trusts held by
others 595,855 -    595,855 -    539,554 -    539,554 -    


Funds held in trust
by others 11,783,116 -    4,394,116 7,389,000 10,979,536 -    4,188,536 6,791,000


Total financial
assets $ 55,408,328 $ 43,029,357 $ 4,989,971 $ 7,389,000 $ 49,118,551 $ 37,599,461 $ 4,728,090 $ 6,791,000


Financial liabilities:
Fair value of interest 


rate swap agreements $ 328,941 $ -    $ 328,941 $ -    $ 1,420,610 $ -    $ 1,420,610 $ -    


Total financial
liabilities $ 328,941 $ -    $ 328,941 $ -    $ 1,420,610 $ -    $ 1,420,610 $ -    


The following is a reconciliation of Level 3 funds held in trust by others for which significant 
unobservable inputs were used to determine fair value as of June 30:


2014 2013


Balance, beginning $ 6,791,000 $ 6,155,000
Net change in value 598,000 636,000


Balance, ending $ 7,389,000 $ 6,791,000


The fair value of investments in common stocks, bonds, and mutual funds are determined based upon 
quoted market prices.  The fair value of contributions receivable is based on the fair value of 
estimated future cash flows.  The fair value of funds held in trust is based on quoted market prices of 
the securities held in the respective trusts.  The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement is 
estimated based on current settlement prices.







Federal Grantor/ Program Title Number Federal 


U.S. Department of Education:


Student Financial Aid Programs:


Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84.007 115,915$        


Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 136,084          


Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 262,370          


Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 5,394,537       


Federal Direct Loan Program 84.268 20,314,337     


Total U.S. Department of Education Awards 26,223,243     


Department of Justice:


COPS Grant 16.710 22,043            


Total Federal Awards 26,245,286$   


TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS


Year Ended June 30, 2014
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TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014


Note 1. Basis of Presentation


The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
College and is presented using the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements.  The College’s 
major programs are as follows:


Student Financial Aid


Student Financial Aid includes certain awards to provide financial aid to students, primarily under 
the Federal Work-Study (FWS), Federal Pell Grant (Pell), and Federal Supplemental Educational 
Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) programs of the U.S. Department of Education.  The College also 
receives awards to make loans to eligible students under two federal student loan programs (Federal 
Perkins Loan and Federal Direct Loan).


Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for Expenditures of Federal Awards


Expenditures for federal student financial aid programs are recognized as incurred and include the federal 
share of students’ FSEOG program grants and FWS program earnings.  Federal Pell Grant awards, as well 
as Direct Loans are recognized as agency transactions and are not recorded as expenditures in the
financial statements.


Note 3. Federal Direct Loans (FDL)


The College is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to its 
FDL programs and, accordingly, these loans are not included in its financial statements.  It is not practical 
to determine the balance of loans outstanding to students and former students of the College under these 
programs as of June 30, 2014.


Note 4. Federal Perkins Loan Program


Cumulative loans outstanding (net of principal repayments and cancellations), including the $262,370 of
student loans advanced under the Federal Perkins Loan Program in 2014, total $1,588,355.  There was no
federal capital contribution in 2014.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College 
Washington, D.C.


We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Trinity 
College, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 26, 2015.


Internal Control over Financial Reporting


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance.


Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  


Purpose of this Report


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
College’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
January 26, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE


REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College 
Washington, D.C.


Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program


We have audited Trinity College’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Trinity College’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. Trinity 
College’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.


Management’s Responsibility


Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Trinity College’s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Trinity College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.


We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Trinity College’s 
compliance.


Opinion on Each Major Federal Program


In our opinion, Trinity College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014, other than those requirements discussed in the following 
paragraph.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program (Continued)


We did not audit the College’s compliance with requirements governing the maintaining contact 
with and billing borrowers and processing deferment and cancellation requests and payments for the 
Federal Perkins Loan Program.  Those requirements govern functions that are performed by Campus 
Partners.  Since we did not apply auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves as to compliance with those 
requirements, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, 
an opinion on compliance with those requirements.  Campus Partners’ compliance with the 
requirements governing the functions that it performs for the College was examined by other 
accountants whose report has been furnished to us.  The report of the other accountants indicates that 
compliance with those requirements was examined in accordance with the U.S. Department of 
Education’s Audit Guide, Compliance Audits (Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student Financial 
Assistance Programs at Participating Institutions and Institution Servicers.  Based on our review of the 
service organization accountant’s report, we have determined that all of the compliance requirements 
included in the Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the major 
program in which the College participates are addressed in either our report or the report of the service 
organization accountants.  Further, based on our review of the service organization accountant’s report, 
we have determined that it does not contain any findings of noncompliance that would have a direct and 
material effect on the College’s major program.


Report on Internal Control over Compliance


Management of Trinity College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Trinity College’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Trinity College’s internal control over compliance.


Requirements governing the maintaining contact with and billing borrowers and processing 
deferment and cancellation requests and payments for the Federal Perkins Loan Program are performed 
by Campus Partners.  Internal control over compliance relating to such functions was reported on by 
other accountants in accordance with the Department of Education’s Audit Guide, Compliance Audits 
(Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student Financial Assistance Programs at Participating 
Institutions and Institution Servicers.  A copy of the service organization accountant’s report has been 
furnished to us.  However, the scope of our work did not extend to internal control maintained at 
Campus Partners.


A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance (Continued)


Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.


The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
January 26, 2015
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TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2014


A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS


1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Trinity College (the 
“College”).


2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent 
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards.


3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the College were disclosed during 
the audit.


4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal and state award programs were
reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for each Major Program and on Internal 
Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133.


5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs of the College expresses an 
unmodified opinion.


6. The audit disclosed no audit findings relating to the major programs.


7. The major federal award programs tested include:


Student Financial Aid Cluster:


Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84.007


Federal Work-Study Program 84.033


Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038


Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063


Federal Direct Loan Program 84.268


8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.


9. The College was determined to be a low-risk auditee.


B. FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT


None.


C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT


None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College
Washington, D.C.


Report on the Financial Statements


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Trinity College, which comprise the 
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of activities
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions.


Opinion


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Trinity College as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.



www.BEcpas.com
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Other Matters


Other Information


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 22, 2013, on our consideration of Trinity College’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements,
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Trinity College’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
October 22, 2013







2013 2012


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 6,776,030$     7,794,120$     


Receivables and other assets, net of allowance for doubtful accounts


2013 $506,000; 2012 $451,000 (Note 2) 2,173,940       2,328,770       


Notes receivable, government student loans, net of allowance for 


doubtful accounts 2013 and 2012 $100,000 1,476,467       1,369,192       


Contributions receivable (Note 3) 6,662,276       515,902          


Investments (Note 4) 37,599,461     30,249,916     


Land, buildings, and equipment, net of accumulated


depreciation (Notes 5 and 7) 20,503,162     20,490,758     


Funds held in trust by others (Note 6) 10,979,536     10,212,182     


Total assets 86,170,872$   72,960,840$   


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Accounts payable and accrued expenses 781,346$        724,833$        


Accrued wages and benefits 573,733          563,395          


Deferred revenues and deposits 1,728,890       1,805,750       


U.S. government grants refundable 1,349,523       1,329,694       


Asset retirement obligations 1,101,062       1,049,630       


Interest rate swap (Note 7) 1,420,610       1,933,011       


Debt (Note 7) 16,199,795     16,866,573     


Total liabilities 23,154,959     24,272,886     


Net assets (Note 8)


Unrestricted 31,384,478     25,058,522     


Temporarily restricted 12,175,596     5,130,152       


Permanently restricted 19,455,839     18,499,280     


Total net assets 63,015,913     48,687,954     


Total liabilities and net assets 86,170,872$   72,960,840$   


STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012


TRINITY COLLEGE


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.
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Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees 38,733,825$  -$              -$              38,733,825$  
Less financial aid (8,593,208)    -                -                (8,593,208)    


Net tuition and fees (Note 9) 30,140,617    -                -                30,140,617    
Gifts 886,512         540,649         -                1,427,161      
Investment income, endowment, and


other (Note 4) -               521,368         -                521,368         
Interest income – temporary investments 131,622         57,035           -                188,657         
Government and private grants 329,698         -                -                329,698         
Auxiliary services 3,420,687      -                -                3,420,687      
Other revenues 283,005         -                -                283,005         
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 881,281         (881,281)       -                -                


Total operating revenues 36,073,422    237,771         -                36,311,193    


OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and general:


Instruction 10,412,026    -                -                10,412,026    
Public service 32,867           -                -                32,867           
Academic support 3,666,091      -                -                3,666,091      
Student services 4,711,135      -                -                4,711,135      
Institutional support 8,539,901      -                -                8,539,901      


Auxiliary services 3,425,772      -                -                3,425,772      


Total operating expenses (Note 11) 30,787,792    -                -                30,787,792    


Change in net assets, operating 5,285,630      237,771         -                5,523,401      


NON-OPERATING INCOME
Gifts and private grants 268,577         6,627,902      160,330         7,056,809      
Interest income 217                1,870             -                2,087             
Investment return, net of amount available


to support current operations (Note 4) (30,773)         469,249         5,223             443,699         
Change in fair value of swap agreement 512,401         -                -                512,401         
Change in value of funds held in trust by others -                -                767,353         767,353         
Change in value of charitable remainder trust -                -                23,653           23,653           
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (1,444)           -                -                (1,444)           
Loss on asbestos abatement -                -                -                -                
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 291,348         (291,348)       -                -                


Change in net assets, non-operating 1,040,326      6,807,673      956,559         8,804,558      


Change in net assets 6,325,956      7,045,444      956,559         14,327,959    


NET ASSETS
Beginning 25,058,522    5,130,152      18,499,280    48,687,954    


Ending 31,384,478$  12,175,596$  19,455,839$  63,015,913$  


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2013


2013


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.
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Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees 37,777,220$  -$              -$              37,777,220$  
Less financial aid (8,218,245)    -                -                (8,218,245)    -                    


Net tuition and fees (Note 9) 29,558,975    -                -                29,558,975    
Gifts 906,480         486,200         -                1,392,680      
Investment income, endowment, and


other (Note 4) -               471,311         -                471,311         
Interest income – temporary investments 100,264         36,382           -                136,646         
Government and private grants 400,948         -                -                400,948         
Auxiliary services 3,697,896      -                -                3,697,896      
Other revenues 330,473         -                -                330,473         
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 642,066         (642,066)       -                -                -                    
Total operating revenues 35,637,102    351,827         -                35,988,929    -                    


OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and general:


Instruction 9,592,064      -                -                9,592,064      
Public service 169,560         -                -                169,560         
Academic support 3,107,167      -                -                3,107,167      
Student services 4,650,362      -                -                4,650,362      
Institutional support 8,147,245      -                -                8,147,245      


Auxiliary services 3,694,967      -                -                3,694,967      -                    
Total operating expenses (Note 11) 29,361,365    -                -                29,361,365    -                    
Change in net assets, operating 6,275,737      351,827         -                6,627,564      -                    


NON-OPERATING INCOME
Gifts and private grants 467,903         263,652         282,339         1,013,894      
Interest income 317                4,513             -                4,830             
Investment return, net of amount available -                    


to support current operations (Note 4) 370,717         (446,943)       -                (76,226)         
Change in fair value of swap agreement (607,146)       -                -                (607,146)       
Change in value of funds held in trust by others -                -                (457,893)       (457,893)       
Change in value of charitable remainder trust -                -                8,212             8,212             
Loss on disposal of fixed assets -                -                -                -                
Loss on asbestos abatement (875)              -                -                (875)              
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 231,904         (231,904)       -                -                -                    
Change in net assets, non-operating 462,820         (410,682)       (167,342)       (115,204)       -                    
Change in net assets 6,738,557      (58,855)         (167,342)       6,512,360      -                    


NET ASSETS
Beginning 18,319,965    5,189,007      18,666,622    42,175,594    0
Ending 25,058,522$  5,130,152$    18,499,280$  48,687,954$  


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2012


2012


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.


7







2013 2012


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 14,327,959$ 6,512,360$   
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by


operating activities:
Non-operating and noncash items:


Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on investments (203,912)      144,286        
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement (512,401)      607,146        
Contributions restricted for plant expansion and endowment (665,511)      (424,237)      
Change in funds held by others (767,353)      457,893        
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,444            -               
Depreciation and amortization 1,022,686     1,045,584     
Forgiveness of debt -               (72,499)        


Change in certain operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:


Receivables and other assets 154,830        (570,663)      
Contributions receivable (6,146,374)   (30,541)        


(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (9,647)          (269,853)      
Accrued wages and benefits 10,338          (3,679)          
Deferred revenues and deposits (76,860)        2,226            
Asset retirement obligations 51,432          11,716          
U.S. government grants refundable 19,829          13,239          


Net cash provided by operating activities 7,206,460     7,422,978     


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Student loans advanced (239,919)      (245,429)      
Student loans collected 132,644        114,969        
Purchases of land, buildings, and equipment (1,052,604)   (1,449,316)   


Change in accounts payable incurred on purchases 66,160          (192,212)      
Change in investments, net of proceeds from sales (7,145,633)   (9,019,065)   


Net cash used in investing activities (8,239,352)   (10,791,053)


CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from contributions restricted for plant expansion and endowment 665,511        424,237        


-               500,000        
Payments of debt (650,708)      (617,756)      


Net cash provided by financing activities 14,803          306,481        


Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,018,090)   (3,061,594)   


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning 7,794,120     10,855,714   


Ending 6,776,030$   7,794,120$   


SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest 758,893$      773,622$      


SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON CASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Early termination of capital lease due to the return of fixed assets 21,440$        -$             


Fixed assets purchases included in accounts payable 88,196$        22,036$        


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012


Proceeds from new debt


 The Notes to Financial Statements are


   an integral part of these statements.
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TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013


(Continued) 9


Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies


Trinity College (the “College”) is an independent, comprehensive College located in Washington, D.C.  
The College was founded in 1897 by the Sisters of Notre Dame De Namur and in accordance with the 
Act of Congress under which the College is chartered.  The College includes the historic undergraduate 
women’s college (the College of Arts and Sciences) and the coeducational schools of Education, 
Professional Studies, and Nursing and Health Professions. The Board of Trustees governs the College
and is responsible for all management and policy making of the College.


The Board approved the adoption of the name “Trinity University (Washington, D.C.)” as an enterprise 
name and under which it conducts operations.  The Board adopted this change in recognition of the fact 
that Trinity’s operations are characteristic of institutions recognized as universities.  To further 
distinguish Trinity in print material, Trinity refers to itself as Trinity Washington University.  The Board 
decided that “Trinity College” would continue as the official legal name of the institution.  Notice was 
provided to the Education Licensing Commission in accordance with D.C. Code.


The College is accredited by the Commission on Higher Education of the Middle States Association of 
Colleges and Schools.  The School of Education is accredited by the National Council for Accreditation 
of Teacher Education. Trinity’s nursing program is accredited by the Commission on Collegiate 
Nursing Education.


The significant accounting policies followed by the College are described below:


Basis of financial statement presentation and accounting:


The financial statements of the College have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates.


The accompanying financial statements present information regarding the College’s financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and 
permanently restricted.  The three classes are differentiated based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions, as described below:


Unrestricted net assets are free of donor-imposed restrictions.  Unrestricted net assets may be 
designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited 
by contractual agreements with outside parties.  Revenues, gains, and losses that are not 
temporarily or permanently restricted by donors are included in this classification.  Expenses are 
reported as decreases in this classification.


Temporarily restricted net assets are limited in use by donor-imposed stipulations that expire 
either by the passage of time or that can be fulfilled by action of the College pursuant to those 
stipulations.


Permanently restricted net assets are amounts required by donors to be held in perpetuity; 
however, generally the income on these assets is available to meet various restricted and other 
operating needs.  These net assets primarily include permanent endowment funds.







TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013


(Continued) 10


Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Cash and cash equivalents:


The College considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.  Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates 
market value.  Cash held for long-term investment is classified as investments or funds designated for 
investment in land, buildings, and equipment.


Cash and cash equivalents include bond project funds and funds related to the federal student loan 
program totaling approximately $745,000 and $723,000 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.


Checks written on the College’s zero balance accounts of $259,000 and $174,000 are included in 
accounts payable and accrued expenses as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.


The College follows the common cash management practice of consolidating certain of its operating 
cash and cash equivalent accounts, which includes various designated and restricted current operating 
and plant accounts.  As a result of this practice, cash and cash equivalents specifically associated with 
the original gift of certain designated and restricted monies can be spent from the consolidated 
account.  When this occurs, the activity is accounted for by maintaining receivables and payables 
between the net asset classes. The College has sufficient unrestricted funds included in the 
consolidated account to cover the designated or restricted monies spent. 


Accounts receivable:


Accounts receivable consist of student accounts receivable, consortium receivables, grants receivable, 
and other receivables and are reflected at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts based on 
historical collection experience of the College, as applicable.  Receivables outstanding at the end of a 
semester are considered past due.  The College does not charge interest on outstanding balances and 
receivables over two years old are written off.  As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the College has student 
receivables, net of allowance, from non-current semesters of approximately $728,000 and $666,000, 
respectively.


Investments:


Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt 
securities are reported at their fair values.  The fair value of investments in equities, bonds, U.S. 
government securities, and short-term assets is determined by reference to quoted market prices and 
other relevant information generated by market transactions.  Net unrealized and realized gains or losses 
are reflected in the statements of activities.  


Gifts of investments are recorded at their fair value (based upon quotations or appraisals) at the date of 
gift.  Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the trade date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Investments:  (Continued)


Income, and realized and unrealized net gains, on investments of endowment and similar net asset 
classes are reported as follows:


 As increases in permanently restricted net assets if the terms of the gift require that they be 
added to the principal of a permanent endowment fund;


 As increases in temporarily restricted net assets if the terms of the gift impose restrictions on the 
use of the income, including income earned on donor-restricted endowment funds;


 As increases in unrestricted net assets in all other cases.


The College has various investment vehicles that the carrying value fluctuates with the financial 
markets.  As a result, the value of such investments as of the date of this report may be materially 
different than year end values.


Land, buildings, and equipment:


Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of 
gift, less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets.


Equipment is removed from the records and any gain or loss is recognized at the time of disposal. 
Expenditures for new construction, major renewals and replacements, and equipment exceeding $5,000 
are capitalized.


Construction in progress is carried at cost incurred to date and, when completed, is transferred to the 
appropriate land, buildings, or equipment category and is depreciated in accordance with the College’s 
policies.


The College recognizes costs related to major maintenance activities as costs are incurred.


Accrued compensation:


The College accrues for salaries and all other compensation earned but not paid.


Student and other deposits:


Deposits and student fees applicable to academic sessions subsequent to the current year are deferred 
and recognized as revenues in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Notes receivable and U.S. government grants refundable:


The College participates in the Federal Perkins Loan Program sponsored by the United States 
Government.  Under this program, funds are loaned to qualified students and may be re-loaned after 
collection.  Student loan receivables related to this program are recorded as notes receivable.  The 
portion of those funds contributed by the U.S. Government (that is, exclusive of the College’s match 
funds) is ultimately refundable to the government and, accordingly, are recorded as a liability, U.S. 
government grants refundable.


The College accounts for its notes receivable at cost and recognizes interest income as it is earned.  An 
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on prior collection history and individual circumstances of the 
borrower.  Notes are considered past due after 30-45 days and accrue interest until written off when 
considered uncollectible.


Bond discount:


Bond discount is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related financing 
agreement.


Split-interest agreements:


The College participates in various split-interest agreements that are unconditional and irrevocable. 
These arrangements are established when a donor makes a gift to the College or a trust in which the 
College shares benefits with other beneficiaries.  Generally, the College accounts for these agreements 
by recording its share of the related assets at fair market value (which approximates the present value of 
the estimated future cash receipts).  Liabilities are recorded for any portion of the assets held for donors 
or other beneficiaries equal to the present value of the expected future payments to be made.  The 
liabilities are adjusted annually for changes in the value of the assets, accretion of the discount, and 
other changes in the estimates of future benefits.  Contribution revenues are recognized at the dates the 
agreements are established for the difference between the assets and the liabilities.


If a third party is the trustee until the termination of the trust and then the remaining assets are 
transferred to the beneficiaries, the assets less related liabilities are included in funds held in trust by 
others.  If the donor establishes a perpetual trust with a third party as trustee (the College will never 
receive the principal of the trust), the assets less related liabilities are also included in funds held in trust 
by others.  The fair value of funds held in trust by others is determined by the present value of estimated 
future cash flows.


Asset retirement obligations (AROs):


An asset retirement obligation is a legal liability of the College for the cost of retiring a tangible 
long-lived asset (e.g., a building containing asbestos) that results from the acquisition, construction, or 
development and/or the normal operation of the long-lived asset.  A conditional ARO is a legal 
obligation in which the timing and/or method of retirement are conditional on a future event that may or 
may not be within the control of the College.  The College has conditional asset retirement obligations 
primarily associated with fully depreciated buildings which are recorded at their estimated fair value.  
The liabilities are accreted each year using a risk-adjusted interest rate.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Net asset classifications of institutional funds:


The College holds institutional funds, principally endowment funds, subject to the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).  “Endowment” is a commonly used term to refer to 
the resources, including trusts and annuities that have been restricted by the donor or designated by the 
Board that will be invested to provide future revenue to support the College’s activities.  The College’s 
endowment consists of approximately 40 individual funds established for a variety of purposes.  As 
titled, UPMIFA provides guidance and applicable regulations relative to the management of applicable 
funds.


In response to UPMIFA, the College adopted the provisions of accounting guidance for the net asset 
classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for an organization that is subject to UPMIFA and 
also required related financial statement disclosures.


Interpretation of UPMIFA


The Board of Trustees of the College has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the 
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  Accordingly, the College classifies as permanently 
restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the 
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations of 
investment returns to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument, when applicable, at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.


The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as permanently 
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are 
appropriated for expenditure by the College in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence 
prescribed by UPMIFA.  In accordance with UPMIFA, the College considers the following factors 
in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the 
duration and preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the College and the donor-restricted 
endowment fund, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, 
(5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of 
the College, and (7) the investment policy of the College.


Return Objectives and Risk Parameters


The College has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to 
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to 
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.  Endowment assets include those of 
donor-restricted funds that organizations must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period as 
well as board-designated funds.  Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the 
endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to provide an average annual rate of 
return of approximately 2.0% plus inflation (measured as the consumer price index), net of 
management fees, over a rolling three-year period.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from 
this amount.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Net asset classifications of institutional funds:  (Continued)


Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives


To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the College relies on a total return strategy in 
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) 
and current yield (interest and dividends).  The College targets a diversified asset allocation that 
places emphasis on investments in equities and fixed income securities in the following percent
target ratios to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints:


Minimum
Target 


Average Maximum


Domestic Large Capitalization Stocks:
Large Growth 15 20 25
Large Value 15 20 25


Small/Medium Capitalization Stocks 10 15 20


International Equity 5 10 15


Total equity 45 65 85


Domestic Investment Grade Fixed Income 25 35 45


Total fixed income 25 35 45


Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Related to Spending Policy


The College employs a total return endowment spending policy that establishes the amount of 
endowment investment return that is available to support current needs and restricted purposes.  
This policy is designed to insulate program spending from capital market fluctuations and to 
increase the amount of return that is reinvested in the corpus of the fund in order to enhance its 
long-term value.  For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Board-approved spending 
formula for the endowment provided for an annual spending rate of not more than 5.0% of a 
the trailing twelve quarter moving average of the investment pool fair value.  If cash yield (interest 
and dividends) is less than the spending rate, realized gains can be used to make up the deficiency.  
Any income in excess of the spending rate is to be reinvested in the endowment.


Funds with Deficiencies (“Underwater” funds)


From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment 
funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the College to retain as a fund of 
perpetual duration.  Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets and there were 
none as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.  
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Contributions:


Contributions, including unconditional promises to give or contributions receivable, are recognized as 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or 
nature of any donor restrictions, in the period the donor’s commitment is received.  Unrestricted, 
unconditional promises to give are recognized as temporarily restricted operating revenues unless the 
donor explicitly stipulates its use to support current period activities.


Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional – that is, when the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  Contributions of assets other than cash are 
recorded at their estimated fair value.  Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an 
appropriate discount rate commensurate with the risks involved.  Amortization of the discount is 
recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on 
the contributions.  An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is provided based upon 
management’s judgment, including such factors as prior collection history, type of contribution and 
nature of the fundraising activity.


Contributions of land, buildings, and equipment without donor stipulations concerning the use of such 
long-lived assets are reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class.  Contributions of cash or 
other assets, to be used to acquire land, buildings, and equipment, with such donor stipulations are 
reported as revenues of the temporarily restricted net asset class; the restrictions are considered to be 
released at the time of acquisition of such long-lived assets.


Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same year as received are 
reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class.


Operating results:


Operating activities in the statements of activities illustrate a measure of how the College is maintaining 
the resources available for its “current operations.”  Operations reflect all transactions increasing or 
decreasing unrestricted net assets except those of a capital nature – that is, capitalized for long-term 
investment or as land, buildings, and equipment.  Temporarily restricted net assets released from 
restrictions which satisfy an operating purpose are also classified as operating.


In accordance with the College’s total return policy, as described previously, only the portion of total 
investment return available under this policy to meet operating needs is included in operating revenues.


Additionally, the portion of total investment return available to support current operations under the 
College’s total return policy is excluded from cash flows from operating activities; only the actual cash 
yield is included in cash flows from operating activities.


Costs related to the operation and maintenance of physical plant, including depreciation of plant 
assets, are allocated to operating programs and supporting activities based upon periodic inventories 
of facilities.  Interest expense on external debt is allocated to the activities that have most directly 
benefited from the proceeds of the external debt.  Employee and staff benefits are allocated to 
operating programs and supporting activities based upon salary expenses of these programs and 
activities.







TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013


(Continued) 16


Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Operating results:  (Continued)


Derivative instrument:


The College utilizes a derivative financial instrument to reduce its exposure to market risks from 
changes in interest rates.  By entering into a pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap, the College 
limits its exposure to changes in variable interest rates.  The College is exposed to credit related losses 
in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to the interest rate swap; however, the counterparty 
is a major financial institution and the risk of loss due to nonperformance is considered remote.  Interest 
rate differentials paid or received on the swap are recognized as adjustments to interest expense in the 
period earned or incurred.


The fair value of interest rate swap agreements is the estimated amount the College would receive or 
pay to terminate the agreement based on reference to market rate inputs and the net present value of 
future cash flows as determined by the lender.


Advertising costs:


The College follows the policy of charging advertising costs to expenses as incurred.


Fair value measurements:


The College carries various assets and liabilities at fair value.  Fair value is defined as the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.  In determining fair value, a market-based approach is 
used which establishes that fair value is based on the “highest and best use”.  Additionally, in 
accordance with accounting guidance, the College categorizes its financial instruments, based on the 
priority of the inputs to the valuation technique, into a three-level fair value hierarchy as reflected 
below.  The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).


Level 1 – Fair values are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that management has the ability to access at the measurement date.


Level 2 – Fair values are based on inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are either 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets 
or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that were 
observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated 
by observable market data by correlation or other means.


Level 3 – Fair values are based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability where there is 
little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Fair value measurements:  (Continued)


The estimated fair value for specific groups of financial instruments is presented within the notes 
applicable to such items.  If not specifically presented, fair value is estimated to approximate the 
related carrying value.  It was not considered practical to determine fair value of notes receivable 
from students under the U.S. government loan programs and related government advances because 
the notes receivable are non-marketable and can only be assigned to the U.S. government or its 
designees.  These installment notes are due over terms of ten years, with interest at 5% per month per 
annum, and are carried at face value.  


Credit risk concentrations:


Financial instruments which potentially subject the College to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash, marketable securities, and student accounts receivable and loans receivable.  The 
College places its cash with high-credit, quality financial institutions.  A portion of the College’s bank 
deposits are in excess of federally insured limits.  Concentration of credit risk for marketable securities 
is limited by the College’s policy of diversification of investments.  Concentration of credit risk for 
student accounts receivable and loans receivable are limited, due to a large base and geographic 
dispersion.


Art collection:


The College’s art collection, which was acquired through purchases and contributions, is not recognized 
as an asset in the accompanying statements of financial position since the art is held purely for 
educational purposes.  Purchased collection items are recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets in 
the year in which the items are acquired, or in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if the 
assets used to purchase the items are restricted by donors.


Income taxes:


The College is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.


The federal Form 990s of the College are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service, 
generally for three years after they are filed.


Reclassifications:


Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts in order to conform to the current year 
presentation.


Subsequent events:


The College has evaluated subsequent events through September 25, 2013, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Note 2. Receivables and other assets


Receivables and other assets, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, consist of the following as of 
June 30:


2013 2012


Student receivables, net $ 1,290,480 $ 1,272,850
Other receivables 482,784 736,892
Bond issuance costs 166,179 174,926
Prepaid expenses 179,174 86,688
Accrued investment income 55,323 57,414


$ 2,173,940 $ 2,328,770


Note 3. Contributions Receivable


Contributions receivable consist of the following as of June 30:


2013 2012


Unconditional promises to give cash $ 6,122,722 $ -   
Charitable trusts held by others 539,554 515,902


$ 6,662,276 $ 515,902


Expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $ 2,227,666 $ -   
One to five years 3,410,667 -   
More than five years 1,569,443 976,125


7,207,776 976,125


Less:
Actuarial present value of future payments


at .85% – 2.4% (545,500) (460,223)


$ 6,662,276 $ 515,902


The breakdown by net asset class for contributions receivable as of June 30 is as follows:


2013 2012


Temporarily restricted $ 6,097,722 $ -   
Permanently restricted 564,554 515,902


$ 6,662,276 $ 515,902
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Note 3. Contributions Receivable (Continued)


As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the College has also received bequest intentions and certain other 
conditional promises to give.  These intentions and certain other conditional promises to give are not 
recognized as assets; and, if they are received, will generally be restricted for a specific purpose 
stipulated by the donors, primarily, either endowments for scholarships, faculty support, or general 
operating support of a particular department of the College.  


For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the College recorded contributions from eleven and 
fourteen donors that totaled approximately 88.3% and 65.1% of contributions, respectively.


Note 4. Investments


Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30:


2013


Endowment Other Total


Common stocks and 
equity mutual


funds $ 7,852,668 65.1% $ 34,078 0.1% $ 7,886,746 21.0%
Corporate bonds and 


fixed income
mutual funds 2,381,872 19.7 21,990,372 86.1 24,372,244 64.8


U.S. government
bonds 1,372,372 11.4 56,590 0.2 1,428,962 3.8


Foreign corporate
bonds -    - 2,233,338 8.8 2,233,338 5.9


Cash and cash
equivalents 456,332 3.8 1,221,839 4.8 1,678,171 4.5


$ 12,063,244 100.0% $ 25,536,217 100.0% $ 37,599,461 100.0%


2012
Endowment Other Total


Common stocks and 
equity mutual


funds $ 7,136,872 64.5% $ 31,946 0.2% $ 7,168,818 23.7%
Corporate bonds and 


fixed income
mutual funds 2,319,436 21.0 15,593,720 81.3 17,913,156 59.2


U.S. government
bonds 1,198,425 10.8 213,561 1.1 1,411,986 4.7


Foreign corporate
bonds -    - 442,280 2.3 442,280 1.5


Cash and cash
equivalents 412,670 3.7 2,901,006 15.1 3,313,676 10.9


$ 11,067,403 100.0% $ 19,182,513 100.0% $ 30,249,916 100.0%
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Note 4. Investments (Continued)


The College has various investment vehicles that have carrying values that fluctuate with the financial 
markets.  As a result, the value of such investments may have changed from year end values and that 
change may or may not be material.


The ownership of investments for each class of net assets as of June 30 is as follows:


2013 2012


Unrestricted $ 23,331,012 $ 17,475,048
Temporarily restricted 6,356,700 5,003,672
Permanently restricted 7,911,749 7,771,196


$ 37,599,461 $ 30,249,916


The market value of investment asset classifications is as follows as of June 30:


2013 2012


Endowment – held by College $ 12,063,244 $ 11,067,404
Trusts and annuities 1,806,373 1,547,464
Unrestricted current funds 23,729,844 17,635,048


$ 37,599,461 $ 30,249,916


Investment activity for the years ended June 30 is reflected in the table below:


2013 2012


Investments, beginning $ 30,249,916 $ 21,375,137
Gifts and pledge payments available for investment


and investment income reinvestment 856,163 498,584


31,106,079 21,873,721


Investment returns (net of expenses 2013 $69,548;
2012 $63,390):


Dividends, and interest 820,061 580,267


Investment return, net of amount available to support
current operations per statements of activities 443,699 (76,226)


Add spending in excess of cash yield (239,787) (68,060)


Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) 203,912 (144,286)


Total return on investments 1,023,973 435,981


Amounts appropriated for operations, net transfers to
operational accounts, debt payments, and other activity 5,469,409 7,940,214


Investments, ending $ 37,599,461 $ 30,249,916
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Note 4. Investments (Continued)


The following schedule summarizes total investment return and its classification in the statements of 
activities for the years ended June 30:


2013 2012


Investment income $ 820,061 $ 580,267
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments 203,912 (144,286)


Total return on investments $ 1,023,973 $ 435,981


Included in the statement of activities as follows:


Operating revenues – investment income, endowment,
and other – amount distributed to support current


operations pursuant to the endowment spending
policy $ 521,368 $ 471,311


Investment return, net of amount available to support
current operations 443,699 (76,226)


Investment income, included in interest
income – temporary investments 58,906 40,896


$ 1,023,973 $ 435,981


Note 5. Land, Buildings, and Equipment


Land, buildings, and equipment consists of the following at June 30:


Estimated
Useful Life 2013 2012


Buildings 50 years $ 28,625,213 $ 28,625,213
Building improvements 10-20 years 7,087,994 6,237,939
Land improvements 50 years 1,449,447 1,361,697
Equipment 5 years 5,391,889 5,435,057
Computer equipment 5 years 2,783,680 2,691,107


45,338,223 44,351,013
Less accumulated depreciation (24,918,279) (23,943,473)


20,419,944 20,407,540
Land 83,218 83,218


$ 20,503,162 $ 20,490,758


At June 30, 2013 and 2012, land, buildings, and equipment includes capitalized conditional asset 
retirement obligations at a cost of $160,644 which have been fully depreciated.


Included in equipment are assets under capital leases of $202,991, and $268,387 at June 30, 2013 and 
2012 with related accumulated depreciation of $111,614 and $103,714 for 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Note 6. Funds Held in Trust by Others


The College is the beneficiary of various trusts created by donors, the assets of which are not in the 
possession of the College.  The College has legally enforceable rights and claims to income there from.  
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) related to these interests are reported as changes in 
permanently restricted net assets based on explicit donor stipulations.  The market value of these 
interests as of June 30 are as follows:


Income
Restriction 2013 2012


Claire Boothe Luce Fund * $ 6,791,000 $ 6,155,000


Helen Rotterman Trust Unrestricted 722,809 729,418


M. Rotterman Trust Unrestricted 2,197,988 2,088,520


Russell T. Finn Trust Scholarships 1,012,300 983,664


Dougherty Scholarship
Irrevocable Trust Educational purposes 255,439 255,580


$ 10,979,536 $ 10,212,182


*Scholarships, fellowships, and professorships for women in science and technology.  The annual 
income distribution totaled $282,000 and $288,000 for 2013 and 2012, respectively.


Note 7. Debt


The College’s debt consists of the following as of June 30:


2013 2012


District of Columbia Series 2001, revenue bonds.  The 
bonds are secured by a standby letter of credit, and bear 
interest at variable rates determined by the marketing 
agent (0.06 % and 0.18% at June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively). Interest is due monthly.  Principal 
payments on the bonds are due annually in varying 
amounts ranging from $550,000 to $1,170,000.  Final 
payment is due July 1, 2031.  Bond discount was 
approximately 2013 $102,000; 2012 $107,000.  
Proceeds were used for the sole purpose of the 
development, design, equipping, renovation, and 
construction of the Trinity Center for Women and Girls 
in Sports and related field and ground renovations.  
These bonds are subject to an interest rate swap 
agreement, described below. $ 15,577,901 $ 16,102,528
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Note 7. Debt (Continued)


The College’s debt consists of the following as of June 30:  (Continued)


2013 2012


Obligations under capital leases, payable in monthly 
installments of $6,478 including imputed interest 
ranging from 22.25% to 28.80% through April 2016.  
Secured by equipment. 130,148 197,298


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Sodexo, Inc. 
for purchase of equipment for food service operations, 
payable on a straight-line basis through December 2016. 87,499 112,500


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Aramark 
Management Services for capital improvements, payable 
on a straight-line basis through July 2021. 404,247 454,247


$ 16,199,795 $ 16,866,573


Debt matures as follows:


Year ending June 30,
2014 $ 666,517
2015 685,488
2016 712,021
2017 682,125
2018 694,626
2019 and thereafter 12,759,018


$ 16,199,795


The college is party to a swap agreement with Wells Fargo Bank with an expiration date of 
January 2018.  The swap agreement fixed the interest rate at 3.06%.  The basis of the swap was the 
Bond Market Association’s Swap Index through June 2013 and then the basis switched to LIBOR for 
the remaining term of the swap.  The swap agreement had a notional principal amount of $15,130,000 
and $16,210,000 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.


The difference between the floating rate and the fixed rate interest is recognized as an adjustment to 
interest expense in the period incurred. The fair value of the swap agreement is estimated based on 
current settlement prices and totaled approximately $(1,421,000) and $(1,933,000) at June 30, 2013 
and 2012, respectively, and is included in the statement of financial position.  The change in value of 
the interest rate swap of approximately $512,000 and $(607,000) at June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, has been reflected in change of fair value of swap agreement in the non-operating 
section of the statement of activities.
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Note 7. Debt (Continued)


Pursuant to the District of Columbia, Series 2001 revenue bond agreement, the College is subject to 
certain debt covenants the most restrictive of which is the requirement to maintain a minimum debt 
service coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0.  As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, management is not aware of any 
violations of the covenants.


Note 8. Net Assets


Net assets as of June 30 consisted of the following:


2013 2012


Unrestricted
Unrestricted operating funds $ 21,283,319 $ 17,645,048
Investment in land, buildings, and equipment, net


of debt 2,331,706 1,171,545
Undesignated 7,769,453 6,241,929


31,384,478 25,058,522


Temporarily restricted
Accumulated endowment investment return, net


of amounts spent 4,555,550 3,456,208
Amounts held for trust and annuity payments 88,958 87,106
Restricted for future operations 815,422 1,200,572
Restricted for public service expenses 64,881 47,054
Restricted for buildings and equipment 553,063 339,212
Contributions receivable 6,097,722 -   


12,175,596 5,130,152


Permanently restricted
Restricted in perpetuity; only the income is expendable:


Endowment principal 7,911,749 7,771,196
Contributions receivable 564,554 515,902
Funds held in trust by others 10,979,536 10,212,182


19,455,839 18,499,280


Total net assets $ 63,015,913 $ 48,687,954


Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to both purpose and time restrictions.  Temporarily 
restricted accumulated endowment investment return, net of amounts spent, is restricted for future 
operations, financial aid and maintenance, and acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment. 
Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to investment in perpetuity, the income from which is 
expendable to support future operations, financial aid, and maintenance and acquisition of land, 
buildings, and equipment.
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Note 9. Tuition and Fees, Net of Financial Aid


Tuition and fees include regular session tuition for the College’s undergraduate and graduate regular 
and summer sessions as well as miscellaneous fees, such as application, graduation, lab, and late fees.


Undergraduate tuition and fees totaled 75.2% and 73.8% of total tuition and fees for 2013 and 2012, 
respectively.  Financial aid for undergraduates totaled $8,357,053 and $8,040,772, respectively, with 
the unfunded portion of these amounts totaling 27.4% and 27.6%, respectively, of undergraduate 
tuition and fees.


Note 10. Net Assets Released from Restrictions and Reclassifications


Net assets were released from donor restrictions when expenses were incurred to satisfy the restricted 
purposes, or by occurrence of other events as specified by donors.  Restrictions were satisfied as follows 
for the years ended June 30:


2013 2012


Operating:
Financial aid $ 324,657 $ 273,579
Instructional expenses 392,060 305,820
Student Services 12,424 19,593
Academic support 136,960 30,487
Public service expenses 15,180 12,587


Total operating $ 881,281 $ 642,066


Non-operating:
Plant expenses $ 291,348 $ 231,904


Total non-operating $ 291,348 $ 231,904


Note 11. Operating Expenses


Functional expenses as reported on the statement of activities include expenses in natural classification.  
The most significant expense under a natural classification is compensation and employee benefits 
(including payroll taxes) which totals 54.6% and 8.5%, respectively for 2013 and 52.9% and 8.4%, 
respectively for 2012.  A more extensive breakdown of expenses in natural classification can be found 
in the College’s annual federal tax exempt Form 990 return.  Program service expenses totaled 72.3% 
and 72.3% in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Note 11. Operating Expenses (Continued)


Costs related to the operations and maintenance of the physical plant, including depreciation and interest 
expense, are allocated to operating programs and supporting activities, as follows:


Year Ended June 30, 2013


Expenses Total Final
Before Expense Allocated


Allocation Allocation Expenses


Education and general:
Instruction $ 9,123,101 $ 1,288,925 $ 10,412,026
Public service 32,867 -   32,867
Academic support 3,408,306 257,785 3,666,091
Student services 3,482,088 1,229,047 4,711,135
Institutional support 7,508,760 1,031,141 8,539,901


Auxiliary services 1,681,155 1,744,617 3,425,772
Operations and maintenance


of physical plant 3,810,919 (3,810,919) -   
Depreciation and amortization 1,022,686 (1,022,686) -   
Interest expense 717,910 (717,910) -   


$ 30,787,792 $ -   $ 30,787,792


Year Ended June 30, 2012


Expenses Total Final
Before Expense Allocated


Allocation Allocation Expenses


Education and general:
Instruction $ 8,301,122 $ 1,290,942 $ 9,592,064
Public service 169,560 -   169,560
Academic support 2,848,979 258,188 3,107,167
Student services 3,405,716 1,244,646 4,650,362
Institutional support 7,114,491 1,032,754 8,147,245


Auxiliary services 1,933,944 1,761,023 3,694,967
Operations and maintenance


of physical plant 3,768,247 (3,768,247) -   
Depreciation and amortization 1,045,584 (1,045,584) -   
Interest expense 773,722 (773,722) -   


$ 29,361,365 $ -   $ 29,361,365
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Note 12. Employee Benefits


Retirement benefits are provided for eligible faculty and staff employees by a contributory pension plan 
for annuity contracts with Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and College Retirement Equities 
Fund.  Employees are eligible after one year of full-time employment and attaining the age of 
twenty-one.  All participants have a fully vested interest in the total contributions made on their behalf.  
The College automatically contributes 2% of all eligible employees’ base salary, and matches an 
additional voluntary contribution of up to 6%.  Under the plan, the College contributed approximately 
$446,000 and $439,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively, which was charged to operating expenses.


Note 13. Operating Leases


The College leases several copiers and a mailing system under non-cancelable leases expiring through 
October 2016.  Rent expense under these operating leases was $35,809 and $39,193 for 2013 and 
2012, respectively.


Future minimum lease payments under all operating leases for years ending June 30 are as follows:


2014 $ 44,476
2015 43,118
2016 41,794
2017 31,252
2018 13,340


$ 173,980


Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies


The College has conditional asset retirement obligations that can be reasonably estimated primarily 
associated with encapsulated asbestos in its fully depreciated buildings.  Liabilities totaling $1,101,062
and $1,049,630 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are reflected in the statements of financial 
position.


Final expenditure reports of grants and contracts submitted to certain granting agencies in current and 
prior years are subject to audit by such agencies.  As a result, the reimbursed expenditures are subject to 
adjustment.  The effect of such adjustments, if any, is not determinable at this time.  Management is of 
the opinion that the liability, if any, would not have a material effect on the College’s financial position.


The College’s students receive a substantial amount of support from state and federal student 
financial assistance programs.  A significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to 
occur, may have an adverse effect on the College’s programs and activities.


The College is under a long-term contract with Sodexo, Inc. to provide food service.  The initial term 
of the agreement ends January 1, 2017 and the agreement will renew automatically for consecutive 
terms of one year each.  Upon expiration, termination or cancellation of the contract the College shall 
reimburse the provider the remaining balance of unamortized capital expenditures.  The remaining 
unamortized capital expenditures at June 30, 2013 and 2012 totaled $87,499 and $112,500,
respectively, and is included in debt in the statement of financial position.
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Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)


The College is under a long-term contract with Aramark Management Services to provide facilities 
management.  The initial term of the agreement ends January 5, 2013 and the agreement shall 
continue thereafter, until terminated by either party.  The contract can be cancelled at any time before 
the agreement expires with payment of the remaining balance of unamortized capital expenditures.  
This contract was amended and restated as of July 29, 2011, with a term ending July 31, 2021.  As 
part of this contract, Aramark assumed the existing unamortized capital expenditures and gave Trinity 
an additional $500,000 to be used for capital improvements. The remaining unamortized capital 
expenditures at June 30, 2013 and 2012 totaled $404,247 and $454,247, respectively, and is included 
in debt in the statement of financial position.  The capital expenditure agreement also provides that if 
the agreement is terminated by the College then all accrued but unbilled interest at prime plus 2% is 
to be paid.


Note 15. Endowment


Endowment net assets consist of:


Year Ended June 30, 2013


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Funds held by the College:
Donor-restricted $ -   $ 4,555,550 $ 7,911,749 $ 12,467,299


Donor-restricted funds held 
in trust by others -   -   11,544,090 11,544,090


Total $ -   $ 4,555,550 $ 19,455,839 $ 24,011,389


Year Ended June 30, 2012


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Funds held by the College:
Donor-restricted $ -   $ 3,456,208 $ 7,771,196 $ 11,227,404


Donor-restricted funds held 
in trust by others -   -   10,728,084 10,728,084


Total $ -   $ 3,456,208 $ 18,499,280 $ 21,955,488
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Note 15. Endowment (Continued)


Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows:


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Endowment net assets,
July 1, 2012 $ -   $ 3,456,208 $ 18,499,280 $ 21,955,488


Investment return:
Investment income -   292,427 5,223 297,650


Realized and 
unrealized gains -   703,413 -   703,413


Total investment
return -   995,840 5,223 1,001,063


Contributions -   238,833 160,330 399,163


Appropriation for
expenditure and


other activity -   (135,331) -   (135,331)


Change in value of
funds held in trust


by others -   -   791,006 791,006


Endowment net assets,
June 30, 2013 $ -   $ 4,555,550 $ 19,455,839 $ 24,011,389
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Note 15. Endowment (Continued)


Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 are as follows:


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Endowment net assets,
July 1, 2011 $ -    $ 3,432,424 $ 18,666,622 $ 22,099,046


Investment return:
Investment income -   261,261 -   261,261
Realized and 


unrealized gains -   (236,893) -   (236,893)


Total investment
return -   24,368 -   24,368


Contributions -   50,000 282,338 332,338


Appropriation for
expenditure and


other expenses -   (50,584) -   (50,584)


Change in value of 
funds held in trust


by others -   -   (449,680) (449,680)


Endowment net assets,
June 30, 2012 $ -   $ 3,456,208 $ 18,499,280 $ 21,955,488
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurements


The following is a summary of the inputs used in determining the fair values of financial assets and 
liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of June 30:


2013


Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Financial assets:
Investments:


Common stocks and
mutual funds $ 7,886,746 $ 7,886,746 $ -    $ -   


Corporate bonds and
mutual funds 24,372,244 24,372,244 -    -   


U.S. government
bonds 1,428,962 1,428,962 -    -   


Foreign corporate
bonds 2,233,338 2,233,338 -    -   


Cash and cash
equivalents 1,678,171 1,678,171 -    -   


Total investments 37,599,461 37,599,461 -    -   


Contributions receivable 539,554 -    539,554 -   


Funds held in trust
by others 10,979,536 -    4,188,536 6,791,000


Total financial
assets $ 49,118,551 $ 37,599,461 $ 4,728,090 $ 6,791,000


Financial liabilities:
Fair value of interest 


rate swap agreements $ 1,420,610 $ -    $ 1,420,610 $ -   


Total financial
liabilities $ 1,420,610 $ -    $ 1,420,610 $ -   
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)


2012


Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Financial assets:
Investments:


Common stocks and
mutual funds $ 7,168,818 $ 7,168,818 $ -   $ -   


Corporate bonds and
mutual funds 17,913,156 17,913,156 -   -   


U.S. government
bonds 1,411,986 1,411,986 -   -   


Foreign corporate
bonds 442,280 442,280 -   -   


Cash and cash
equivalents 3,313,676 3,313,676 -   -   


Total investments 30,249,916 30,249,916 -   -   


Contributions receivable 515,902 -   515,902 -   


Funds held in trust
by others 10,212,182 -   4,057,182 6,155,000


Total financial
assets $ 40,978,000 $ 30,249,916 $ 4,573,084 $ 6,155,000


Financial liabilities:
Fair value of interest 


rate swap agreements $ 1,933,011 $ -   $ 1,933,011 $ -   


Total financial
liabilities $ 1,933,011 $ -   $ 1,933,011 $ -   


The following is a reconciliation of Level 3 funds held in trust by others for which significant 
unobservable inputs were used to determine fair value as of June 30:


2013 2012


Balance, beginning $ 6,155,000 $ 6,500,000
Net change in value 636,000 (345,000)


Balance, ending $ 6,791,000 $ 6,155,000
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)


The fair value of investments in common stocks, bonds, and mutual funds are determined based upon 
quoted market prices.  The fair value of contributions receivable is based on the fair value of 
estimated future cash flows.  The fair value of funds held in trust is based on quoted market prices of 
the securities held in the respective trusts.  The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement is 
estimated based on current settlement prices.


Note 17. Subsequent Event


The College is in the planning phases for the construction of a new Academic Center. The new 
facility will provide 80,000 square feet of academic space at a cost of about $40 million.  The College 
executed a contract for $380,000 with Jones Lang LaSalle on August 29, 2013 to act as project 
manager on this project and on September 9, 2013, the College executed a contract not to exceed 
$750,000 with Clark Construction Group, LLC for preconstruction services. 


Construction is expected to begin in June 2014 with occupancy in Fall 2016. The College expects to 
fund the new construction with a combination of internally generated cash, external financing, and the 
proceeds from the College’s Capital Campaign.  Subsequent to year end, the College received an 
additional pledge for $7.0 million for the capital campaign.







Federal Grantor/ Program Title Number Federal 


U.S. Department of Education:


Student Financial Aid Programs:


Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84.007 124,110$        


Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 137,399          


Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 239,919          


Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 5,355,440       


Federal Direct Loan Program 84.268 22,377,587     


Department of Justice:


COPS Grant 16.710 28,881            


Total Federal Awards 28,263,336$   


TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS


Year Ended June 30, 2013
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TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013


Note 1. Basis of Presentation


The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
College and is presented using the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements.  The College’s 
major programs are as follows:


Student Financial Aid


Student Financial Aid includes certain awards to provide financial aid to students, primarily under 
the Federal Work-Study (FWS), Federal Pell Grant (Pell), and Federal Supplemental Educational 
Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) programs of the U.S. Department of Education.  The College also 
receives awards to make loans to eligible students under two federal student loan programs (Federal 
Perkins Loan and Federal Direct Loan).


Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for Expenditures of Federal Awards


Expenditures for federal student financial aid programs are recognized as incurred and include the federal 
share of students’ FSEOG program grants and FWS program earnings.  Federal Pell grant awards, as well 
as Direct Loans are recognized as agency transactions and are not recorded as expenditures in the
financial statements.


Note 3. Federal Direct Loans (FDL)


The College is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to its 
FDL programs and, accordingly, these loans are not included in its financial statements.  It is not practical 
to determine the balance of loans outstanding to students and former students of the College under these 
programs as of June 30, 2013.


Note 4. Federal Perkins Loan Program


Cumulative loans outstanding (net of principal repayments and cancellations), including the $239,919 of
student loans advanced under the Federal Perkins Loan Program in 2013, total $1,576,467.  There was no
federal capital contribution in 2013.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College 
Washington, D.C.


We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Trinity 
College, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2013.


Internal Control over Financial Reporting


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance.


Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  


Purpose of this Report


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
College’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
October 22, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE


REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College 
Washington, D.C.


Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program


We have audited Trinity College’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Trinity College’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Trinity 
College’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.


Management’s Responsibility


Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Trinity College’s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Trinity College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.


We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Trinity College’s 
compliance.


Opinion on Each Major Federal Program


In our opinion, Trinity College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013, other than those requirements discussed in the following 
paragraph.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program (Continued)


We did not audit the College’s compliance with requirements governing the maintaining contact 
with and billing borrowers and processing deferment and cancellation requests and payments for the 
Federal Perkins Loan Program.  Those requirements govern functions that are performed by Campus 
Partners.  Since we did not apply auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves as to compliance with those 
requirements, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, 
an opinion on compliance with those requirements.  Campus Partners’ compliance with the 
requirements governing the functions that it performs for the College was examined by other 
accountants whose report has been furnished to us.  The report of the other accountants indicates that 
compliance with those requirements was examined in accordance with the U.S. Department of 
Education’s Audit Guide, Compliance Audits (Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student Financial 
Assistance Programs at Participating Institutions and Institution Servicers.  Based on our review of the 
service organization accountant’s report, we have determined that all of the compliance requirements 
included in the Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the major 
program in which the College participates are addressed in either our report or the report of the service 
organization accountants.  Further, based on our review of the service organization accountant’s report, 
we have determined that it does not contain any findings of noncompliance that would have a direct and 
material effect on the College’s major program.


Report on Internal Control over Compliance


Management of Trinity College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Trinity College’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Trinity College’s internal control over compliance.


Requirements governing the maintaining contact with and billing borrowers and processing 
deferment and cancellation requests and payments for the Federal Perkins Loan Program are performed 
by Campus Partners.  Internal control over compliance relating to such functions was reported on by 
other accountants in accordance with the Department of Education’s Audit Guide, Compliance Audits 
(Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student Financial Assistance Programs at Participating 
Institutions and Institution Servicers.  A copy of the service organization accountant’s report has been 
furnished to us.  However, the scope of our work did not extend to internal control maintained at 
Campus Partners.


A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance (Continued)


Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.


The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
October 22, 2013
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TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2013


A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS


1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Trinity College (the 
“College”).


2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent 
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards.


3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the College were disclosed during 
the audit.


4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal and state award programs were
reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for each Major Program and on Internal 
Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133.


5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs of the College expresses an 
unmodified opinion.


6. The audit disclosed no audit findings relating to the major programs.


7. The major federal award programs tested include:


Student Financial Aid Cluster:


Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84.007


Federal Work-Study Program 84.033


Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038


Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063


Federal Direct Loan Program 84.268


8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.


9. The College was determined to be a low-risk auditee.


B. FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT


None.


C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT


None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College
Washington, D.C.


We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Trinity College as of June 30, 2012
and 2011, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended.  These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the College’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits.


We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Trinity College as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 17, 2012 on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters.  The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
October 17, 2012
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2012 2011


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 7,794,120$     10,855,714$   


Receivables and other assets, net of allowance for doubtful accounts


2012 $451,000; 2011 $342,000 (Note 2) 2,328,770       1,758,107       


Notes receivable, government student loans, net of allowance for 


doubtful accounts 2012 and 2011 $100,000 1,369,192       1,238,732       


Contributions receivable (Note 3) 515,902          485,361          


Investments (Note 4) 30,249,916     21,375,137     


Land, buildings, and equipment, net of accumulated


depreciation (Notes 5 and 7) 20,490,758     20,081,652     


Funds held in trust by others (Note 6) 10,212,182     10,670,075     


Total assets 72,960,840$   66,464,778$   


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Accounts payable and accrued expenses 724,833$        1,186,898$     


Accrued wages and benefits 563,395          567,074          


Deferred revenues and deposits 1,805,750       1,803,524       


U.S. government grants refundable 1,329,694       1,316,455       


Asset retirement obligations 1,049,630       1,037,914       


Interest rate swap (Note 7) 1,933,011       1,325,865       


Debt (Note 7) 16,866,573     17,051,454     


Total liabilities 24,272,886     24,289,184     


Net assets (Note 8)


Unrestricted 25,058,522     18,319,965     


Temporarily restricted 5,130,152       5,189,007       


Permanently restricted 18,499,280     18,666,622     


Total net assets 48,687,954     42,175,594     


Total liabilities and net assets 72,960,840$   66,464,778$   


STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011


TRINITY COLLEGE
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Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees 37,777,220$  -$              -$              37,777,220$  
Less financial aid (8,218,245)    -                -                (8,218,245)    


Net tuition and fees (Note 9) 29,558,975    -                -                29,558,975    
Gifts 906,480         486,200         -                1,392,680      
Investment income, endowment, and


other (Note 4) -               471,311         -                471,311         
Interest income – temporary investments 100,264         36,382           -                136,646         
Government and private grants 400,948         -                -                400,948         
Auxiliary services 3,697,896      -                -                3,697,896      
Other revenues 330,473         -                -                330,473         
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 642,066         (642,066)       -                -                


Total operating revenues 35,637,102    351,827         -                35,988,929    


OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and general:


Instruction 9,592,064      -                -                9,592,064      
Public service 169,560         -                -                169,560         
Academic support 3,107,167      -                -                3,107,167      
Student services 4,650,362      -                -                4,650,362      
Institutional support 8,147,245      -                -                8,147,245      


Auxiliary services 3,694,967      -                -                3,694,967      


Total operating expenses (Note 11) 29,361,365    -                -                29,361,365    


Change in net assets, operating 6,275,737      351,827         -                6,627,564      


NON-OPERATING INCOME
Gifts and private grants 467,903         263,652         282,339         1,013,894      
Interest income 317                4,513             -                4,830             
Investment return, net of amount available


to support current operations (Note 4) 370,717         (446,943)       -                (76,226)         
Change in fair value of swap agreement (607,146)       -                -                (607,146)       
Change in value of funds held in trust by others -                -                (457,893)       (457,893)       
Change in value of charitable remainder trust -                -                8,212             8,212             
Loss on asbestos abatement (875)              -                -                (875)              
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 231,904         (231,904)       -                -                


Change in net assets, non-operating 462,820         (410,682)       (167,342)       (115,204)       


Change in net assets 6,738,557      (58,855)         (167,342)       6,512,360      


NET ASSETS
Beginning 18,319,965    5,189,007      18,666,622    42,175,594    


Ending 25,058,522$  5,130,152$    18,499,280$  48,687,954$  


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2012


2012


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.
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Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees 33,289,571$  -$              -$              33,289,571$  
Less financial aid (7,741,601)    -                -                (7,741,601)    


Net tuition and fees (Note 9) 25,547,970    -                -                25,547,970    
Gifts 1,267,477      435,898         -                1,703,375      
Investment income, endowment, and


other (Note 4) -               364,261         -                364,261         
Interest income – temporary investments 107,213         21,511           -                128,724         
Government and private grants 595,684         -                -                595,684         
Auxiliary services 3,680,318      -                -                3,680,318      
Other revenues 267,606         -                -                267,606         
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 710,049         (710,049)       -                -                


Total operating revenues 32,176,317    111,621         -                32,287,938    


OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and general:


Instruction 9,355,501      -                -                9,355,501      
Public service 360,436         -                -                360,436         
Academic support 2,380,594      -                -                2,380,594      
Student services 4,076,608      -                -                4,076,608      
Institutional support 7,604,971      -                -                7,604,971      


Auxiliary services 3,613,952      -                -                3,613,952      


Total operating expenses (Note 11) 27,392,062    -                -                27,392,062    


Change in net assets, operating 4,784,255      111,621         -                4,895,876      


NON-OPERATING INCOME
Gifts and private grants -                77,000           14,315           91,315           
Interest income 178                16,340           -                16,518           
Investment return, net of amount available


to support current operations (Note 4) 388,010         1,392,231      -                1,780,241      
Change in fair value of swap agreement 53,611           -                -                53,611           
Change in value of funds held by others -                -                1,150,547      1,150,547      
Change in value of charitable remainder trust -                -                47,303           47,303           
Loss on asbestos abatement -                -                -                -                
Net assets released from restrictions and


 reclassifications (Note 10) 169,193         (169,193)       -                -                


Change in net assets, non-operating 610,992         1,316,378      1,212,165      3,139,535      


Change in net assets 5,395,247      1,427,999      1,212,165      8,035,411      


NET ASSETS
Beginning 12,924,718    3,761,008      17,454,457    34,140,183    


Ending 18,319,965$  5,189,007$    18,666,622$  42,175,594$  


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2011


2011


The Notes to Financial Statements are


  an integral part of these statements.
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2012 2011


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 6,512,360$   8,035,411$   
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by


operating activities:
Non-operating and noncash items:


Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on investments 144,286        (1,576,890)   
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement 607,146        (53,611)        
Contributions restricted for plant expansion and endowment (424,237)      (91,315)        
Change in funds held by others 457,893        (1,150,547)   
Depreciation and amortization 1,045,584     1,016,693     
Noncash assets received as contribution -               (54,578)        
Forgiveness of debt (72,499)        -               


Change in certain operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:


Receivables and other assets (570,663)      (46,690)        
Contributions receivable (30,541)        (90,436)        


(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (269,853)      (109,896)      
Accrued wages and benefits (3,679)          66,736          
Deferred revenues and deposits 2,226            118,031        
Asset retirement obligations 11,716          48,482          
U.S. government grants refundable 13,239          20,032          


Net cash provided by operating activities 7,422,978     6,131,422     


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Student loans advanced (245,429)      (192,237)      
Student loans collected 114,969        169,740        
Purchases of land, buildings, and equipment (1,449,316)   (888,778)      


Less new debt incurred on purchases -               152,404        
Change in accounts payable incurred on purchases (192,212)      183,054        


Change in investments, net of proceeds from sales (9,019,065)   (3,449,047)   


Net cash used in investing activities (10,791,053) (4,024,864)   


CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from contributions restricted for plant expansion and endowment 424,237        91,315          


500,000        -               
Payments of debt (617,756)      (574,763)      


Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 306,481        (483,448)      


Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,061,594)   1,623,110     


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning 10,855,714   9,232,604     


Ending 7,794,120$   10,855,714$ 


SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest 773,622$      749,523$      


SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON CASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Debt incurred to acquire equipment -$             152,404$      


Contributions of non-cash assets -$             54,578$        


Fixed assets purchases included in accounts payable 22,036$        214,248$      


TRINITY COLLEGE


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011


Proceeds from new debt


 The Notes to Financial Statements are


   an integral part of these statements.
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TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012


(Continued) 8


Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies


Trinity College (the “College”) is an independent, comprehensive College located in Washington, D.C.  
The College was founded in 1897 by the Sisters of Notre Dame De Namur and in accordance with the 
Act of Congress under which the College is chartered.  The College includes the historic undergraduate 
women’s college (the College of Arts and Sciences), the coeducational School of Education, the School 
of Professional Studies, and the School of Nursing and Health Professions. The Board of Trustees 
governs the College and is responsible for all management and policy making of the College.


The Board approved the adoption of the name “Trinity University (Washington, D.C.)” as an enterprise 
name and to conduct operations under.  The Board adopted this change in recognition of the fact that 
Trinity’s operations are characteristic of institutions recognized as universities.  To further distinguish 
Trinity in print material, Trinity refers to itself as Trinity Washington University.  The Board decided 
that “Trinity College” would continue as the official legal name of the institution.  Notice was provided 
to the Education Licensing Commission in accordance with D.C. Code.


The College is accredited by the Commission on Higher Education of the Middle States Association of 
Colleges and Schools.  The School of Education is accredited by the National Council for Accreditation 
of Teacher Education. Trinity’s nursing program is accredited by the Commission on Collegiate 
Nursing Education.


The significant accounting policies followed by the College are described below:


Basis of financial statement presentation and accounting:


The financial statements of the College have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates.


The accompanying financial statements present information regarding the College’s financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and 
permanently restricted.  The three classes are differentiated based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions, as described below:


Unrestricted net assets are free of donor-imposed restrictions.  Unrestricted net assets may be 
designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited 
by contractual agreements with outside parties.  Revenues, gains, and losses that are not 
temporarily or permanently restricted by donors are included in this classification.  Expenses are 
reported as decreases in this classification.


Temporarily restricted net assets are limited in use by donor-imposed stipulations that expire 
either by the passage of time or that can be fulfilled by action of the College pursuant to those 
stipulations.


Permanently restricted net assets are amounts required by donors to be held in perpetuity; 
however, generally the income on these assets is available to meet various restricted and other 
operating needs.  These net assets primarily include permanent endowment funds.







TRINITY COLLEGE


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Cash and cash equivalents:


The College considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.  Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates 
market value.  Cash held for long-term investment is classified as investments or funds designated for 
investment in land, buildings, and equipment.


Included in cash and cash equivalents are funds of approximately $ - and $867,000 at 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which have donor imposed restrictions.  In addition, cash and 
cash equivalents includes bond project funds and funds related to the federal student loan program 
totaling approximately $723,000 and $771,000 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.


Checks written on the College’s zero balance accounts of $174,000 and $512,000 are included in 
accounts payable and accrued expenses as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.


The College follows the common cash management practice of consolidating certain of its operating 
cash and cash equivalent accounts into one account, which includes various designated and restricted 
current operating accounts.  As a result of this practice, cash and cash equivalents specifically 
associated with the original gift of certain designated and restricted monies can be spent from the 
consolidated account.  When this occurs, the activity is accounted for by maintaining receivables and 
payables between the net asset classes. The College has sufficient unrestricted funds included in the 
consolidated account to cover the designated or restricted monies spent. 


Accounts receivable:


Accounts receivable consist of student accounts receivable, consortium receivables, grants receivable, 
and other receivables and are reflected at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts based on 
historical collection experience of the College, as applicable.  Receivables outstanding at the end of a 
semester are considered past due.  The College does not charge interest on outstanding balances and 
receivables over two years old are written off.  As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the College has student 
receivables, net of allowance, from non-current semesters of approximately $666,000 and $503,000, 
respectively.


Investments:


Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt 
securities are reported at their fair values.  The fair value of investments in equities, bonds, U.S. 
government securities, and short-term assets is determined by reference to quoted market prices and 
other relevant information generated by market transactions.  Net unrealized and realized gains or losses 
are reflected in the statements of activities.  


Gifts of investments are recorded at their fair value (based upon quotations or appraisals) at the date of 
gift.  Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the trade date.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Investments:  (Continued)


Income and realized and unrealized net gains on investments of endowment and similar net asset classes 
are reported as follows:


 As increases in permanently restricted net assets if the terms of the gift require that they be 
added to the principal of a permanent endowment fund;


 As increases in temporarily restricted net assets if the terms of the gift impose restrictions on the 
use of the income, including income earned on donor restricted endowment funds;


 As increases in unrestricted net assets in all other cases.


The College has various investment vehicles that the carrying value fluctuates with the financial 
markets.  As a result, the value of such investments as of the date of this report may be materially 
different than year end values.


Land, buildings, and equipment:


Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of 
gift, less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets.


Equipment is removed from the records and any gain or loss is recognized at the time of disposal. 
Expenditures for new construction, major renewals and replacements, and equipment exceeding $5,000 
are capitalized.


Construction in progress is carried at cost incurred to date and, when completed, is transferred to the 
appropriate land, buildings, or equipment category and is depreciated in accordance with the College’s 
policies.


The College recognizes costs related to planned major maintenance activities as costs are incurred.


Accrued compensation:


The College accrues for salaries and all other compensation earned but not paid.


Student and other deposits:


Deposits and student fees applicable to academic sessions subsequent to the current year are deferred 
and recognized as revenues in subsequent periods.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Notes receivable and U.S. government grants refundable:


The College participates in the Federal Perkins Loan Program sponsored by the United States 
Government.  Under this program, funds are loaned to qualified students and may be reloaned after 
collection.  Student loan receivables related to this program are recorded as notes receivable.  The 
portion of those funds contributed by the U.S. Government (that is, exclusive of the College’s match 
funds) is ultimately refundable to the government and, accordingly, are recorded as a liability, U.S. 
government grants refundable.


The College accounts for its notes receivable at cost and recognizes interest income as it is earned.  An 
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on prior collection history and individual circumstances of the 
borrower.  Notes are considered past due after 30-45 days and accrue interest until written off when 
considered uncollectible.


Bond discount:


Bond discount is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related financing 
agreement.


Split-interest agreements:


The College participates in various split-interest agreements that are unconditional and irrevocable. 
These arrangements are established when a donor makes a gift to the College or a trust in which the 
College shares benefits with other beneficiaries.  Generally, the College accounts for these agreements 
by recording its share of the related assets at fair market value (which approximates the present value of 
the estimated future cash receipts).  Liabilities are recorded for any portion of the assets held for donors 
or other beneficiaries equal to the present value of the expected future payments to be made.  The 
liabilities are adjusted annually for changes in the value of the assets, accretion of the discount, and 
other changes in the estimates of future benefits.  Contribution revenues are recognized at the dates the 
agreements are established for the difference between the assets and the liabilities.


If a third party is the trustee until the termination of the trust and then the remaining assets are 
transferred to the beneficiaries, the assets less related liabilities are included in funds held in trust by 
others.  If the donor establishes a perpetual trust with a third party as trustee (the College will never 
receive the principal of the trust), the assets less related liabilities are also included in funds held in trust 
by others.  The fair value of funds held in trust by others is determined by the present value of estimated 
future cash flows.


Asset retirement obligations (AROs):


An asset retirement obligation is a legal liability of the College for the cost of retiring a tangible 
long-lived asset (e.g., a building containing asbestos) that results from the acquisition, construction, or 
development and/or the normal operation of the long-lived asset.  A conditional ARO is a legal 
obligation in which the timing and/or method of retirement are conditional on a future event that may or 
may not be within the control of the College.  The College has conditional asset retirement obligations 
primarily associated with fully depreciated buildings which are recorded at their estimated fair value.  
The liabilities are accreted each year using a risk-adjusted interest rate.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Net asset classifications of institutional funds:


The College holds institutional funds, principally endowment funds, subject to the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).  “Endowment” is a commonly used term to refer to 
the resources, including trusts and annuities that have been restricted by the donor or designated by the 
Board that will be invested to provide future revenue to support the College’s activities.  The College’s 
endowment consists of approximately 40 individual funds established for a variety of purposes.  As 
titled, UPMIFA provides guidance and applicable regulations relative to the management of applicable 
funds.


In response to UPMIFA, the College adopted the provisions of accounting guidance for the net asset 
classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for an organization that is subject to UPMIFA and 
also required related financial statement disclosures.


Interpretation of UPMIFA


The Board of Trustees of the College has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the 
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  Accordingly, the College classifies as permanently 
restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the 
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations of 
investment returns to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument, when applicable, at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.


The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as permanently 
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are 
appropriated for expenditure by the College in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence 
prescribed by UPMIFA.  In accordance with UPMIFA, the College considers the following factors 
in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the 
duration and preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the College and the donor-restricted 
endowment fund, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, 
(5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of 
the College, and (7) the investment policies of the College.


Return Objectives and Risk Parameters


The College has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to 
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to 
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.  Endowment assets include those of 
donor-restricted funds that organizations must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period as 
well as board-designated funds.  Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the 
endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to provide an average annual rate of 
return of approximately 2.0% plus inflation (measured as the consumer price index), net of 
management fees, over a rolling three year period.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from 
this amount.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Net asset classifications of institutional funds:  (Continued)


Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives


To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the College relies on a total return strategy in 
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) 
and current yield (interest and dividends).  The College targets a diversified asset allocation that 
places emphasis on investments in equities and fixed income securities in the following percent
target ratios to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints:


Minimum
Target 


Average Maximum


Domestic Large Capitalization Stocks:
LGrowth 15 20 25
LValue 15 20 25


Small/Medium Capitalization Stocks 10 15 20


International Equity 5 10 15


Total equity 45 65 85


Domestic Investment Grade Fixed Income 25 35 45


Total fixed income 25 35 45


Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Related to Spending Policy


The College employs a total return endowment spending policy that establishes the amount of 
endowment investment return that is available to support current needs and restricted purposes.  
This policy is designed to insulate program spending from capital market fluctuations and to 
increase the amount of return that is reinvested in the corpus of the fund in order to enhance its 
long-term value.  For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Board-approved spending 
formula for the endowment provided for an annual spending rate of not more than 5.0% of a 
three-year moving average of the investment pool fair value.  If cash yield (interest and dividends) 
is less than the spending rate, realized gains can be used to make up the deficiency.  Any income in 
excess of the spending rate is to be reinvested in the endowment.


Funds with Deficiencies (“Underwater” funds)


From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment 
funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the College to retain as a fund of 
perpetual duration.  Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets and were $ - as 
of June 30, 2012 and 2011.  
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Contributions:


Contributions, including unconditional promises to give or contributions receivable, are recognized as 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or 
nature of any donor restrictions, in the period the donor’s commitment is received.  Unrestricted, 
unconditional promises to give are recognized as temporarily restricted operating revenues unless the 
donor explicitly stipulates its use to support current period activities.


Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional – that is, when the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  Contributions of assets other than cash are 
recorded at their estimated fair value.  Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an 
appropriate discount rate commensurate with the risks involved.  Amortization of the discount is 
recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on 
the contributions.  An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is provided based upon 
management’s judgment, including such factors as prior collection history, type of contribution and 
nature of the fundraising activity.


Contributions of land, buildings, and equipment without donor stipulations concerning the use of such 
long-lived assets are reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class.  Contributions of cash or 
other assets, to be used to acquire land, buildings, and equipment, with such donor stipulations are 
reported as revenues of the temporarily restricted net asset class; the restrictions are considered to be 
released at the time of acquisition of such long-lived assets.


Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same year as received are 
reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class.


Operating results:


Operating activities in the statements of activities illustrate a measure of how the College is maintaining 
the resources available for its “current operations.”  Operations reflect all transactions increasing or 
decreasing unrestricted net assets except those of a capital nature – that is, capitalized for long-term 
investment or as land, buildings, and equipment.  Temporarily restricted net assets released from 
restrictions which satisfy an operating purpose are also classified as operating.


In accordance with the College’s total return policy, as described previously, only the portion of total 
investment return available under this policy to meet operating needs is included in operating revenues.


Additionally, the portion of total investment return available to support current operations under the 
College’s total return policy is excluded from cash flows from operating activities; only the actual cash 
yield is included in cash flows from operating activities.


Costs related to the operation and maintenance of physical plant, including depreciation of plant 
assets, are allocated to operating programs and supporting activities based upon periodic inventories 
of facilities.  Interest expense on external debt is allocated to the activities that have most directly 
benefited from the proceeds of the external debt.  Employee and staff benefits are allocated to 
operating programs and supporting activities based upon salary expenses of these programs and 
activities.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Operating results:  (Continued)


Derivative instrument:


The College utilizes a derivative financial instrument to reduce its exposure to market risks from 
changes in interest rates.  By entering into a pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap, the College 
limits its exposure to changes in variable interest rates.  The College is exposed to credit related losses 
in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to the interest rate swap; however, the counterparty 
is a major financial institution and the risk of loss due to nonperformance is considered remote.  Interest 
rate differentials paid or received on the swap are recognized as adjustments to interest expense in the 
period earned or incurred.


The fair value of interest rate swap agreements is the estimated amount the College would receive or 
pay to terminate the agreement based on reference to market rate inputs and the net present value of 
future cash flows as determined by the lender.


Advertising costs:


The College follows the policy of charging advertising costs to expenses as incurred.


Fair value measurements:


The College carries various assets and liabilities at fair value.  Fair value is defined as the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.  In determining fair value, a market-based approach is 
used which establishes that fair value is based on the “highest and best use”.  Additionally, in 
accordance with accounting guidance, the College categorizes its financial instruments, based on the 
priority of the inputs to the valuation technique, into a three-level fair value hierarchy as reflected 
below.  The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).


Level 1 – Fair values are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that management has the ability to access at the measurement date.


Level 2 – Fair values are based on inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are either 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets 
or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that were 
observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated 
by observable market data by correlation or other means.


Level 3 – Fair values are based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability where there is 
little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)


Fair value measurements:  (Continued)


The estimated fair value for specific groups of financial instruments is presented within the notes 
applicable to such items.  If not specifically presented, fair value is estimated to approximate the 
related carrying value.  It was not considered practical to determine fair value of notes receivable 
from students under the U.S. government loan programs and related government advances because 
the notes receivable are non-marketable and can only be assigned to the U.S. government or its 
designees.  These installment notes are due over terms of ten years, with interest at 5% per month per 
annum, and are carried at face value.  


Credit risk concentrations:


Financial instruments which potentially subject the College to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash, marketable securities, and student accounts receivable and loans receivable.  The 
College places its cash with high-credit, quality financial institutions.  A portion of the College’s bank 
deposits are in excess of federally insured limits.  Concentration of credit risk for marketable securities 
is limited by the College’s policy of diversification of investments.  Concentration of credit risk for 
student accounts receivable and loans receivable are limited, due to a large base and geographic 
dispersion.


Art collection:


The College’s art collection, which was acquired through purchases and contributions, is not recognized 
as an asset in the accompanying statements of financial position since the art is held purely for 
educational purposes.  Purchased collection items are recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets in 
the year in which the items are acquired, or in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if the 
assets used to purchase the items are restricted by donors.


Income taxes:


The College is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.


The federal Form 990s of the College are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service, 
generally for three years after they are filed.


Reclassifications:


Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts in order to conform to the current year 
presentation.


Subsequent events:


The College has evaluated subsequent events through October 3, 2012, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued.
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Note 2. Receivables and other assets


Receivables and other assets, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, consist of the following as of 
June 30:


2012 2011


Student receivables, net 1,272,850 1,015,650
Other receivables 736,892 343,987
Bond issuance costs 174,926 183,672
Prepaid expenses 86,688 148,570
Accrued investment income 57,414 66,228


$ 2,328,770 $ 1,758,107


Note 3. Contributions Receivable


Contributions receivable consist of the following as of June 30:


2012 2011


Unconditional promises to give cash $ -   $ 99,426
Charitable trusts held by others 515,902 385,935


$ 515,902 $ 485,361


Expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $ -   $ 99,426
One to five years -   -   
More than five years 976,125 568,685


976,125 668,111


Less:
Actuarial present value of future payments


at 1.2% – 2.4% (460,223) (182,750)


$ 515,902 $ 485,361


The breakdown by net asset class for contributions receivable as of June 30 is as follows:


2012 2011


Temporarily restricted $ -   $ 99,426
Permanently restricted 515,902 385,935


$ 515,902 $ 485,361
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Note 3. Contributions Receivable (Continued)


As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the College has also received bequest intentions and certain other 
conditional promises to give.  These intentions and certain other conditional promises to give are not 
recognized as assets; and, if they are received, will generally be restricted for a specific purpose 
stipulated by the donors, primarily, either endowments for scholarships, faculty support, or general 
operating support of a particular department of the College.  


For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the College recorded contributions from fourteen and 
thirteen donors that totaled approximately 65.1% and 49.6% of contributions, respectively.


Note 4. Investments


Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30:


2012


Endowment Other Total


Common stocks and 
equity mutual


funds $ 8,281,305 74.8% $ 1,373,322 7.2% $ 9,654,627 31.9%
Corporate bonds and 


fixed income
mutual funds 2,373,428 21.5 14,252,344 74.3 16,625,772 55.0


U.S. government
bonds -    - 213,561 1.1 213,561 0.7


Foreign corporate
bonds -    - 442,280 2.3 442,280 1.5


Cash and cash
equivalents 412,670 3.7 2,901,006 15.1 3,313,676 10.9


$ 11,067,403 100.0% $ 19,182,513 100.0% $ 30,249,916 100.0%


2011
Endowment Other Total


Common stocks and 
equity mutual


funds $ 8,076,593 73.1% $ 337,752 3.3% $ 8,414,345 31.9%
Corporate bonds and 


fixed income
mutual funds 2,749,571 24.9 9,116,701 88.2 11,866,272 55.0


U.S. government
bonds -    - 373,619 3.6 373,619 0.7


Foreign corporate
bonds -    - 430,882 4.2 430,882 1.5


Cash and cash
equivalents 216,872 2.0 73,147 0.7 290,019 10.9


$ 11,043,036 100.0% $ 10,332,101 100.0% $ 21,375,137 100.0%
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Note 4. Investments (Continued)


The College has various investment vehicles that have carrying values that fluctuate with the financial 
markets.  As a result, the value of such investments may have changed from year end values and that 
change may or may not be material.


The ownership of investments for each class of net assets as of June 30 is as follows:


2012 2011


Unrestricted $ 17,635,048 $ 9,673,898
Temporarily restricted 4,843,672 4,090,627
Permanently restricted 7,771,196 7,610,612


$ 30,249,916 $ 21,375,137


The market value of investment asset classifications is as follows as of June 30:


2012 2011


Endowment – held by College $ 11,067,404 $ 11,043,036
Trusts and annuities 1,547,464 658,203
Unrestricted current funds 17,635,048 9,673,898


$ 30,249,916 $ 21,375,137


Investment activity for the years ended June 30 is reflected in the table below:


2012 2011


Investments, beginning $ 21,375,137 $ 16,349,200
Gifts and pledge payments available for investment


and investment income reinvestment 160,584 14,315


21,535,721 16,363,515


Investment returns (net of expenses 2012 $63,400;
2011 $65,400):


Dividends, and interest 580,266 605,463


Investment return, net of amount available to support
current operations per statements of activities (76,226) 1,780,241


Add spending in excess of cash yield (68,060) (203,351)


Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) (144,286) 1,576,890


Total return on investments 435,980 2,182,353


Amounts appropriated for operations, net transfers to
operational accounts, debt payments, and other activity 8,278,215 2,829,269


Investments, ending $ 30,249,916 $ 21,375,137
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Note 4. Investments (Continued)


The following schedule summarizes total investment return and its classification in the statements of 
activities for the years ended June 30:


2012 2011


Investment income $ 580,266 $ 605,463
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments (144,286) 1,576,890


Total return on investments $ 435,980 $ 2,182,353


Included in the statement of activities as follows:


Operating revenues – investment income, endowment,
and other – amount distributed to support current


operations pursuant to the endowment spending
policy $ 471,311 $ 364,261


Investment return, net of amount available to support
current operations (76,226) 1,780,241


Investment income, included in interest
income – temporary investments 40,895 37,851


$ 435,980 $ 2,182,353


Note 5. Land, Buildings, and Equipment


Land, buildings, and equipment consists of the following at June 30:


Estimated
Useful Life 2012 2011


Buildings 50 years $ 28,625,213 $ 28,625,213
Building improvements 10-20 years 6,237,939 4,839,723
Land improvements 50 years 1,361,697 1,361,697
Equipment 5 years 5,435,057 5,408,973
Computer equipment 5 years 2,691,107 2,541,801


44,351,013 42,777,407
Less accumulated depreciation (23,943,473) (22,909,852)


20,407,540 19,867,555
Land 83,218 83,218
Construction in progress -   130,879


$ 20,490,758 $ 20,081,652
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Note 5. Land, Buildings, and Equipment (Continued)


At June 30, 2012 and 2011, land, buildings, and equipment includes capitalized conditional asset 
retirement obligations at a cost of $160,664 which have been fully depreciated.


Included in equipment are assets under capital leases of $268,387, with related accumulated 
depreciation of $103,714 and $50,036 for 2012 and 2011, respectively.


Note 6. Funds Held in Trust by Others


The College is the beneficiary of various trusts created by donors, the assets of which are not in the 
possession of the College.  The College has legally enforceable rights and claims to income there from.  
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) related to these interests are reported as changes in 
permanently restricted net assets based on explicit donor stipulations.  The market value of these 
interests as of June 30 are as follows:


Income
Restriction 2012 2011


Claire Boothe Luce Fund * $ 6,155,000 $ 6,500,000


Helen Rotterman Trust Unrestricted 729,418 746,502


M. Rotterman Trust Unrestricted 2,088,520 2,146,102


Russell T. Finn Trust Scholarships 983,664 1,012,824


Dougherty Scholarship
Irrevocable Trust Educational purposes 255,580 264,647


$ 10,212,182 $ 10,670,075


*Scholarships, fellowships, and professorships for women in science and technology.  The annual 
income distribution totaled $288,000 and $265,000 for 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Note 7. Debt


The College’s debt consists of the following as of June 30:


2012 2011


District of Columbia Series 2001, revenue bonds.  The 
bonds are secured by a standby letter of credit, and bear 
interest at variable rates determined by the marketing 
agent (0.18% and 0.08% at June 30, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively). Interest is due monthly.  Principal 
payments on the bonds are due annually in varying 
amounts ranging from $530,000 to $1,170,000.  Final 
payment is due July 1, 2031.  Bond discount was 
approximately 2012 $107,000; 2011 $113,000.  
Proceeds were used for the sole purpose of the 
development, design, equipping, renovation, and 
construction of the Trinity Center for Women and Girls 
in Sports and related field and ground renovations.  
These bonds are subject to an interest rate swap 
agreement, described below. $ 16,102,528 $ 16,602,154


Obligations under capital leases, payable in monthly 
installments of $8,039 including imputed interest 
ranging from 22.25% to 28.80% through April 2016.  
Secured by equipment. 197,299 235,710


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Aramark 
Management Services for update of existing facilities, 
payable on a straight-line basis through April 2013.  As 
part of the new contract negotiation, Aramark assumed 
the remaining balance of this loan in July 2011. -   36,667


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Aramark 
Management Services for purchase and installation of 
equipment, payable on a straight-line basis through 
December 2012.  As part of the new contract 
negotiation, Aramark assumed the remaining balance of 
this loan in July 2011. -   39,423


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Sodexo, Inc. 
for purchase of equipment for food service operations, 
payable on a straight-line basis through December 2016. 112,500 137,500
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Note 7. Debt (Continued)


The College’s debt consists of the following as of June 30:  (Continued)


2012 2011


Unsecured and interest-free obligation to Aramark
Management Services for capital improvements, payable 
on a straight-line basis through July 2021. 454,246 -   


$ 16,866,573 $ 17,051,454


Debt matures as follows:


Year ending June 30,
2013 $ 648,890
2014 682,873
2015 687,020
2016 712,022
2017 682,126
2018 and thereafter 13,453,642


$ 16,866,573


The college is party to a swap agreement with Wells Fargo Bank with an expiration date of
January 2018.  The swap agreement fixed the interest rate at 3.06%.  The basis of the swap is the 
Bond Market Association’s Swap Index through June 2013 and then the basis will switch to 
LIBOR for the remaining term of the swap.  The swap agreement had a notional principal amount of 
$16,210,000 and $16,715,000 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.


The difference between the floating rate and the fixed rate interest is recognized as an adjustment to 
interest expense in the period incurred. The fair value of the swap agreement is estimated based on 
current settlement prices and totaled approximately $(1,933,000) and $(1,326,000) at June 30, 2012 
and 2011, respectively, and is included in the statement of financial position.  The change in value of 
the interest rate swap of approximately $(607,000) and $54,000 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively, has been reflected in change of fair value of swap agreement in the non-operating 
section of the statement of activities.


Pursuant to the District of Columbia, Series 2001 revenue bond agreement, the College is subject to 
certain debt covenants the most restrictive of which is the requirement to maintain a minimum debt 
service coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0.  As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, management is not aware of any 
violations of the covenants.
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Note 8. Net Assets


Net assets as of June 30 consisted of the following:


2012 2011


Unrestricted
Unrestricted operating funds $ 17,645,048 $ 9,683,898
Investment in land, buildings, and equipment, net


of debt 1,171,545 1,172,885
Undesignated 6,241,929 7,463,182


25,058,522 18,319,965


Temporarily restricted
Accumulated endowment investment return, net


of amounts spent 3,296,208 3,432,424
Amounts held for trust and annuity payments 87,106 104,937
Restricted for future operations 1,360,572 1,195,110
Restricted for public service expenses 47,054 71,990
Restricted for buildings and equipment 339,212 285,120
Contributions receivable -   99,426


5,130,152 5,189,007


Permanently restricted
Restricted in perpetuity; only the income is expendable:


Endowment principal 7,771,196 7,610,612
Contributions receivable 515,902 385,935
Funds held in trust by others 10,212,182 10,670,075


18,499,280 18,666,622


Total net assets $ 48,687,954 $ 42,175,594


Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to both purpose and time restrictions.  Temporarily 
restricted accumulated endowment investment return, net of amounts spent, is restricted for future 
operations, financial aid and maintenance, and acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment. 
Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to investment in perpetuity, the income from which is 
expendable to support future operations, financial aid, and maintenance and acquisition of land, 
buildings, and equipment.
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Note 9. Tuition and Fees, Net of Financial Aid


Tuition and fees include regular session tuition for the College’s undergraduate and graduate regular 
and summer sessions as well as miscellaneous fees, such as application, graduation, lab, and late fees.


Undergraduate tuition and fees totaled 73.8% and 73.0% of total tuition and fees for 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.  Financial aid for undergraduates totaled $8,042,772 and $7,508,134, respectively, with 
the unfunded portion of these amounts totaling 27.6% and 29.0%, respectively, of undergraduate 
tuition and fees.


Note 10. Net Assets Released from Restrictions and Reclassifications


Net assets were released from donor restrictions when expenses were incurred to satisfy the restricted 
purposes, or by occurrence of other events as specified by donors.  Restrictions were satisfied as follows 
for the years ended June 30:


2012 2011


Operating:
Financial aid $ 273,579 $ 295,163
Instructional expenses 305,820 321,666
Student Services 19,593 57,603
Academic support 30,487 20,557
Public service expenses 12,587 15,060


Total operating $ 642,066 $ 710,049


Non-operating:
Plant expenses $ 231,904 $ 169,193


Total non-operating $ 231,904 $ 169,193


Note 11. Operating Expenses


Functional expenses as reported on the statement of activities include expenses in natural classification.  
The most significant expense under a natural classification is compensation and employee benefits 
(including payroll taxes) which totals 52.9% and 8.4%, respectively for 2012 and 51.8% and 8.3%, 
respectively for 2011.  A more extensive breakdown of expenses in natural classification can be found 
in the College’s annual federal tax exempt Form 990 return.  Program service expenses totaled 72.3% 
and 72.2% in 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Note 11. Operating Expenses (Continued)


Costs related to the operations and maintenance of the physical plant, including depreciation and interest 
expense are allocated to operating programs and supporting activities, as follows:


Year Ended June 30, 2012


Expenses Total Final
Before Expense Allocated


Allocation Allocation Expenses


Education and general:
Instruction $ 8,301,122 $ 1,290,942 $ 9,592,064
Public service 169,560 -   169,560
Academic support 2,848,979 258,188 3,107,167
Student services 3,405,716 1,244,646 4,650,362
Institutional support 7,114,491 1,032,754 8,147,245


Auxiliary services 1,933,944 1,761,023 3,694,967
Operations and maintenance


of physical plant 3,768,247 (3,768,247) -   
Depreciation and amortization 1,045,584 (1,045,584) -   
Interest expense 773,722 (773,722) -   


$ 29,361,365 $ -   $ 29,361,365


Year Ended June 30, 2011


Expenses Total Final
Before Expense Allocated


Allocation Allocation Expenses


Education and general:
Instruction $ 8,043,359 $ 1,312,142 $ 9,355,501
Public service 360,436 -    360,436
Academic support 2,118,165 262,429 2,380,594
Student services 2,814,958 1,261,650 4,076,608
Institutional support 6,555,257 1,049,714 7,604,971


Auxiliary services 1,827,445 1,786,507 3,613,952
Operations and maintenance


of physical plant 3,868,230 (3,868,230) -    
Depreciation and amortization 1,016,693 (1,016,693) -    
Interest expense 787,519 (787,519) -    


$ 27,392,062 $ -    $ 27,392,062
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Note 12. Employee Benefits


Retirement benefits are provided for eligible faculty and staff employees by a contributory pension plan 
for annuity contracts with Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and College Retirement Equities 
Fund.  Employees are eligible after one year of full-time employment and attaining the age of 
twenty-one.  All participants have a fully vested interest in the total contributions made on their behalf.  
The College automatically contributes 2% of all eligible employees’ base salary, and matches an 
additional voluntary contribution of up to 6%.  Under the plan, the College contributed approximately 
$439,000 and $396,000 in 2012 and 2011, respectively, which was charged to operating expenses.


Note 13. Operating Leases


The College leases several copiers and a mailing system under non-cancelable leases expiring through 
October 2016.  Rent expense under these operating leases was $39,193 and $63,552 for 2012 and 
2011, respectively.


Future minimum lease payments under all operating leases for years ending June 30 are as follows:


2013 $ 13,819
2014 7,238
2015 5,880
2016 5,880
2017 1,960


$ 34,777


Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies


The College has conditional asset retirement obligations that can be reasonably estimated primarily 
associated with encapsulated asbestos in its fully depreciated buildings.  Liabilities totaling $1,049,630
and $1,037,914 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, are reflected in the statements of financial 
position.


Final expenditure reports of grants and contracts submitted to certain granting agencies in current and 
prior years are subject to audit by such agencies.  As a result, the reimbursed expenditures are subject to 
adjustment.  The effect of such adjustments, if any, is not determinable at this time.  Management is of 
the opinion that the liability, if any, would not have a material effect on the College’s financial position.


The College’s students receive a substantial amount of support from state and federal student 
financial assistance programs.  A significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to 
occur, may have an adverse effect on the College’s programs and activities.


The College is under a long-term contract with Sodexo, Inc. to provide food service.  The initial term 
of the agreement ends January 1, 2017 and the agreement will renew automatically for consecutive 
terms of one year each.  Upon expiration, termination or cancellation of the contract the College shall 
reimburse the provider the remaining balance of unamortized capital expenditures.  The remaining 
unamortized capital expenditures at June 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled $112,500 and $137,500,
respectively, and is included in debt in the statement of financial position.
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Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)


The College is under a long-term contract with Aramark Management Services to provide facilities 
management.  The initial term of the agreement ends January 5, 2013 and the agreement shall 
continue thereafter, until terminated by either party.  The contract can be cancelled at any time before 
the agreement expires with payment of the remaining balance of unamortized capital expenditures.  
This contract was amended and restated as of July 29, 2011, with a term ending July 31, 2021.  As 
part of this contract, Aramark assumed the existing unamortized capital expenditures and gave Trinity 
an additional $500,000 to be used for capital improvements. The remaining unamortized capital 
expenditures at June 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled $454,246 and $76,089, respectively, and is included 
in debt in the statement of financial position.  The capital expenditure agreement also provides that if 
the agreement is terminated by the College then all accrued but unbilled interest at prime plus 2% is 
to be paid.


Note 15. Endowment


Endowment net assets consist of:


Year Ended June 30, 2012


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Funds held by the College:
Donor-restricted $ -   $ 3,296,208 $ 7,771,196 $ 11,067,404


Donor-restricted funds held 
in trust by others -   -   10,728,084 10,728,084


Total $ -   $ 3,296,208 $ 18,499,280 $ 21,795,488


Year Ended June 30, 2011


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Funds held by the College:
Donor-restricted $ -    $ 3,432,424 $ 7,610,612 $ 11,043,036


Donor-restricted funds held 
in trust by others -    -    11,056,010 11,056,010


Total $ -    $ 3,432,424 $ 18,666,622 $ 22,099,046
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Note 15. Endowment (Continued)


Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 are as follows:


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Endowment net assets,
July 1, 2011 $ -    $ 3,432,424 $ 18,666,622 $ 22,099,046


Investment return:
Investment income -   261,261 -   261,261
Realized and 


unrealized gains -   (236,893) -   (236,893)


Total investment
return -   24,368 -   24,368


Contributions -   -   282,338 282,338


Appropriation for
expenditure and


other expenses -   (160,584) -   (160,584)


Change in value of 
funds held in trust


by others -   -   (449,680) (449,680)


Endowment net assets,
June 30, 2012 $ -   $ 3,296,208 $ 18,499,280 $ 21,795,488
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Note 15. Endowment (Continued)


Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows:


Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total


Endowment net assets,
July 1, 2010 $ (114,937) $ 1,690,254 $ 17,454,457 $ 19,029,774


Investment return:
Investment income -    278,130 -    278,130


Realized and 
unrealized gains 114,937 1,478,356 -    1,593,293


Total investment
return 114,937 1,756,486 -    1,871,423


Contributions -    -    14,315 14,315


Appropriation for
expenditure and


other activity -    (14,316) -    (14,316)


Change in value of
funds held in trust


by others -    -    1,197,850 1,197,850


Endowment net assets,
June 30, 2011 $ -    $ 3,432,424 $ 18,666,622 $ 22,099,046
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurements


The following is a summary of the inputs used in determining the fair values of financial assets and 
liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of June 30:


2012


Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Financial assets:
Investments:


Common stocks and
mutual funds $ 9,654,627 $ 9,654,627 $ -   $ -   


Corporate bonds and
mutual funds 16,625,772 16,625,772 -   -   


U.S. government
bonds 213,561 213,561 -   -   


Foreign corporate
bonds 442,280 442,280 -   -   


Cash and cash
equivalents 3,313,676 3,313,676 -   -   


Total investments 30,249,916 30,249,916 -   -   


Contributions receivable 515,902 -   515,902 -   


Funds held in trust
by others 10,212,182 -   4,057,182 6,155,000


Total financial
assets $ 40,978,000 $ 30,249,916 $ 4,573,084 $ 6,155,000


Financial liabilities:
Fair value of interest 


rate swap agreements $ 1,933,011 $ -   $ 1,933,011 $ -   


Total financial
liabilities $ 1,933,011 $ -   $ 1,933,011 $ -   
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)


2011


Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Financial assets:
Investments:


Common stocks and
mutual funds $ 8,414,345 $ 8,414,345 $ -    $ -    


Corporate bonds and
mutual funds 11,866,272 11,866,272 -    -    


U.S. government
bonds 373,619 373,619 -    -    


Foreign corporate
bonds 430,882 430,882 -    -    


Cash and cash
equivalents 290,019 290,019 -    -    


Total investments 21,375,137 21,375,137 -    -    


Contributions receivable 385,935 -    385,935 -    


Funds held in trust
by others 10,670,075 -    4,170,075 6,500,000


Total financial
assets $ 32,431,147 $ 21,375,137 $ 4,556,010 $ 6,500,000


Financial liabilities:
Fair value of interest 


rate swap agreements $ 1,325,865 $ -    $ 1,325,865 $ -    


Total financial
liabilities $ 1,325,865 $ -    $ 1,325,865 $ -    


The following is a reconciliation of Level 3 funds held in trust by others for which significant 
unobservable inputs were used to determine fair value as of June 30:


2012 2011


Balance, beginning $ 6,500,000 $ 5,637,000
Net change in value (345,000) 863,000


Balance, ending $ 6,155,000 $ 6,500,000
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Note 16. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)


The fair value of investments in common stocks, bonds, and mutual funds are determined based upon 
quoted market prices.  The fair value of contributions receivable is based on the fair value of 
estimated future cash flows.  The fair value of funds held in trust are based on quoted market prices of 
the securities held in the respective trusts.  The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement is 
estimated based on current settlement prices.







Federal Grantor/ Program Title Number Federal 


U.S. Department of Education:


Student Financial Aid Programs:


Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84.007 118,530$        


Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 101,552          


Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 245,429          


Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 5,072,299       


Federal Direct Loan Program 84.268 24,624,147     


Individual Awards – Other:


Upward Bound Program    84.047A 142,174          


Department of Justice


COPS Grant 16.710 32,749            


Total Federal Awards 30,336,880$   


TRINITY UNIVERSITY


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS


Year Ended June 30, 2012
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TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012


Note 1. Basis of Presentation


The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
College and is presented using the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements.  The College’s 
major programs are as follows:


Student Financial Aid


Student Financial Aid includes certain awards to provide financial aid to students, primarily under 
the Federal Work-Study (FWS), Federal Pell Grant (Pell), and Federal Supplemental Educational 
Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) programs of the U.S. Department of Education.  The College also 
receives awards to make loans to eligible students under two federal student loan programs (Federal 
Perkins Loan and Federal Direct Loan).


Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for Expenditures of Federal Awards


Expenditures for federal student financial aid programs are recognized as incurred and include the federal 
share of students’ FSEOG program grants and FWS program earnings.  Federal Pell grant awards, as well 
as Direct Loans are recognized as agency transactions and are not recorded as expenditures in the
financial statements.


Note 3. Federal Direct Loans (FDL)


The College is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to its 
FDL programs and, accordingly, these loans are not included in its financial statements.  It is not practical 
to determine the balance of loans outstanding to students and former students of the College under these 
programs as of June 30, 2012.


Note 4. Federal Perkins Loan Program


Cumulative loans outstanding (net of principal repayments and cancellations), including the $245,429 of
student loans advanced under the Federal Perkins Loan Program in 2012, total $1,469,192.  There was no
federal capital contribution in 2012.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College 
Washington, D.C.


We have audited the financial statements of Trinity College (the “College”) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated October 17, 2012.  We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.


Internal Control over Financial Reporting


Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the College’s 
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the College’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over financial reporting.  


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.


Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.  


However, we noted other matters that we reported to management in a separate letter dated 
October 3, 2012.


***************


This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, 
others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be, and should not be, used 
by anyone other than these specified parties.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
October 17, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT 
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND 


STATE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133


To the Board of Trustees
Trinity College 
Washington, D.C.


Compliance


We have audited the compliance of Trinity College, with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012, 
other than those requirements discussed in the fourth paragraph below.  The College’s major federal 
program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs.  Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the College’s management.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the College’s compliance based on our audit.


We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular 
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the College’s compliance with those 
requirements.


In our opinion, Trinity College complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 
June 30, 2012, other than those requirements discussed in the following paragraph.
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Compliance (Continued)


We did not audit the College’s compliance with requirements governing the maintaining contact 
with and billing borrowers and processing deferment and cancellation requests and payments for the 
Federal Perkins Loan Program.  Those requirements govern functions that are performed by Campus 
Partners.  Since we did not apply auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves as to compliance with those 
requirements, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an 
opinion on compliance with those requirements.  Campus Partners’ compliance with the requirements 
governing the functions that it performs for the College was examined by other accountants whose report 
has been furnished to us.  The report of the other accountants indicates that compliance with those 
requirements was examined in accordance with the U.S. Department of Education’s Audit Guide, 
Compliance Audits (Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student Financial Assistance Programs at 
Participating Institutions and Institution Servicers.  Based on our review of the service organization 
accountant’s report, we have determined that all of the compliance requirements included in the 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the major program in which the 
College participates are addressed in either our report or the report of the service organization accountants.  
Further, based on our review of the service organization accountant’s report, we have determined that it 
does not contain any findings of noncompliance that would have a direct and material effect on the 
College’s major program.


Internal Control over Compliance


Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the College’s internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to 
test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over 
compliance.


Requirements governing the maintaining contact with and billing borrowers and processing 
deferment and cancellation requests and payments for the Federal Perkins Loan Program are performed by 
Campus Partners.  Internal control over compliance relating to such functions was reported on by other 
accountants in accordance with the U.S. Department of Education’s Audit Guide, Compliance Audits 
(Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student Financial Assistance Programs at Participating Institutions 
and Institution Servicers.  A copy of the service organization accountant’s report has been furnished to us.  
However, the scope of our work did not extend to internal control maintained at Campus Partners.


A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  
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Internal Control over Compliance (Continued)


Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above.  


***************


This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, 
others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used 
by anyone other than these specified parties.


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS


Roanoke, Virginia
October 17, 2012
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TRINITY COLLEGE


SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012


A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS


1. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of Trinity College (the 
“College”).


2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent 
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards.


3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the College were disclosed during 
the audit.


4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal and state award programs were
reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements that Could have a Direct 
and Material Effect on each Major Federal and State Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in 
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.


5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs of the College expresses an 
unqualified opinion.


6. The audit disclosed no audit findings relating to the major programs.


7. The major federal award programs tested include:


Student Financial Aid Cluster:


Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84.007


Federal Work-Study Program 84.033


Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038


Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063


Federal Direct Loan Program 84.268


8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.


9. The College was determined to be a low-risk auditee.


B. FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT


None.


C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT


None.





		Trinity 2014 A-133 Audit

		Trinity 2013 A-133 Audit

		Trinity 2012 A-133 Audit















































Date of 


Complaint


Trinity 


Recipient of 


Complaint 


(Title)


Legal or 


Regulatory 


Filing Summary of Complaint Disposition of Complaint


CAS NHP SPS BGS EDU


Grade Faculty Other Financial Aid Billing Other HarassmentSexual DiscriminationOther


9/7/10 X Provost x


Student wished to be 


reimbursed for two courses 


she had not passed


Student was assigned W's for 


courses in question, but was 


not reimbursed


7/30/13 X


Dean of 


CAS x


Two students felt pressure 


to report on another 


student; alleged 


inappropriate contact and 


tone on the part of the 


professor and alleged that 


grades were withheld


Professor met with Provost 


and HR to discuss conduct.  


Faculty member assigned 


missing grade points.


10/1/2013 X DSS X X ADA


Student complained that 


her professor did not 


provide accommodations, 


and that the college did not 


support her academic 


success.   


DSS director determined the 


professor was 


accommodating the student 


with extra time to complete 


exams and assignments. DSS 


director reminded the 


student of the help she had 


been receiving to ensure her 


success. 


10/9/2013 X DSS X ADA


The student reported that 


professor was refusing her 


exta time accommodations 


for at-home assignments 


and assessments, and 


stated the professor told 


her she could not be 


successful in his class. 


The DSS director met with 


the program chair, who 


instructed the professor to 


establish protocols for 


deadlines for the student's 


assignments. 


4/2/2014 X DSS X ADA


Student claimed that a 


professor wasn't 


accommodating her for 


exams. 


DSS Director found that the 


student had not submitted 


current requests for 


accomodation (4/3/14).


9/11/2014 X DSS X X ADA


The student stated that her 


professor refused to 


provide her 


accommodations, and told 


her she would not be 


successful in her major.


DSS, the Dean, and the 


program chair determined 


that the professor refuses to 


accommodate (any) students, 


stating that no student 


needing accommodations 


could be successful in this 


field.  The Provost took the 


decision to replace the 


instructor.


9/15/14 X


Director of 


DSS; CJUS 


Program 


Chair;Dean 


of CAS ADA


Student felt that professor 


did not accommodate her


Academic Affairs made 


decision to withdraw student 


from class; instructor 


replaced due to 


inappropriate demeanor


9/22/2014 X DSS X ADA


Student said that under 


ADA guidelines, she should 


have excused absences 


from all time she had 


missed for the semester.


DSS director met with 


student on 9/23/14 and again 


on 9/24/14 to explain that 


ADA does not cover 


absences.  DSS also asked 


student to submit updated 


documentation. 


9/30/2014 X DSS X X ADA


Student claimed that 


professor was not 


accommodating for quizzes.


DSS director determined that 


the "quizzes" were actually 


group activities.  The student 


decided to take the "group 


quizzes" in class and her 


exams with DSS.


10/21/2014 X DSS X ADA


Student claimed that Trinity 


didn't respond fast enough 


with RSA and processing 


financial aid, causing her to 


fall behind in her bills.  The 


student asked for an 


emergency voucher to 


Director of Enrollment 


Services explained Trinity's 


processes to the student, and 


demonstrated that Trinity 


was not culpable in RSA 


delays that might have 


occurred.


Conduct


Type of Complaint


Trinity Summary of Student Complaints Received 2010-2015 for Middle States Compliance Report


Student's Academic Unit


Academic Financial
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Regulatory 


Filing Summary of Complaint Disposition of Complaint


CAS NHP SPS BGS EDU
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11/11/2014 X DSS X ADA


Student felt uncomfortable 


with the Professor's 


teaching style, and also 


stated the professor had 


not been providing 


accommodations. 


The student and professor 


met and adjusted the 


accommodation plan with 


DSS suppport, after which the 


student successfully 


completed the class. 


2/6/15 X


Dean of 


CAS X ADA


Student asserted that the 


instructor did not provide 


correct accomodations


Student met with Dean and 


DSS and accommodations 


were provided


2/25/15 X


Dean of 


CAS x


Student felt publicly 


corrected by faculty 


member and reported 


inappropriate word choice 


in public correction


Student met with Dean and 


faculty member, who 


apologized for word choice


4/21/15 x President x


Student says she withdrew 


from course because she 


could not understand the 


professor, wants another 


course for free


Case referred to dean for 


advising about another 


course; Trinity will not waive 


the fees; the professor is 


tenured no prior complaints


8/21/15 X


Director of 


DSS ADA


Trinity did not provide 


accommodations as per 


student's expectation after 


Disability Services, CAS Dean 


and others worked to ensure 


that student could enroll full 


9/25/15 x VPSA x


Complaint about grading 


policy Refered to Dean, resolved


1/21/11 x NHP Dean x


Student complained about 


being told her clinical 


documents were missing 


and thus was ineligible to 


participate in a clinical 


course.  The student had 


kept a copy of her records


The nursing program 


resolved the issue with the 


student.  She was able to 


enroll, attend, and complee 


the clinical course.


3/19/11 x NHP Dean x


Student had difficulty 


meeting clinical 


requirements due to 


external vendor slow 


response.


Nursing program worked 


with the student and outside 


vendor to resolve the student 


account problem.


3/21/11 x NHP Dean x


Student expressed 


disappointment of the 


nursing program course 


offerings stating the 


university committed to 


"evening and weekend" 


courses for the working 


adult who sought a nursing 


degree.


Dean asked the student to 


submt her course 


expectations for the 


remainder of her program.  


Ultimately the progarm 


added sections.  The student 


completed her nursing 


degree including 


accommodations for the 


student to take a leave of 


absence for childbirth.


5/10/11 x NHP Dean x


Students in NURS 360C 


Psyc/Mental Health clinical 


course expressed concerns 


about inadequate time in 


patient care contact and 


lack of faculty guidance 


during the clinical 


experience.


The NHP Dean met with the 


faculty member and 


documented the faculty 


performance.  


9/6/11 x NHP Dean x


Student informed dean that 


nursing director was rude. 


Stated she was not allowed 


to take 22 credits or take 4 


clinical courses  in the fall 


Counseled student on college 


approval policy for credits 


earned.  Student dropped 


clinical and didactic courses 


and completed courses the 


9/6/11 x NHP Dean x


Students wanted courses 


they were taking at another 


institution to be transferred 


to Trinity


Explained the Trinity transfer 


policy.  Students were to get 


approval for the course prior 


to enrolling.  Agreed to 


review the transcripts once 


9/9/11 x NHP Dean x


Student wanted courses 


approved while he had a 


financial  hold on his 


account


Explained the Trinity policy.  


Courses were approved after 


student resolved his account 


1/17/12 x NHP Dean x


Student wanted to change 


her clinical course after 


course registration closed


Student was unable to 


register since clinical 


requirements were sent to 


facility, thus course 


registration was closed.
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2/28/12 x NHP Dean x


Student concerned about 


course pedagogy and use of 


videos in the class.


Asked the student to request 


a meeting with the faculty 


member and to follow up 


with dean thereafter.  


Student passed test.  Dean 


discussed issue with faculty 


member. 


3/7/12 x NHP Dean x


Student complained of 


inaccessibility and 


inapprorpriate tone in email 


of his assigned academic 


advisor.  


Student reassigned to 


another advisor.


3/12/12 x NHP Dean x


Student reports he was 


unfairly accused of 


Counseled student on 


developing papers and 


4/27/12 x NHP Dean x


Felt disrespected by nursing 


faculty member.  


Student completed the term, 


subsequently withdrew.


12/17/12 x NHP Dean x


Complained of faculty 


grading policies.  Student 


wanted her B+ grade 


changed


Reviewed Trinity grade 


appeal policy with student.  


No further action


2/8/13 x NHP Dean x


Complained about in-class 


treatment by nursing 


faculty. 


Asked for student to submit 


complaint in writing and 


arrange a meeting with 


faculty member before the 


next class .  Student 


instructed to see dean again 


if she does not get resolve 


desired.  Student did not 


return for followup


5/6/13 x NHP Dean x


Disagreed with ATI policy 


related to passing nursing 


course.  Sought to get 


another chance to take the 


proctored exam in the 


course


Students reminded they had 


a week to study and prepare 


for next test administration.


5/7/13 x NHP Dean x


Disagreed with ATI policy 


related to passing nursing 


course.  Sought to get 


another chance to take the 


proctored exam in the 


course


Nursing held firm on the 


policy.  Student reminded of 


grade appeal policy.  


Referred to academic 


support for test anxiety.  


Student repeated course and 


ultimately graduated.  


5/11/13 x GC x


Student complained about 


dismissal from nursing for 


conduct violations No action no follow-up


5/23/13 x GC x


Student complained about 


dismissal from nursing for 


conduct violations Settled


9/13/2013 X DSS X ADA


Student claimed that NHP 


faculty would not 


accommodate her when 


taking exams. 


DSS director trainted NHP 


staff and asked that they 


provide accommodations.  


Student was able to take all 


exams with DSS after that 


point. 


12/5/13 x NHP Dean x


Students went to the 


President's office to 


complain about not 


participating in graduation 


if they did not meet the 


required 75% on the 


comprehensive predictor.  


Students complained that 


CNO and NHP Dean met with 


students.  Students informed 


they were to follow college 


policy by putting their 


complaint in writing to the 


Provost, CNO and Dean.  CNO 


stated she heard their 


concerns and that she would 


1/23/14 x GC OCR DIS


Student alleged national 


origin discrimin in dismissal


OCR no discrim found case 


closed


4/11/14 x GC OCR DIS


Student alleged national 


origin and gender  discrimin 


in dismissal


OCR no discrim found case 


closed
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6/20/14 x GC OCR DIS


Student alleged race and 


national origin discrim in 


dismissal


OCR no discrim found case 


closed


8/6/14 x NHP Dean OCR DIS


Submitted claim of 


discrimination by nursing 


faculty after failing a course 


that resulted in nursing 


program dismissal OCR dismissed case  


10/24/14 x NHP Dean OCR DIS


Student dismissed from 


nursing program. 


Complaint filed with Officie 


of Civil rights


OCR dismissed case finding 


no wrong-doing by Trinity


3/20/12 x GC OCR ADA


Student alleged disability 


and age discrimination


OCR no discrim found case 


closed


2/6/13 x GC OCR DIS


Student alleged disability 


discrimination Case settled, no finding


12/3/14 x President x Claim that grade was unfair


Dean reviewed, appeal 


denied


1/12/15 x GC x


Student withdrew after 


plagiarism charge, claimed 


that subsequent re-


enrollment made 


plagiarism finding moot


Trinity reviewed case for 


plagiarism and upheld 


dismissal


2/1/15 X


Provost (via 


phone) x


Student felt humiliated by 


faculty and stated faculty 


did not call him by correct 


name


Program Director worked 


with Dean to address the 


issue with faculty member


2/4/15 x President x


Student bought wrong 


version of textbook, claims 


inadequate faculty 


direction about the text


Trinity worked with 


Bookstore to secure a refund


2/12/2015 X DSS X ADA


Parent complained that 


coursework in child's 


biology class was too hard, 


and that the student was 


not receiving 


accommodations.


DSS explained the student 


had not registered with DSS. 


The parent contacted the 


Dean of SPS to initiate 


process of course 


withdrawal.


3/23/15 x President x


Student says faculty 


member spoke to her 


disrespectfully in front of 


other students


Referred to dean for 


discussion with faculty 


member


4/7/15 X Provost x


Student felt indimidated by 


faculty member and stated 


that faculty member 


publicly corrected her in an 


inappropriate way


Provost counseled facutly 


member on classroom 


management issues


7/1/15 X


SPS BADM 


Program 


Chair x


Student felt that adjunct 


Professor was unprepared 


for class yet  had 


inappropriate workload 


expectations


Program Chair interceded to 


counsel faculty member; in 


addition, SPS Dean made 


decision not to reassign 


faculty member based on 


eyewitness accounts of 


demeanor


7/22/15 X Provost x


Student received failing 


grade in an SPS COM class 


and felt 


faculty/administrators did 


not repspond in a timely or 


respectful manner


Student met with Provost 


and Chair of the SPS COM 


program, who explained in 


detail how her grade was 


derived


8/31/15 X Provost x


Student felt disrespected by 


SPS administration and 


believed she had received 


incorrect advising


The Provost and Program 


chair for the student's major 


program met with the 


student to complete an 


academic plan and ensure 


her path to graduation.  


Administration adjusted her 


schedule.


3/9/12 x GC DCHR DIS


Student alleged gender, 


national origin discrim in 


plagiarism case


DCHR no discrim found case 


closed
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11/13/14 x President x


Parent claimed student 


unfairly graded


Dean reviewed;  president 


met with parent and student 


and resolved the case 


without a grade change


1/29/14 X


Director of 


DSS; 


Professor ADA


Student felt that the 


Director of Disability 


Services was not 


responsive, and that the 


Professor did not 


Provost became 


communication point for 


student, who did not wish to 


speak with other university 


representatives.  DSS and 


2/26/15 X


Dean of 


EDU DIS


Student alleged 


discriminatory statements 


in a graduate writing class


Provost and other university 


representatives reviewed the 


attributed statements and  


course materials, which 


revealed statements were 


scholarly in nature


5/21/15 X Provost DIS


Student alleged 


discriminatory statements 


in a graduate writing class


Provost and dean reviewed 


the course record, spoke with 


faculty member and other 


students, no discrimination 


found


6/2/2015 X DSS X ADA


Student claimed that the 


faculty member was not 


providing the 


accommodations outlined 


in the accessibility letter. 


DSS director met with the 


faculty member who then 


provided the 


accommodations to the 


student.


7/21/15 X


Director of 


CED DIS


Student felt instructor 


made discrimintaory 


statements based on 


nationality


Provost and Program 


Director reviewed the case 


and addressed issues with 


the faculty member


8/24/15 x President x


Claims advising error - does 


not want to take writing 


class


Sent to Dean - prior 


instructions clear - student 


must take the class, Dean 


sent memo


8/27/15 X


Director of 


CED x


Student unable to register 


due to stop hold on account


Academic Affairs found stop 


hold correctly placed on 


account due to student's 


situation. Student may not 


register until situation 


resolved
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